
BANNON LAKES 
 Community Development District 

 
November 4, 2020 

 



Bannon Lakes 
 Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Bannon Lakes 
Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Bannon Lakes Community Development District Board of Supervisors Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, November 4, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the World Golf Village Renaissance Hotel, 500 S. 
Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, FL 32092. Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
  
 

Regular Meeting 
 
 I. Call Order  
 II. Public Comment 
 III. Affidavits of Publication  
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the July 29, 2020 Meeting 
 V. Organizational Matters 

A. Consideration of Candidates for appointment to Seat 4 
B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
C. General Information for New Supervisor 
D. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01, Election of Officers  

 VI. Consideration of FY20/21 Funding Agreement with RREF III-P-EP Bannon  
  Lakes JV, LLC 
 VII. Consideration of Renewal of Services for Lake Maintenance with Lake Doctors,  
  Inc. 
 VIII. Consideration of Partial Release of Recorded 2016 Assessment Documents 
 IX. Ratification of Memo of Understanding with the St. Johns Property Appraiser 
 X. Ratification of FY 20 Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates 
 XI. Ratification of First Amendment to the Agreement for Landscape and  
  Irrigation Maintenance Services with Landcare Group, Inc.  
 XII. Consideration of Revision to Amenity Policies 
 XIII. Other Business 
 XIV. Staff Reports 

A. District Counsel   
B. District Engineer  
C. District Manager  
D. Field Services - Operations Memorandum 



2 
 

E. Amenity Report – Amenity Report 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 XVI. Audience Comments 
 XVII. Financial Reports 

A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues & 
 Expenditures  

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
C. Approval of Check Register 
D. Approval of Construction Funding Request No. 22 & 23  

 XVIII. Next Scheduled Meeting – February 3, 2021 at 1:00 p.m. at the Northeast Regional Airport 
Conference Center 4730 Casa Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL 32095 

 XIX. Adjournment 
 
The fourth order of business is the approval of minutes from the July 29, 2020 meeting. Minutes are 
enclosed for your review. 
 
The fifth order of business is organizational matters. The Board will consider candidates for 
appointment to seat 4. The appointed supervisor will be sworn in and receive general information. 
Then, the Board will consider resolution 2021-01, election of officers. A copy of the candidates’ 
submissions and resolution are enclosed for your review. 
 
The sixth order of business is the consideration of FY20/21 funding agreement with RREF III-P-EP 
Bannon Lakes JV, LLC. A copy of the funding agreement is enclosed for your review.  
 
The seventh order of business is the consideration of renewal services for Lake Maintenance with Lake 
Doctors, Inc. A copy of the renewal document is enclosed for your review.  
 
The eighth order of business is the consideration of partial release of recorded 2016 assessment 
documents. A copy of the release is enclosed for your review. 
 
The ninth order of business is the ratification of memo of understanding with the St. Johns Property 
Appraiser. A copy of the memo is enclosed for your review.  
 
The tenth order of business is the ratification of FY20 audit engagement letter with Grau & Associates. 
A copy of the letter is enclosed for your review. 
 
The eleventh order of business is the ratification of first amendment to the agreement for landscape 
and irrigation maintenance services with Landcare Group, Inc. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for 
your review.  
 
The twelfth order of business is consideration of revision to Amenity Policies. A copy of the current 
policies is enclosed for your review.   
 
Listed under Field Services is the operations memorandum. A copy of the memorandum is enclosed 
for your review.  
 
Listed under Amenity Report is the Manager’s report. A copy of the report is enclosed for your review.  
 



3 
 

Copies of the balance sheet and statement of revenue & expenditures, assessment receipt schedule, 
check register and funding requests are enclosed for your review. 
 
We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to call us at (904) 940-5850. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Oliver 
 
James Oliver 
District Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Bannon Lakes 
Community Development District 

Revised Agenda 
 
 
Wednesday World Golf Village 
November 4, 2020 Renaissance Hotel 
1:00 p.m. 500 S. Legacy Trail 
 St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
 bannonlakescdd.com 
 Call In # 1-888-757-2790 Code 509700 
 

Regular Meeting 
 
 I. Call Order 
  
 II. Public Comment 
 
 III. Affidavits of Publication  
 
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the July 29, 2020 Meeting 
 
 V. Organizational Matters 

A. Consideration of Candidates for appointment to Seat 4 
 
B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 

 
C. General Information for New Supervisor 

 
D. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01, Election of Officers 

  
 VI. Consideration of FY20/21 Funding Agreement with RREF III-P-EP Bannon  
  Lakes JV, LLC 
 
 VII. Consideration of Renewal of Services for Lake Maintenance with Lake Doctors,  
  Inc. 
 
 VIII. Consideration of Partial Release of Recorded 2016 Assessment Documents 
 
 IX. Ratification of Memo of Understanding with the St. Johns Property Appraiser 
 
 X. Ratification of FY 20 Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates 
 
 XI. Ratification of First Amendment to the Agreement for Landscape and  



  Irrigation Maintenance Services with Landcare Group, Inc.  
 
 XII. Consideration of Revision to Amenity Policies 
 
 XIII. Other Business 
 
 XIV. Staff Reports 

A. District Counsel  
  

B. District Engineer  
 

C. District Manager  
 

D. Field Services - Operations Memorandum 
 

E. Amenity Report – Amenity Report 
 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XVI. Audience Comments 
 
 XVII. Financial Reports 

A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues & 
 Expenditures 

  
B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 
C. Approval of Check Register 

 
D. Approval of Construction Funding Request No. 22 & 23 

  
 XVIII. Next Scheduled Meeting – February 3, 2021 at 1:00 p.m. at the Northeast 

Regional Airport Conference Center 4730 Casa Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL 
32095 

 
 XIX. Adjournment 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 
Affidavit of Publication 

BANNON LAKES COD - GMS 
475 W TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

ACCT: 15652 
AD# 0003316245-01 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY , FLORJDA 

ST A TE OF FLORJDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHINEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County , 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a NOTICE OF 
MEETING in the matter of BOS REG MTG 11/4/20 was published in said 
newspaper on 10/27/2020. 

Affiant further says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine. in St. Johns County. Florida. and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
the City of St. Augustine , in said St. Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement ; and 
aftiant further says the he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm 
or corporation any discount , rebate , commission. or refund for the purpose of 
securing thi s advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 

~ physical presence or 
( ] on line notarization 

this_ day oOCJ 2 7 2020 

j//;;::LL; 
by ___ _______ __ who is personally known to 
me or who has produced as identification 

NOTICE OF l\lEETING 
BANNON I..AKE.S COMMUNOY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

1be regular meeting of the Board of Su
penisors of th e Bannon Lakes Com
munity Development Disbict will he 
held on Wednesday, No,-ember 4, 
2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the Worlf Golf 
Village Renaissance Hotel, 500 S. 
Legacy Trail, SL Angu.<tine, Florida 

::.::i~~d ~jl ~:J~..'l'fon .!,~~ 
ance \\ith the pro\'isioo s of Florida Law 
for Commun ity De\-e1opment Districts. 
A copy of the agenda fur thi'i meetin g 
may be obtained from the District Man
ager, at •n5 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
St. Augustine , FL 32092 (and phone 
(904) 940-5850). This meeting may be 
continued to a date . time, and place to 
be specified on the record at the meet
ing. There may be occasions when one 
or more Supervisors "ill participate by 
telephone . 

Any person requirin,g: special accommo
dations at this meet10g because of a dis• :~:z. i.~;~ bo\'~U::cg~+f~~~ 
5850 at least two calendar da)~ prior to 
the meeting . If you •~ hearing or 
speech impaired . pJ.ease contact the 
F1orida Relay Sen-ia- at 1·800 -955-
8770, for aid in contacting th e District 
Office. 

Each person who decides to appeal any 
action taken at these meetings is ad
vised that person "ill need a record of 
the proceedings and that accordingly, 
the pe~n may need to ensure that a 
,rerbatim record of the proceeding s is 
made, including the testimony and evi
dence upon which such appeal is to be 
based. This meeting is not sponsored by 
the Authority , its Staff or the Airport. 

James Oliva 
District Man ager 

0003316245 Octoher 27, 2020 

Notary Public State of Florida 
TIFFANY M LOWE 
My Commission GG 11 SS 11 
Expires 06/18/2021 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



  MINUTES OF MEETING 
BANNON LAKES  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Bannon Lakes Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, July 29, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. via Zoom conferencing. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Art Lancaster Chairman 
 John Dodson Vice Chairman 
 Linda Scandurra Supervisor 
 Chris Hill Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber District Counsel   
 Brian Stephens Operations Manager 
 Bre Meeks Amenity Manager 
  
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. Four members of the Board were present 

via Zoom constituting a quorum. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Administrative Item – Reappointment of 
 Supervisor Chris Hill 

 Mr. Oliver explained that immediately following the May 6th meeting, Supervisor Chris 

Hill submitted his resignation based on a misunderstanding that he was required to relinquish his 

board seat due to an employment change. Mr. Hill was notified that board seat eligibility is not 

linked to his employment.  He made the decision to withdraw his resignation. Mr. Oliver then 

asked for the Board to reappoint Chris Hill to Seat 5, also pointing out that his seat would be open 

for election this November at the Landowner’s election. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson, with all in 
favor the Reappointment of Chris Hill to Seat 5 of the Board, was 
approved. 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Comment 

 Mr. Oliver asked that the public keep their comments for this portion of the meeting 

focused on items on the agenda, adding that they would have a chance at the end of the meeting to 

provide comments on CDD matters, whether on the agenda or not. There being no public 

comments at this time, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Affidavits of Publication 

 Mr. Oliver noted that the budget hearing was noticed in the St. Augustine Record twice, as 

required by the Florida Statute. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the May 6, 2020 
Meeting 

 Mr. Oliver presented the minutes of the May 6, 2020 meeting. He asked for any additions, 

corrections, or deletions to the meeting minutes. The Board had no changes to the minutes.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson with all in 
favor the Minutes of the May 6, 2020 Meeting were approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation of Fiscal Year 2019 Financial 
Audit 

  Mr. Oliver stated that the financial audit for Fiscal Year 2019 was included in the agenda 

package and was also posted to the District’s website, as well as to the Florida Division of Financial 

Services. He presented the audit noting that the Opinion Letter of the auditor stated that it was a 

clean audit. He presented the management discussion and analysis sections of the audit on pages 

3-6, as well as the annual financials on pages 7-12,  

 Mr. Oliver noted that they auditors found no deficiencies in internal control that they 

consider to be material weaknesses. Page 26 included the Independent Auditor’s Report and 

Compliance with requirements of Section 218.415 of Florida Statutes. The auditor found that the 

District complied in all material respects with the aforementioned requirements for Fiscal Year 

2019.  



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

3 

 The report shows that the District had no prior or current year findings, and that the District 

was in good financial health and had no emergency financial conditions. Mr. Oliver asked if the 

Board had any questions. Hearing none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Hill with all in 
favor, the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit, was approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2020-06, 
Resetting the Date and Time of the Public 
Hearing on the Proposed Budget 

  Mr. Haber stated that the District made the determination that the original date set by the 

Board was not going to work, therefore the Board decided to change the date of the public hearing 

on the budget, adding that the notice requirements for the Budget Public Hearing were still met. 

He clarified that this resolution was just an acknowledgement on record that the Board ratified the 

change of the date. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor, 
Resolution 2020-06 Resetting the Date and Time of the Public 
Hearing on the Proposed Budget, was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Hearing 
 Mr. Oliver stated that the FY21 budget is substantially the same as the FY20 budget. He 

added that they would be discussing three budgets at the meeting; the General Fund Budget, which 

includes administrative, maintenance, and operating costs of the District, and the Capital Reserve 

Budget and Debt Service budget for the bonds issued to build the existing infrastructure in the 

District. While presenting the General Fund Budget, Mr. Oliver pointed out the total revenues line 

where the budget had been essentially unchanged, going from $595,000 to $590,000. He pointed 

out the top 3 lines of revenues, including the Developer Contributions to supplement assessments 

dropping from $90,000 to $85,000, and Assessments going from $377,000 to $440,000 on platted 

lots on the tax roll. He added that the reason that the amount went up is that they are no longer 

direct bill, but instead on the tax roll. Mr. Oliver then went on to the Expenditure section of the 

budget, noting that the Administrative Budget costs dropped from $101,000 to $94,000. 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

4 

 Mr. Oliver presented the Amenity Center costs, which includes the cost of the operating 

and maintaining the Amenity Center. He explained that there was a slight increase in costs from 

$210,000 to $228,000 due to the Repairs and Maintenance line item which was budgeted at $4,300 

last year, but they project to spend about $19,000 this year. They budgeted $25,000 for this year 

as the facilities have grown older. He also presented the Ground Maintenance Expenditures, which 

dropped from $284,000 to $268,000, pointing out the Landscape Maintenance went up from 

$141,000 to $151,000 and will most likely to continue to go up annually due to the growth of the 

District and more common areas, as well as the cost-of-living adjustments. He also pointed out the 

Reclaimed Water Expenditure that was budgeted at $76,000, but they will probably be spending 

in the $36,000 to $40,000 range, depending on drought conditions. Therefore, they lowered the 

amount to $50,000. 

 Mr. Oliver pointed out that the Total Expenses line was nearly flat, going from $595,000 

to $590,000. He pointed out the table which showed per unit assessments remaining unchanged at 

$882 per platted lot. Mr. Oliver explained the District pays a 2% Collection Fee to the County Tax 

Collector. He also pointed out that if residents pay their tax bill by November 30th, they get a 4% 

discount on the CDD assessments and property taxes. 

 Mr. Oliver stated that the next several pages were line item descriptions, and that the pages 

after that included the Debt Service Fund budget for the Series 2016 Bonds, which were issued to 

build the infrastructures throughout the District including roads, utilities, the Stormwater 

Management facility, as well as the entire amenity footprint to include the dog park. He noted the 

debt service assessments are used to pay the two semi-annual interest payments that are due on 

November and May 1st of each year, as well as a principal payment due on November 1st.  

 Mr. Oliver went on to explain the Amortization Schedule which lists the annual principal 

and interest payments the District submits to the trustee for payment to the bond holders, adding 

that the bonds mature in 2048.  

 Mr. Oliver presented the Capital Reserve Fund, pointing out that it was not funded much 

because it is a new District, but that over the years it will be built up so that the District will have 

money to repair and replace assets as they get older. Mr. Oliver asked if the Board wanted to 

discuss any part of the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget. Hearing no comments from the Board, the public 

hearing was opened. 

 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson with all in 
favor, the Opening on the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 

 Mr. Oliver asked that any residents who wished to comment keep their discussions to three 

minutes. 

 A resident asked where the District would see any expenditures in regards to future 

development, to which Mr. Oliver responded that it would not affect the Operations and 

Maintenance Budget for FY 2021. Mr. Oliver added that as there are more units and common areas 

to maintain, the total assessments would likely be higher to cover the costs. He also said that as 

we approach buildout and have more platted lots to share costs, the O&M assessments should stay 

stable or decrease over the years. 

 Mr. Oliver asked if there were any more comments. Hearing none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Lancaster with all in 
favor, the Closing on the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2020-07, Relating to Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Haber stated that this resolution makes certain findings regarding the budget itself and 

provides that the budget described in the public hearing should be adopted in that form, and 

provides certain provisions related to any potential amendments to the budget that may be 

necessary for the future. He clarified that the public hearing for the budget had already been held 

and that Mr. Oliver noted that it was properly noticed in the newspaper. All that would be required 

is a motion to approve. He asked if there were any questions. Hearing no questions on the 

resolution,  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor, 
Resolution 2020-07, Relating to Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021, was approved. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2020-08, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll 

 Mr. Haber stated that this resolution relates to the assessments that will fund the budgets 

that were just adopted including the Operations and Management Budget, as well as the Debt 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

6 

Assessment budgets. He explained that the resolution certified the already levied debt assessments 

for collection, and also levies the O&M Assessments that will pay for the budget just adopted.  

 Mr. Haber added that no public hearing was required for this resolution because the O&M 

assessments did not increase from the prior year’s budget. He also noted that there were two 

methods of collection, including assessments that could be collected directly and assessments that 

are collected on the tax roll. He explained that for unplatted and undeveloped property, 

assessments would be collected by the District manager by sending an invoice to the owner of the 

unplatted property. For platted property, the assessments are certified to the county and are 

collected on the same bill that residents receive for their Ad Valorem taxes, and are collected in 

that manner.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor, 
Resolution 2020-08 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying an 
Assessment Roll, was approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Resolution 2020-09, 
Designating Landowners’ Meeting Date 

 Mr. Haber explained the resolution, stating that CDD’s are governed by Chapter 190 under 

Florida Statutes, which relates to election and turnover of the Board from landowner controlled to 

resident controlled seats. That happens when the CDD is 6 years old and that there are 250 or more 

qualified electors or more living within the boundaries of the CDD. He stated that a “qualified 

elector” is defined as an adult who resides within the District with a primary place of residence 

within the District. They also need to be registered to vote with the Supervisor of Elections in St. 

John’s County. He added that the scenario listed above happens on even years because of the seat 

terms of all the Board members. Mr. Haber stated that there were five Supervisors on the Board, 

two of which expire in November of 2022, and three that expire in November 2020. Because the 

CDD had not reached the designated 6 year mark, the Board would hold a landowner election. He 

explained that in this election landowners have the opportunity to vote on the members of the 

Board. Once the qualified elector threshold had been reached, the elections for the vacancies would 

be held by the St. John’s County Supervisor of Elections and individuals would be able to qualify 

with the Supervisor of Elections, being elected through the general election process. He noted that 

that scenario could be possible in 2022 if they reach the qualified elector’s threshold.  



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

7 

 Mr. Haber explained that the current resolution up for motion was to set the date for the 

landowner’s election for the seats that expire in 2020. Mr. Oliver added that the District did have 

at least 250 qualified electors within the district, so the general elections process would indeed 

begin in November 2022. He clarified that they would notify the residents as the time approached. 

He also pointed out that there was an administrative error, Linda Scandurra’s last name was 

misspelled, as well as Seat #5 being held by Chris Hill. Mr. Oliver asked the Board if they had any 

more questions. Hearing none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson with all in 
favor, Resolution 2020-09 Designating the Landowner’s Meeting 
Date as November 4, 2020 at 1:00 p.m., was approved. 

 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of First Amendment of 

Amenity Management Services with RMS 
 Mr. Oliver stated there was a copy of the first amendment in the agenda packet. He added 

that the last page showed the proposal submitted by RMS. He noted it would be at the same cost 

as Fiscal Year 2020. He asked if the Board had any questions. Hearing none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson with all in 
favor the First Amendment of Amenity Management Services with 
RMS, was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Field Operations & 
Janitorial Services with RMS 

 Mr. Oliver stated that the pricing for the Field Operations and Janitorial Services would be 

the same pricing for Fiscal Year 2021 that was contracted for Fiscal Year 2020. Mr. Oliver asked 

if the Board had any questions. Hearing none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Lancaster, with all in 
favor, the Consideration of Field Operations and Janitorial Services 
with RMS, was approved. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Other Business 

 Mr. Oliver pointed out that regarding Resolution 2020-09, there is one vacant spot. For seat 

#4 the term for the seat expires in November of 2022. He added that the spot had not been filled 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

8 

since the previous Supervisor resigned from that seat. The Chairman suggested that the Board 

could consider filling that spot with a resident. He explained that other Boards had done it in the 

past by sending and e-blast and posting to the website that the Board was soliciting letters of 

interest or resumes of residents who had wished to apply for the position. He stated that if the 

Board would like to at the next Board meeting, they could consider those letters of interest and 

resumes in order to appoint a fifth member to the Board. 

 The Board agreed on that suggestion, and Mr. Oliver added that he would notify the 

residents of the opportunity and bring back to the Board at the next meeting the names and resumes 

of those who are interested.  

 

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports  

A. District Counsel 

 Mr. Haber stated that the deadline for the ability to hold virtual meetings is set to expire on 

July 31st and there had not currently been an extension of the deadline. If the mandate was not 

extended, Board would be required to meet in person, but if it is extended the Board would have 

the option to determine whether it would want to meet in person or virtually.  

 He also noted that the landowner election that was set had been extended until November, 

He had received questions on whether the virtual meetings extended to the election, to which he 

clarified that they would not. 

 

B. District Engineer – Approval of Requisitions No. 145 & 146 

 Being that the District Engineer was absent from the meeting, Mr. Oliver presented 

Requisitions No. 145 and 146, noting that they were both payable to Clary & Associates. He 

explained that they were for survey work that is related to the installation of a force main along 

IGP Boulevard due to a requirement of ST. John’s County as it would provide water further west 

along IGP. He asked that the Board ratify the two requisitions. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Hill, with all in 
favor, Requisitions No. 145 & 146, were approved. 

 

C. District Manager – Presentation of Meeting Schedule for FY 2021 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

9 

 Mr. Oliver explained that the District meets on a quarterly schedule and has been using the 

Northeast Florida Regional Airport Conference Center for meetings at 1:00 p.m. He also added 

that if additional matters come up meetings can be continued or a special meeting can be scheduled. 

He noted that as listed in the agenda packets, meetings were scheduled to be held in November, 

February, May, and August. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lancaster seconded by Mr. Dodson, with all in 
favor, the Meeting Schedule for FY 2021, were approved. 

 

D. Field Services – Operations Memorandum 

 Mr. Stephens presented the Operations Memorandum, pointing out highlights such as the 

exterior ceilings and wooden trim of the Amenities Center being painted, and the annual termite 

treatment being scheduled for August. He also added that all of the pool and patio furniture had 

been pressure washed, and the area rugs and upholstery in the clubhouse were cleaned, as well as 

the pressure washing of the sidewalks outside the clubhouse. The dog park also had trash cans 

placed around the area, a flag pole was ordered for in front of the Amenities Center Complex, and 

associates had been contacted about the pool light issue with getting those fixed. Mr. Stephens 

went on to explain that he was continuing to work with Land Care on the Maple and Oak tree 

issues, and that he would forward the information to the board once he received any answers. 

  

E. Amenity Report – Amenity Report 

 Ms. Meeks stated that the clubhouse pool and fitness center were continuing to have regular 

use since they were reopened. She added that the movie night the past Friday had been successful, 

and she was continuing to be in the process of scheduling more entertainment and vendors for the 

“Dancing in the Streets” event scheduled to be held in early September. She hoped to see more 

participation in community events if the Coronavirus dissipated through the end of the year. Ms. 

Meeks also added that she had gotten positive feedback from residents as they were enjoying the 

monthly newsletter, and therefore she would continue to send those out. 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests 

 There being none, the next item followed.  

   

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

10 

 Mr. Oliver stated that this was the time for the audience to make any comments they 

wished, adding that there wouldn’t necessarily be a back and forth commentary with the Board. 

Some response would be immediate and some would come later.  

 A resident commented that he still had concerns with people continuing to go behind his 

residence and using it as an access path to walk their dogs and loiter there. He asked that there be 

more communication to new residents that his property was not public access. He also added that 

there were people not following rules and guidelines at the Amenity Center, and asked if there 

were any cameras at the pool. Ms. Meeks responded that there were no cameras at the pool, but 

that there were at the entrance. Mr. Haber clarified that under Florida law the location of cameras 

within the facility were exempt and confidential in order to prevent the general public from 

learning the District’s security system and abusing it. He added that Board members have the right 

not to discuss the cameras in an open meeting but can be discussed in a private setting. The resident 

clarified that the only reason he asked about the cameras was not for the location, but to see if there 

were any that were being viewed as many people were not following the rules of the facility, such 

as doing flips in the pool and hanging on the cables in the pool. The resident added that other 

communities have required identification for residents, such as an arm band, to be able to tell if 

they are a homeowner or a guest. He requested that the Board adopt a policy like that sometime in 

the future. 

 Mr. Stephens added that all of comments mentioned were good comments, and now that 

the CDD had an Amenity Manager on site those types of issues could be watched and addressed. 

He pointed out that as far as access they were giving keys to everyone who was a resident, and that 

it goes hand in hand with showing who has a right to be onsite. Mr. Stephens asked Ms. Meeks if 

the gated access was continually operating, to which she responded yes, while also adding that she 

regularly checks the traffic. The resident interjected that he has seen people on numerous occasions 

reach over and hit the bar with no card in order to gain access. Mr. Stephens would look at a higher 

cap on the fence to prevent that from happening again. 

 Another resident expressed her concern about the Maple and Oak trees being replaced 

because they were dying and that when they were being replaced, the replacements were smaller 

and inconsistent with the mature existing Oak trees. She asked if they would have an update during 

the next meeting about replacing the Maples and aerating the base of the oak trees lining the main 

road. She also asked if Ms. Meeks had decided what type of seat cushions would be replacing the 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

11 

old ones that were taken out because of the mildew. Ms. Meeks answered that the cushions with 

broken zippers were taken to a repair shop and the fabric of the other cushions were still in good 

condition. Ms. Meeks added that as soon as they got those back they would be put back on the 

seats. The resident asked for clarification that the pool lights were being fixed, to which Mr. 

Stephens answered yes. She thanked everyone for trying to bring the Amenity Center up to 

standard. 

 Another resident asked for clarification on what the technical definition of “landowner” 

was, and asked if it was a resident. Mr. Haber clarified that anyone who owns property within the 

District is considered a landowner. He explained that the way the election works is that a 1 acre/lot 

basis is entitled to 1 vote, so a resident that owns a home is entitled to participate in the landowner 

election giving them one vote for the 1 lot that they own. If the lot is greater than an acre, they get 

2 votes. Mr. Sheldon asked how many lots in the CDD were sold or owned, as well as how many 

were open and undeveloped lots there were. Mr. Oliver answered that it would be based on what 

the current data is as they approach the landowner’s election, but that the majority of the landowner 

votes may be controlled by the developer due to the amount of undeveloped land. Mr. Oliver stated 

that those numbers would be sent out as they get closer to the election. The resident asked if those 

numbers were pulled from the tax records, to which Mr. Oliver answered the property appraiser’s 

website and landowner documents.  

  

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

 Mr. Oliver stated that the income statements presented were the same as the ones presented 

in the budget. He clarified that they were unaudited, but that they would be audited at the end of 

the fiscal year. He noted there were no unusual variances were seen on the income statement.  

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the CDD was 100% collected for the fiscal year and that they would 

start over when they would provide the assessment roll to the county tax collector for FY 2021. 

C. Approval of Check Register 

Mr. Oliver clarified that the Check register required Board approval.  

 



July 29, 2020  Bannon Lakes CDD 

12 

On MOTION by Mr. Hill seconded by Mr. Lancaster with all in favor 
the Check Register was approved. 

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Next Scheduled Meeting – November 4, 
 2020 at 1:00 p.m. 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next scheduled meeting date would be November 4, 2020 at the 

airport. He noted that they would start with the Landowner’s election before moving on to the 

CDD meeting where they would swear in new supervisors that might be in attendance. 

 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

 The meeting was adjourned at 1:52 p.m. 

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor 
the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



From: Chris d1Aquin cmdoc@yahoo.com 
Subject: Interest in open position on COD board 

Date: August 14, 2020 at 11 :30 AM 
To: sstephens@gmsnf.com 
Cc: Art Lancaster aelancaster@eastlanddev.com, Jim Oliver joliver@gmsnf.com 

Shelby, 

I am interested in the open position on the Bannon Lakes CDD board. 

As a three-year resident in the Southshore neighborhood, I have really enjoyed being part of 
Bannon Lakes. My family loves it here. Recently, I have become aware of the great need 
for the residents here to have a greater voice in their neighborhood and this great 
development. 

My goal in being appointed to the board is to have a reasonable voice that will have an in
depth understanding of what homeowners need and want. I feel I can fill a valuable niche by 
being someone who still has children at home but also has a viewpoint similar to those in 
the age-restricted neighborhoods since I am a grandparent myself (and fears retirement is 
coming way too fast). 

I strive to be fair-minded and will do my best to understand both sides of any contested 
position brought before the board. I also feel that my involvement in the Toastmasters 
organization over the past 5 years will help me in being well-spoken and respectful. I have 
twice served as an officer in my local Toastmasters club and I have also been heavily 
involved in various volunteer/leadership roles in my church and Boy Scouts of America, 
having served on several councils/committees through the years. 

Please let me know if you have auy questions. 

Sincerely, 
Chris d'Aquin 
103 Bluejack Lane 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 
404-330-2058 (Cell) 



From: Jim Carrado jcarrado@hotmail.com 
Subject: Bannon Lakes COD Vacancy 

Date: August 21, 2020 at 9:17 AM 
To: sstephens@gmsnf.com 

To Whom it may Concern; 

I have been giving this issue considerable thought as I believe the COD does important 
work. I would like to submit my name in consideration for the opening on the Bannon 
Lakes COD to be announced in November. 

My name is Jim Carrado. I am a retired executive from Winn-Dixie stores and have lived 
at Bridge Bay in Bannon Lakes for almost 1 ½ years. My wife, Marti, of 46 years have 
lived in St. Johns County for 17 years, first at St. Johns Golf and County Club and then 
moving here to Bannon Lakes. We both love it here and work hard to maintain the 
beauty and peacefulness of the neighborhood. 

As I mentioned earlier, I was a senior executive for Winn-Dixie stores for 1 O years until 
retiring in 2013. I have a BA in business from The University of Southern California and 
worked in the food industry for more than 30 years. I would be happy to submit a 
complete resume at your request if it would help you understand who I am and my 
qualifications for this important position. 

Bannon Lakes is a wonderful community, but it doesn't just happen that way. It takes a 
lot of work and dedication from members of the community to make it feel like home. You 
have my commitment that I will do everything in my power to keep this community the 
pride of St. Johns County. 

Thank you, 
Jim Carrado 
127 Artist Oaks Ct. 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 
(904) 403-6243 
Sent from Mail for Windows 1 O 



From: Stephen Commorato stephen.commorato@outlook.com 
Subject: Seat 4 vacancy 

Date: September 18, 2020 at 6:05 AM 
To: sstephens@gmsnf.com 

I am writing you to express my interest in the position, I served on an HOA board for 20 
years in varies roles of President, VP, Secretary and Treasure and was always striving to 
retain property value and being financially responsible in my duties. 

Sincerely, 

Stephen Commorato 
Mobile# 904-885-2308 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



RESOLUTION 2021-01 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District at a regular business meeting held on November 4, 2020 desires to elect the below 
recited persons to the offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE BANNON LAKES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
    Chairman 

    Vice-Chairman  

    Secretary 

    Treasurer 

    Assistant Treasurer  

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary   

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 4th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2020. 
 
 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 1 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 FUNDING AGREEMENT  

 
 This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is effective as of the 1st day of October, 2020, by and 
between: 
 

Bannon Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
located in St. Johns  County, Florida (hereinafter "District"), and 

 
RREF III-P-EP Bannon Lakes JV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
and the owner of a portion of the property located within the boundaries of the 
District (hereinafter "Developer").   

 
Recitals 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance of the Board of County 
Commissioners of St. Johns County, Florida for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, 
operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, is authorized to levy 
such taxes, special assessments, fees and other charges as may be necessary in furtherance of the 
District's activities and services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer presently owns and/or is developing certain real property 
(the “Property”) within the District, which Property will benefit from the timely construction 
and acquisition of the District’s facilities, activities, and services, and from the continued 
operations of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has adopted its general fund budget for the Fiscal Year 
2020/2021, which year commences on October 1, 2020 and concludes on September 30, 2021 
(the “General Fund Budget”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the General Fund Budget, which both parties recognize may be amended 
from time to time in the sole discretion of the District, is attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference as Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the District not levy operation and 
maintenance assessments in excess of $504,753 for Fiscal Year 2020/2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer desires to fund any deficit of the District’s operation and 

maintenance expenses in excess of the $504,753 up to the total amount of the District’s General 
Fund Budget, adopted by the District’s Board of Supervisors on July 29, 2020, without any 
reimbursement by the District; and 

 
 



 2 

WHEREAS, as the District and Developer anticipate that the District’s operations and 
maintenance expenses for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 will not exceed the budgeted amount of 
$590,629, it is anticipated that the Developer’s Funding Obligation as defined herein will not 
exceed $85,876.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. Funding Obligation.  Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 2 of this Agreement, 
the Developer agrees to pay the District’s actual operation and maintenance expenses for Fiscal 
Year 2020/2021 to the extent such expenses exceed the special assessments for operations and 
maintenance levied and collected by the District, within fifteen (15) days of written request by 
the District (the “Developer’s Funding Obligation”).  The funds shall be placed in the District's 
general checking account.  The Developer’s Funding Obligation for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 shall 
not exceed $85,876. The Developer’s payment of funds pursuant to this Agreement in no way 
affects the Developer’s obligation to pay assessments on land it owns within the District.   
 
 2. Continuing Lien.  The District shall have the right to file a continuing lien upon 
the certain property as identified in Exhibit B (the “Parcel”) for all payments due and owing 
under the terms of this Agreement and for interest thereon.  In addition, the District shall have 
the right to file a continuing lien upon the Parcel for reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegals’ fees, 
expenses and court costs incurred by the District incident to the collection of funds under this 
Agreement or for enforcement of this lien, and all sums advanced and paid by the District for 
taxes and payment on account of superior interests, liens and encumbrances in order to preserve 
and protect the District’s lien.  The lien shall be effective as of the date and time of the recording 
of a “Notice of Lien for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget” (the “Notice”) in the public records of 
St. Johns County, Florida, stating among other things, the description of the Parcel and the 
amount due as of the recording of the Notice, and the existence of this Agreement.  The District 
Manager, in its sole discretion, is hereby authorized by the District to file the Notice on behalf of 
the District, without the need of further Board action authorizing or directing such filing.  At the 
District Manager’s direction, the District may also bring such other enforcement action against 
the Parcel in any manner authorized by law.  The District shall partially release any filed lien for 
portions of the Parcel subject to a plat if and when the Developer has demonstrated, in the 
District’s reasonable discretion, that such release will not materially impair the ability of the 
District to enforce the collection of funds hereunder.  In the event the Developer sells any portion 
of the Parcel after the execution of this Agreement, the Developer’s rights and obligations under 
this Agreement shall remain the same, provided however that the District shall only have the 
right to file a lien upon the remaining Parcel owned by the Developer. 
 
 3.  Alternative Methods of Collection. 
 
  a. In the alternative or in addition to the collection method set forth in Paragraph 2 
above, the District may enforce the collection of funds due under this Agreement by action 
against the Developer in the appropriate judicial forum in and for St. Johns County, Florida.  The 
enforcement of the collection of funds in this manner shall be in the sole discretion of the District 



 3 

Manager on behalf of the District.  In the event that either party is required to enforce this 
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the substantially 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all costs incurred, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 
 
  b. The District hereby finds that the activities, operations, and services set out in 
Exhibit A provide a special and peculiar benefit to the Property.  The Developer agrees that the 
activities, operations and services set forth in Exhibit A provide a special and peculiar benefit to 
the Property equal to or in excess of the costs set out in Exhibit A.  Therefore, in the alternative 
or in addition to the other methods of collection set forth in this Agreement, the District, in its 
sole discretion, may choose to certify amounts due hereunder as a non-ad valorem assessment on 
all or any part of the Property for collection, either through the Uniform Method of Collection set 
forth in Chapter 197 or under any method of direct bill and collection authorized by Florida law.  
Such assessment, if imposed, may be certified on the next available tax roll of the St. Johns 
County property appraiser. 
 
 4. Agreement; Amendment.  This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be 
made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the parties hereto. 
 
 5. Authority.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the 
appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this instrument. 
 
 6. Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by either 
party except upon the written consent of the other which consent shall not be unreasonably 
conditioned, withheld, or delayed; provided, however, the Developer may assign its rights and 
obligation under this Agreement to an affiliated entity or subsidiary of Developer or to any other 
entity in which Developer has retained any ownership interest or collaterally assign to any 
institutional lender or equity investor providing financing to Developer.  Any purported 
assignment without such consent shall be void. 
 
 7. Default.  A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to 
all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, the right of 
damages, injunctive relief and specific performance and specifically including the ability of the 
District to enforce any and all payment obligations under this Agreement through the imposition 
and enforcement of a contractual or other lien on property owned by the Developer. 
 
 8. Third Party Rights; Transfer of Property.  This Agreement is solely for the 
benefit of the formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason 
hereof, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this 



 4 

Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants and conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding 
upon the parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns.  In the event 
the Developer sells or otherwise disposes of its business or of all or substantially all of its assets 
relating to improvements, work product, or lands within the District, the Developer shall 
continue to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and additionally shall expressly require that 
the purchaser agree to be bound by the terms of this Agreement.  The Developer shall give 90 
days prior written notice to the District under this Agreement of any such sale or disposition. 
 
 9. Applicable Law.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be 
construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
 10. Negotiation at Arm’s Length.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the parties as an arm's length transaction.  The parties participated fully in the 
preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are each 
deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against any party. 
       
 11. Notice. All notices, requests, consents and other communications hereunder 
("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage 
prepaid, by overnight delivery service, or telecopied or hand delivered to the parties, as follows: 

 
A. If to the District:  Bannon Lakes Community  

       Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
Attn: District Manager 

 
   With a copy to:  Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 

119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 (32301) 
Post Office Box 6526 
Tallahassee, Florida  32314 
Attn:  Wesley S. Haber 

 
B. If to the Developer: RREF III-P-EP Bannon Lakes JV, LLC 

790 NW 107th Avenue, Fourth Floor 
Miami, Florida 33172 
Attn:  Anthony Seijas 

 
With a copy to:  Carlton Fields 

4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd., Suite 1000 
Tampa, Florida 33607 
Attn: Joel B. Giles 
 
and 



 5 

 
Eastland Partners, LLC 
700 Ponte Vedra Lakes Blvd. 
Ponte Vedra Beach, Florida 32082 
Attn: Arthur Lancaster 

 
 Except as otherwise provided herein, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address or telecopy number set forth herein.  If mailed as provided above, 
Notices shall be deemed delivered on the third business day unless actually received earlier.  
Notices hand delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall 
be deemed received on the next business day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this 
Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to 
the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays recognized by the 
United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  Counsel for the parties may 
deliver Notice on behalf of the parties.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent 
or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name, address or telecopy 
number to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

12. Effective Date.  The Agreement shall take effect as of October 1, 2020.  The 
enforcement provisions of this Agreement shall survive its termination, until all payments due 
under this Agreement are paid in full. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 6 

In witness whereof, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
 
 
Attest: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
              
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    By:       
       Its:       
 

 
 

RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 
 
BY: RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV MEMBER, LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company, its managing member 
 

BY: RIALTO REAL ESTATE FUND III-PROPERTY, LP, 
a Delaware limited partnership, its sole member 

 
BY: RIALTO PARTNERS GP, III-PROPERTY, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company, 
its general partner 

 
By: _______________________________________ 

Name: _____________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________________ 

 
       
 
WITNESSES: 
 
       
_______________________________  
       
_______________________________  
 
 
 
Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2020/2021 General Fund Budget 
Exhibit B: Parcel



 7 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8 

EXHIBIT B 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



The Lake Doctors1 Inc. 
Aqu atic Man age men t Services • 

Mr. Brian Stephens 
Bannon Lakes COD 
c/o GMS 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine , FL 32092 

Dear Mr. Stephens: 

October 23, 2020 

Corpo ra te Oilice,. 
3543 S1.11c Ro" d 419 

\.VinlPr Sprin gs, r I 32708 
1-6 00-6(,(, -$ 253 

l;tk~s(• b kNloctors.com 
w ww .l,,kcdor 1ors.co m 

Your current Lake Doctors , Inc. Water Management Agreement for 
Bannon Lakes COD is due for renewal on December 1, 2020. We are pleased 
to enclose a renewal proposal for your approval. Your monthly investment 
amount of $650.00/per month will remain unchanged . 

If you have any questions or concerns regarding your Lake Doctors Wate r 
Management Program, please feel free to give me a call at (904)626-0287 or 
contact me by email at mark.seymour@lakedoctors.com. 

To assure continuous and uninterrupted service, kindly return a copy of 
the executed agreement by November 15, 2020. For your convenience , we have 
provided a pre-addressed, stamped envelope. 

As always, we will continue to focus upon fully satisfying your water 
management needs by providing excellent , quality service , quick response to 
questions or problems and deep concern for the health of your pond, lake or 
waterway. 

We at The Lake Doctors very much appreciate your current business and 
look forward to continuing to work with you to keep your waterway(s) in excellent 
condition . 

Sincerely, 

AltwU+-
Mark A. Seymour 
Sales Manager 

MAS/jkw 
723475 



Co rporate Office s 
35 4 3 State Road 419 

W int e r Sp rin gs, Fl 32708 
1-800-666-5253 

lakes@laked oc tor s.com 
www.lakedoctors.com 

MAS/723475 R 
This Agreement , made this-=--- - --=---- day of _______ 20_ is between The Lake Doctors , Inc., a 
Flor ida Corporat ion, hereinafter called "THE LAKE DOCTORS" and 

PROPERTY NAME (Comm unity!Businessllnd i vidual) __ ____ _____ _ _ _ ____ _ _______ _ _ 

MANAGEMENT COMPANY ___ __ ______ __ _____ __ ___ __ ____ _ 

INVOICING ADDRESS _ ____ __ _______ _ _____ ___ ____ _ _ __ _ 

CITY __ ____ _ __ ___ _ STATE ___ _ _ ZIP ___ _ PHONE ( 

EMAIL ADDRESS __ __ ____ __ ___ __ _ __ ____ _ EMAIL INVOICE: YES OR NO 

THIRD PARTY COMPLIANCE/REGISTRATION: YES OR NO THIRD PARTY INVOICING PORTAL: YES OR NO 
**If a Third Party Compliance/Registration or an Invoice Portal is required; it is the customer 's responsibility to provide the information. 

Hereinafter called "CUSTOM ER" REQUESTED START DATE: ______ _ _ _ 
PURCHASE ORDER#: ___ _ ______ _ 

The parties hereto agree to follows: 

A. THE LAKE DOCTORS agrees to manage certa in lakes and/or waterways for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of 
execution of this Agreement in accordance with the terms and condit ions of this Agreement in the following location(s ): 

Five (5) Ponds associated with Bannon Lakes CDD, St. Augustine, FL 

Includes a minimum of twelve (12) inspect ions and/or treatments, as necessary, for control and prevention of noxious 
aquat ic weeds and algae. Service will cease effective December 1, 2020 if the signed Agreement is not returned. 
Note - #11 on Terms & Conditions does not apply. 

B. CUSTOMER agrees to pay THE LAKE DOCTORS, its agents or assigns , the following sum for specified aquatic 
management services: 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5 . 

Underwater and Floating Vegetation Control Program 
Shoreline Grass and Brush Control Program 
Additional Treatments , if Required 
Free Callback Service 
Monthly Wr itten Service Reports 
Total of Services Accepted 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

650.00 monthly 
INCLUDED 
INCLUDED 
INCLUDED 
INCLUDED 
650.00 monthly 

$0.00 of the above sum-total shall be due and payab le upon execution of this Agreement, the balance shall be payable in advance 
in monthly installments of $650.00, including sales use taxes, fees or charges that are imposed by any governmental body relating 
to the service provided under this Agreement. 

C. THE LAKE DOCTORS uses products which, in its sole discretion, will provide effect ive and safe results. 

D. THE LAKE DOCTORS agrees to commence treatment within fifteen (15) business days, weather permitting, from the date 
of receipt of this executed Agreement plus initial deposit and/or required government permits. 

E. The offer contained herein is withdrawn and this Agreement shall have no further force and effect unless executed and 
returned by CUSTOMER to THE LAKE DOCTORS on or before November 15, 2020. 

F. The terms and conditions appearing on the reverse side form an integral part of this Agreement, and CUSTOMER 
hereby acknowledges that he has read and is familiar with the contents thereof. Agreement must be returned in its 
entirety to be considered valid. 

THE LAKE DOCTORS , INC. CUSTOMER 

Signed ____ __ _ __ _ ___ Dated __ _ _ 

MARK A. SEYMOUR, SALES MANAGER Name _ _ __ _____ _ _ _ __ _ ___ _ _ 

08/2019 ® THE LAKE DOCTORS , INC. 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) The Underwater and Floating Vegetation Control Program will be conducted in a manner consistent with good water management practice using the following methods 
and techniques when applicable . 
a) Periodic treatments to maintain control of noxious submersed, floating and emersed aquatic vegetation and algae. CUSTOMER understands that some beneficial 

vegetation may be required in a body of water to maintain a balanced aquatic ecological system. 
b) Determination of dissolved oxygen levels prior to treatment , as deemed necessary, to ensure that oxygen level is high enough to allow safe treatment. Additional 

routine water analysis andlor bacteriological analysis may be performed if required for success of the water management program. 
c) Where applicable, treatment of only one-half or less of the entire body of water at any one time to ensure safety to fish and other aquatic life. However, THE LAKE 

DOCTORS shall not be liable for loss of any exotic or non-native fish or vegetation. Customer must also notify THE LAKE DOCTORS if any exotic fish exist in 
lake or pond prior to treatment. 

d) CUSTOMER understands and agrees that for the best effectiveness and environmental safety, materials used by THE LAKE DOCTORS may be used at rates 
equal to or lower than maximum label recommendations . 

e) Triploid grass carp stocking, if included, will be performed at stocking rates determined the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission permit guidelines . 
f) CUSTOMER agrees to provide adequate access . Failure to provide adequate access may require re-negotiation or termination of this Agreement. 
g) Control of some weeds may take 30-90 days depending upon species, materials used and environmental factors. 
h) When deemed necessary by THE LAKE DOCTORS and approved by CUSTOMER , the planting and/or nurturing of certain varieties of plants, which for various 

reasons, help to maintain ecological balance. 

2) Under the Shoreline Grass and Brush Control Program, THE LAKE DOCTORS will treat border vegetation to the water's edge including, but not limited to 
torpedogras s, cattails, and other emergent vegetat ion such as woody brush and broadleaf weeds. Many of these species take several months or longer to fully 
decompose. CUSTOMER is responsible for any desired physical cutting and removal. 

3) CUSTOMER agrees to inform THE LAKE DOCTORS in writing if any lake or pond areas have been or are scheduled to be mitigated (planted with required or beneficial 
aquatic vegetation). THE LAKE DOCTORS assumes no responsibility for damage to aquatic plants if CUSTOMER fails to provide such information in a timely manner. 
Emergent weed cont rol may not be performed within mitigated areas, new or existing, unless specifically stated by separate contract or modification of this Agreement. 
CUSTOMER also agrees to notify THE LAKE DOCTORS, in writing , of any conditions which may affect the scope of work and CUSTOMER agrees to pay any resultant 
higher direct cost incurred . 

4) If at any time during the term of this Agreement , CUSTOMER feels THE LAKE DOCTORS is not performing in a satisfactory manner , or in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreeme nt, CUSTOMER shall inform THE LAKE DOCTORS, in writing, stating with particularity the reasons for CUSTOMER 'S dissatisfaction . THE LAKE 
DOCTORS shall investigate and attempt to cure the defect. If, after 30 days from the giving of the original notice, CUSTOMER continues to feel THE LAKE DOCTORS 
performance is unsatisfactory, CUSTOMER may terminate this Agreement by giving notice (' Second Notice") to THE LAKE DOCTORS and paying all monies owing to 
the effective date of termination . In this event, the effective date of termination shall be the last day of the month in which said second notice is received by THE LAKE 
DOCTORS. 

5) Federal and State regulations require that various water time-use restrictions be observed during and following some treatments . THE LAKE DOCTORS will notify 
CUSTOMER of such restrictions . It shall be CUSTOMER responsibili ty to observe the restrictions throughout the required period. CUSTOMER understands and 
agrees that, notwithstand ing any other provision of the Agreement , THE LAKE DOCTORS does not assume any liability for failure by any party to be notified of, or to 
observe , the above regulations. 

6) THE LAKE DOCTORS shall maintain the following insurance coverage and limits: (a) Workman's Compensation with statutory limits; (b) Automobile Liability; (c) 
Comprehensive General Liability , including Pollution Liability , Property Damage, Completed Operations and Product Liability. A Certificate of Insurance will be provided 
upon request. A Certificate of Insurance naming CUSTOMER as 'Additional Insured" may be provided at CUSTOMER'S request. CUSTOMER agrees to pay for any 
additional costs of insurance requirements over and above that is provided by THE LAKE DOCTORS. 

7) Neither party shall be responsible for damages , penalties or otherwise for any failure or delay in performance of any of its obligations hereunder caused by strikes, riots, 
war, acts of God, accidents, governmental orders and regulations, curtailment or failure to obtain sufficient material, or other force majeure condition (whether or not of 
the same class or kind as those set forth above) beyond its reasonable control and which , by the exercise of due diligence , it is unable to overcome. Should THE LAKE 
DOCTORS be prohibited , restricted or otherwise prevented or impaired from rendering specified services by any condition, THE LAKE DOCTORS shall notify 
CUSTOMER of said condition and of the excess direct costs arising there from. CUSTOMER shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of said notice to notify THE LAKE 
DOCTORS in writing of any inability to comply with excess direct costs as requested by THE LAKE DOCTORS . 

8) CUSTOMER warrants that he or she is authorized to execute the Water Management Agreement on behalf of the riparian owner and to hold THE LAKE DOCTORS 
harmless for consequences of such service not arising out of the sole negligence of THE LAKE DOCTORS . 

9) CUSTOMER understands that, for convenience, the annual investment amount has been spread over a twelve-month period and that individual monthly billings do not 
reflect the fluctuating seasonal costs of service. If CUSTOMER places their account on hold, an additional start-up charge may be required due to aquatic re-growth . 

10) THE LAKE DOCTORS agrees to hold CUSTOMER harmless from any loss, damage or claims arising out of the sole negligence of THE LAKE DOCTORS. However, 
THE LAKE DOCTORS shall in no event be liable to CUSTOMER or others for indirect , special or consequential damages resulting from any cause whatsoeve r. 

11) Upon completion of the term of this Agreement , or any ex1ension thereof , this Agreement shall be automatica lly ex1ended for a period equal to its original term unless 
terminated by either party . If required, THE LAKE DOCTORS may adjust the monthly investment amount after the original term. THE LAKE DOCTORS will submit 
written notification to CUSTOMER 30 days prior to effective date of adjustment. If CUSTOMER is unable to comply with the adjustment, THE LAKE DOCTORS shall 
be notified immediately in order to seek a resolution. 

12) THE LAKE DOCTORS may cancel this agreement with or without cause by 30-day written notice to customer . 

13) Should CUSTOMER become delinquent , THE LAKE DOCTORS may place the account on hold for non-payment and CUSTOMER will continue to be responsible for 
the monthly investment amount even if the account is placed on hold. Service may be reinstated once the entire past due balance has been received in full. Should it 
become necessary for THE LAKE DOCTORS to bring action for collection of monies due and owing under this Agreement, CUSTOMER agrees to pay collection costs, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys fee (including those on appeal) and court costs , and all other expenses incurred by THE LAKE DOCTORS resulting 
from such collection action. 

14) This Agreement is assignable by CUSTOMER upon written consent by THE LAKE DOCTORS. 

15) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto and shall be valid upon acceptance by THE LAKE DOCTORS Corporate Office. No oral or 
written alterations or modifications of the terms contained herein shall be valid unless made in writing and accepted by an authorized representative of both THE LAKE 
DOCTORS and CUSTOMER. 

16) If Agreement includes trash/debris removal, THE LAKE DOCTORS will perform the following : removal of casual trash such as cups, plastic bags and other man-made 
materials up to 20 lbs. during regularly scheduled service visits. Large or dangerous items such as biohazards and landscape debris will not be included. 

17) CUSTOMER agrees to reimburse THE LAKE DOCTORS for all processing fees for registering with third party companies for compliance 
monitoring services and/or invoicing portal fees. 

08/2019 ® THE LAKE DOCTORS , INC . 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

123992047.2  

Recording: _____ 
Doc. stamps: _____ 
Int. tax:  _____ 
TOTAL:  _____ 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS PREPARED BY AND, 
AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
Joel B. Giles, Esquire 
Florida Bar No.: 350591 
CARLTON FIELDS, P.A. 
4221 West Boy Scout Boulevard, Suite 1000 
Tampa, Florida 33607 
(813) 223-7000 
(813) 229-4133 (Facsimile) 
jgiles@carltonfields.com 
 

PARTIAL RELEASE OF RECORDED INSTRUMENTS 
(Phases 2A, 2B, and 2C – Bannon Lakes) 

 
THIS PARTIAL RELEASE OF RECORDED INSTRUMENTS (“Partial Release”) dated 

November ___, 2020, is by BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the 
“CDD”), and RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(“RREF”). 
 
 RECITALS 
 

A. The CDD and RREF executed and recorded the following documents relating to the 
issuance of 2016 special assessment revenue bonds: Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District’s Notice of Series 2016 Special Assessments recorded in Official Records Book 4184, at 
page 1682, Agreement regarding the True-Up and Payment of Series 2016 Assessments recorded in 
Official Records Book 4208, at page 14, Declaration and Consent to Jurisdiction of Bannon Lakes 
Community Development District and to Imposition of Special Assessments recorded in Official 
Records Book 4208, at page 60, and Collateral Assignment and Assumption of Development and 
Contract Rights Relating to the Series 2016 Project recorded in Official Records Book 4208, at page 
100, all of the public records of St. Johns County, Florida (collectively, the “Recorded Instruments”). 
 

B. The Recorded Instruments included the property described on the attached 
Exhibit “A” (the “Released Property”), however the 2016 special assessment revenue bonds do not 
impact the Released Property. Accordingly, the CDD and RREF wish to confirm the release of the 
Released Property from the Recorded Instruments.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 Dollars ($10.00), the 
receipt and legal sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the CDD and RREF hereby confirm 
the release and hereby forever release, exonerate, and discharge the Released Property from the 
Recorded Instruments. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that nothing herein contained shall be held or construed to 
release, exonerate, or discharge any property other than the Released Property from the Recorded 
Instruments. 
  



 

123992047.2 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CDD and RREF have caused this instrument to be 
executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
WITNESSES: 
 
      
(Sign on this line.) 
      
(Print name legibly on this line.) 
 
 
      
(Sign on this line.) 
      
(Print name legibly on this line.) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
       By: 

 
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
  
Name:   
Title: Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
COUNTY OF  DUVAL ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ☐ physical presence 
or ☐ online notarization this ______ day of ________________, 2020, by 
_______________________________, the Chairman of the BANNON LAKES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose government 
established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, on behalf of the district, who is personally 
known to me or has produced ___________________________ as identification. 

 

______________________________________ 
(Sign on this line.) 
______________________________________ 
(Print name legibly on this line.) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Florida 
COMMISSION NO.:  
EXPIRATION DATE:  

(SEAL) 
  



 

123992047.2 3 

 
 
WITNESSES: 
 
_____________________________ 
(Sign on this line.) 
____________________________________________ 
(Print name legibly on this line.) 
 
 
_____________________________ 
(Sign on this line.) 
____________________________________________ 
(Print name legibly on this line.) 

 
 
 
 
 
        
 

 
RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
By:  RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV 
MEMBER, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, its Manager 
 
 

 By: _________________________________ 
 Name:_______________________________ 
 Title: _______________________________ 

  
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
COUNTY OF ______________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was sworn to and subscribed before me by means of 
☐ physical presence or ☐ online notarization this ______ day of November, 2020, by 
________________________________, as ____________________ of 
RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV MEMBER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
as Manager of RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, on behalf of the limited liability companies, who is personally known to me or has 
produced                                      as identification. 

 

              
(Sign on this line) 

              
(Legibly print name on this line) 

 
NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Florida 
COMMISSION NO.:      
EXPIRATION DATE:      

 
(SEAL) 

  



 

123992047.2 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of Released Property 

 
BANNON LAKES PHASE 2A 
 
A PORTION OF SECTIONS 11 AND 12, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE WESTERLY CORNER OF THE NORTHERLY TERMINUS OF BANNON LAKES 
BOULEVARD, A VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF BANNON LAKES 
PHASE 1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 81, PAGES 36 THROUGH 42, INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF SAID ST. JOHNS COUNTY THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE 
ARC OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 390.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 125.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF NORTH 24°15'41" WEST, 124.73 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 280.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 233.75 FEET, SAID 
ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 08°51'24" EAST, 227.03 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE 
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 82.17 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 14°18'24" WEST, 73.23 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY AND THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 310.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 53.00 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 66°17'02" WEST, 
52.93 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 71°10'53" WEST, 64.38 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 39.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 63°49'07" WEST, 35.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 18°49'07" WEST, 42.56 FEET; THENCE NORTH 71°10'53" 
WEST, 60.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 79°54'41" WEST, 135.70 FEET; THENCE NORTH 16°52'35" WEST, 
20.05 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 39.05 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 84°30'07" WEST, 38.07 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 410.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 172.61 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 74°11'18" 
WEST, 171.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 86°14'55" WEST, 
187.31 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE 
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 188.50 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 03°45'05" EAST, 120.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, 
ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 187.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 353.34 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°37'16" EAST, 303.07 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103.64 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 44°52'28" EAST, 86.06 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF 
A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 765.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 113.25 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 79°58'59" 
EAST, 113.15 FEET; THENCE NORTH 05°46'33" EAST, 125.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 



 

123992047.2 5 

NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 640.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 11.16 FEET, SAID ARC 
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 83°43'28" WEST, 11.16 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 06°46'30" EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 40.74 FEET, SAID ARC 
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 50°05'24" EAST, 36.38 FEET, 
TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 03°24'18" EAST, 200.54 FEET, TO 
THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 
ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 36.97 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 38°57'30" WEST, 33.69 FEET; THENCE NORTH 08°40'41" EAST, 
60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 4.98 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF SOUTH 81°51'00" EAST, 4.98 FEET; THENCE NORTH 07°37'19" EAST, 130.80 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
83°37'19" EAST, 32.81 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60°31'45" EAST, 58.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 34°47'14" 
EAST, 165.10 FEET; THENCE NORTH 57°22'07" EAST, 69.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 07°02'29" EAST, 
61.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69°51'08" EAST, 3.81 FEET; THENCE NORTH 80°46'09" EAST, 14.84 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 77°17'36" EAST, 28.08 FEET; THENCE NORTH 36°06'01" EAST, 39.08 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 63°26'06" EAST, 17.08 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77°30'30" EAST, 29.81 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
18°17'17" EAST, 12.04 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81°38'43" EAST, 8.90 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°46'52" 
EAST, 49.78 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 21°09'41" WEST, 23.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°15'03" WEST, 21.07 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 09°18'26" EAST, 43.34 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 31°41'21" EAST, 58.26 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 24°13'37" EAST, 23.67 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 27°50'48" WEST, 37.25 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 15°54'43" WEST, 33.44 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°42'22" EAST, 91.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
75°47'42" EAST, 55.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 77°38'41" EAST, 71.31 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 71°43'45" 
EAST, 158.84 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 63°00'53" EAST, 22.89 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 79°05'45" EAST, 42.97 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 70°02'58" EAST, 294.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 21°38'16" EAST, 79.81 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 71°56'27" EAST, 25.65 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 20°42'56" WEST, 101.83 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 20°06'48" WEST, 25.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82°59'14" WEST, 15.43 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
20°35'40" EAST, 26.59 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81°23'10" WEST, 51.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67°55'05" 
WEST, 98.48 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 70°21'03" WEST, 80.38 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 65°52'07" WEST, 97.23 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°01'31" WEST, 97.82 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°40'31" WEST, 55.40 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 59°29'05" EAST, 36.28 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 19°42'50" EAST, 37.66 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 23°57'29" EAST, 51.68 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 49°18'53" EAST, 40.91 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
69°23'29" EAST, 54.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84°57'13" EAST, 65.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82°53'12" 
EAST, 113.52 FEET; THENCE NORTH 50°51'02" EAST, 81.72 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°03'03" EAST, 
86.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 05°22'38" EAST, 120.77 FEET; THENCE NORTH 45°07'28" WEST, 31.92 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°52'32" EAST, 147.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 74°46'26" EAST, 75.59 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 81°23'56" EAST, 185.56 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67°17'18" EAST, 66.80 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 37°14'40" EAST, 60.73 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°28'12" EAST, 71.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
88°31'41" WEST, 44.20 FEET; THENCE NORTH 17°01'27" EAST, 16.62 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°40'37" 
EAST, 39.74 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°28'12" EAST, 103.71 FEET; THENCE NORTH 03°27'04" EAST, 
50.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°40'06" EAST, 74.79 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°32'34" WEST, 26.69 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 127.66 FEET; THENCE NORTH 04°11'15" EAST, 25.36 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 39.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 40°48'45" EAST, 35.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
04°11'15" WEST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 39.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 49°11'15" WEST, 35.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
04°11'15" WEST, 120.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 125.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47°17'42" 
EAST, 13.90 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 44.93 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 68°26'46" EAST, 43.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 152.66 FEET, TO 



 

123992047.2 6 

THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, 
ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 66.48 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 47°43'13" EAST, 61.69 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 83°28'52" EAST, 
18.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 10°42'23" WEST, 535.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 09°21'08" WEST, 168.47 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 08°55'58" WEST, 168.92 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°08'15" WEST, 109.52 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 02°46'08" WEST, 110.57 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 06°55'58" WEST, 142.33 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 07°06'44" EAST, 37.19 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 71°23'48" WEST, 115.60 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
49°29'26" WEST, 67.29 FEET; THENCE NORTH 58°01'21" WEST, 61.02 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48°09'38" 
WEST, 27.60 FEET; THENCE NORTH 16°17'26" WEST, 56.90 FEET; THENCE NORTH 65°11'55" WEST, 
37.97 FEET; THENCE NORTH 32°20'53" WEST, 57.77 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°11'00" WEST, 201.45 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 54°10'10" WEST, 104.69 FEET; THENCE NORTH 63°26'55" WEST, 43.03 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 79°38'10" WEST, 337.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 70°48'16" WEST, 43.03 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 67°13'24" WEST, 109.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47°34'05" WEST, 125.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
89°30'02" WEST, 145.25 FEET; THENCE NORTH 62°34'30" WEST, 91.66 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 68°56'38" 
WEST, 92.86 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01°35'08" WEST, 155.34 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69°34'14" WEST, 
21.63 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 310.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 29.06 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 17°44'42" WEST, 29.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 200.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 166.97 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 08°51'24" 
EAST, 162.16 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 32°46'23" EAST, 
22.55 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, 
ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 
50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 63.70 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 69°16'07" EAST, 59.48 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID 
CURVE; THENCE NORTH 32°46'23" EAST, 84.90 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 260.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 119.11 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 87°09'32" EAST, 118.07 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 74°02'07" EAST, 181.53 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 15°57'53" WEST, 21.71 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE 
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 34.92 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 14°00'52" EAST, 34.21 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 187.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 163.62 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 19°04'25" EAST, 158.45 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 113.06 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 20°38'30" 
WEST, 90.47 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 85°25'22" WEST, 
25.88 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 174.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 147.77 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 61°05'35" WEST, 143.37 FEET, TO 
THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 36°45'48" WEST, 72.07 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 94.09 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 89°19'42" WEST, 80.81 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; 
THENCE SOUTH 35°25'11" WEST, 255.21 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 445.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.62 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 27°27'40" 



 

123992047.2 7 

WEST, 123.23 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHERLY; THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 66.30 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 18°29'12" EAST, 61.55 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 29°36'45" WEST, 107.96 FEET, TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING.  
 
CONTAINING 47.94 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
BANNON LAKES PHASE 2B 
 
A PORTION OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF BANNON LAKES PHASE 1A-2, AS 
RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 90, PAGES 49 THROUGH 52, INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SAID ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE NORTH 11°44'17" WEST, 860.74 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE 
OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 11; 
THENCE NORTH 88°34'18" EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, 541.86 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID 
NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 11; THENCE 
NORTH 00°42'21" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 706.17 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°10'19" EAST, 
1499.61 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SOUTH 12°31'43" EAST, 69.66 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
64°37'44" EAST, 68.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 62°40'36" EAST, 39.39 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86°12'30" 
EAST, 201.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 62°23'11" EAST, 233.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 80°40'23" EAST, 
358.86 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 78°45'56" EAST, 41.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 51°20'47" EAST, 33.68 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 29°45'59" EAST, 43.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°44'49" EAST, 43.10 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 01°32'34" EAST, 27.10 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 127.66 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
04°11'15" EAST, 25.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE 
LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
39.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 
40°48'45" EAST, 35.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 04°11'15" WEST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE 
LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
39.27 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 
49°11'15" WEST, 35.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 04°11'15" WEST, 120.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" 
EAST, 125.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47°17'42" EAST, 13.90 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 44.93 FEET, SAID ARC 
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 68°26'46" EAST, 43.43 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 85°48'45" EAST, 152.66 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 66.48 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 47°43'13" EAST, 
61.69 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 83°28'52" EAST, 18.16 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 35°55'06" EAST, 57.75 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°03'32" EAST, 197.62 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 55°19'56" EAST, 193.07 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°26'52" EAST, 43.93 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 12°16'08" EAST, 60.26 FEET; THENCE NORTH 07°58'28" EAST, 57.25 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
31°13'30" EAST, 51.06 FEET; THENCE NORTH 33°13'41" EAST, 29.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 04°52'46" 
WEST, 102.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 12°39'26" WEST, 335.07 FEET; THENCE NORTH 02°30'42" WEST, 
211.43 FEET; THENCE NORTH 04°07'37" EAST, 51.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48°34'22" WEST, 233.71 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 85°49'58" WEST, 216.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 71°16'26" WEST, 68.41 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 79°18'23" WEST, 664.12 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 63°05'40" WEST, 71.84 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 79°00'29" WEST, 113.93 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 67°59'04" WEST, 78.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
46°26'25" WEST, 165.28 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°28'49" WEST, 53.68 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86°31'24" 
EAST, 162.98 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 46°55'15" EAST, 107.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 08°24'33" EAST, 
29.51 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°04'16" WEST, 77.83 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 28°36'57" WEST, 51.01 FEET; 



 

123992047.2 8 

THENCE SOUTH 57°26'07" WEST, 43.64 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 66°36'20" WEST, 46.72 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 82°36'42" WEST, 57.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81°49'00" WEST, 85.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
75°25'27" WEST, 53.64 FEET; THENCE NORTH 52°35'01" WEST, 60.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 19°20'21" 
WEST, 50.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°51'22" WEST, 41.72 FEET; THENCE NORTH 29°48'32" WEST, 
14.98 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 38°07'55" WEST, 12.75 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 41°12'33" WEST, 122.32 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 38°59'46" WEST, 116.49 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39°18'12" WEST, 204.49 FEET, TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
CONTAINING 38.86 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
BANNON LAKES PHASE 2C 
 
A PORTION OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE WESTERLY CORNER OF NORTHERLY TERMINUS OF BANNON LAKES 
BOULEVARD, A VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF BANNON LAKES 
PHASE 1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 81, PAGES 36 THROUGH 42, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF SAID ST. JOHNS COUNTY, SAID POINT BEING ON THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 390.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 125.27 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 24°15'41" 
WEST, 124.73 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 280.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 91.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 05°39'23" WEST, 91.50 FEET, TO A 
POINT ON THE ARC OF SAID CURVE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTHERLY, 
CONTINUING ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 280.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 141.85 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 18°15'36" EAST, 140.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 82.17 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 14°18'24" WEST, 73.23 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC 
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 310.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 53.00 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
NORTH 66°17'02" WEST, 52.93 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 
71°10'53" WEST, 64.38 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 39.27 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 63°49'07" WEST, 
35.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 18°49'07" WEST, 42.56 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 71°10'53" WEST, 60.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 79°54'41" WEST, 135.70 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 16°52'35" WEST, 20.05 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 39.05 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 84°30'07" WEST, 38.07 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 410.00 FEET, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 172.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 74°11'18" WEST, 171.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; 
THENCE NORTH 86°14'55" WEST, 187.31 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 188.50 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 03°45'05" EAST, 120.00 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE 



 

123992047.2 9 

NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 187.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 353.34 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°37'16" EAST, 303.07 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103.64 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 44°52'28" EAST, 86.06 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG 
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 765.00 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 113.25 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 79°58'59" EAST, 113.15 FEET; THENCE NORTH 05°46'33" EAST, 125.00 FEET, 
TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 640.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 11.16 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
NORTH 83°43'28" WEST, 11.16 FEET; THENCE NORTH 06°46'30" EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC 
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 40.74 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
NORTH 50°05'24" EAST, 36.38 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 
03°24'18" EAST, 200.54 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 36.97 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 38°57'30" WEST, 
33.69 FEET; THENCE NORTH 08°40'41" EAST, 60.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 4.98 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 81°51'00" EAST, 4.98 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 07°37'19" EAST, 130.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 83°37'19" WEST, 49.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
50°30'19" WEST, 267.99 FEET; THENCE NORTH 53°16'45" WEST, 250.10 FEET; THENCE NORTH 75°34'51" 
WEST, 74.47 FEET; THENCE NORTH 86°20'14" WEST, 56.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60°46'46" WEST, 
71.08 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67°23'41" WEST, 89.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°23'08" WEST, 133.44 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 34°58'42" EAST, 175.26 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 30.30 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 55°28'38" WEST, 
30.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 34°58'42" WEST, 250.49 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°17'39" WEST, 8.87 FEET, 
TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST ONE-QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 11; THENCE SOUTH 00°42'21" EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 650.55 FEET, TO THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 11; THENCE SOUTH 88°34'18" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE 200.86 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°38'46" WEST, 73.75 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 40°04'32" WEST, 101.24 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
56°49'50" WEST, 126.59 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 80°01'18" WEST, 70.26 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 08°34'40" 
EAST, 92.61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°21'33" EAST, 199.11 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°50'53" EAST, 
178.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 57°01'25" EAST, 41.24 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 73°48'51" EAST, 29.99 FEET, 
TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 74.69 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 37°34'21" EAST, 72.97 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC 
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 187.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 130.73 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF NORTH 38°56'35" EAST, 128.09 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 139.96 FEET, SAID 
ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 80°53'43" EAST, 98.54 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 00°42'21" EAST, 336.63 FEET, 
TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, 



 

123992047.2 10 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 400.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 597.20 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 43°28'38" EAST, 543.26 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 86°14'55" EAST, 209.69 FEET, TO THE POINT 
OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 41.60 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
SOUTH 74°19'50" EAST, 41.30 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 
62°24'45" EAST, 72.25 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 364.63 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 82°46'04" EAST, 342.60 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG 
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 47.37 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 75°05'29" EAST, 45.62 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86°15'10" EAST, 60.59 FEET, TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
CONTAINING 34.42 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



DocuSign Envelope ID: D52051F9-6477-4229-8123-A3A6FF81EF5D 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE ST. JOHNS COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER 

AND BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") dated September 14, 2020 is made between the Bannon 

Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special purpose government ("District"), and the St. 

Johns County Property Appraiser, a constitutional officer of the State of Florida ("Property Appraiser"). The 

parties agree as follows: 

WHEREAS, the parties have a need for Property Assessment Records and GIS digital data for operation 

of certain functions; and 

WHEREAS, the Property Appraiser, receives requests pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to 

protect information that is confidential and exempt from public disclosure; and 

WHEREAS, the Property Appraiser redacts Property Assessment Records and GIS digital data based on 

such requests; and 

WHEREAS, the District requires access to the unredacted Property Assessment Records and GIS digital 

data for proper functioning of governmental functions; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to protect information that is confidential and exempt from disclosure 

pursuant to Florida Statutes. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The recitals above are hereby incorporated and made a part of this MOU. 

2. The Property Appraiser will update and maintain the Property Assessment Records and GIS 

ownership data to protect the information that has been identified as confidential and exempt from public 

disclosure pursuant to Section 119.071(4)d.2., Fla. Stat., or other applicable Statute ("Exempt Information") 

and will include a reference to the statutory citation under which the exemption is being claimed. During the. 

regularly scheduled update, the Property Appraiser, will save a file containing all data (both exempt and 

non-exempt); the file will be placed in a secure location with access available to the District. The Property 

Appraiser will be responsible for creating, maintaining and hosting the secure location available to the 

District. The data will be made available in a file format deemed appropriate by the Property Appraiser 

according to the nature of the data and placed in the secure folder created, maintained and hosted by the 

Property Appraiser. The Property Appraiser will provide credentials for access to the secure location and the 

District assumes responsibility for restricting access to data provided. 

3. The District will update and maintain the data to protect the Exempt Information and will include 

a reference to the statutory citation under which the exemption is being claimed. 

4. The District will share the confidential data corresponding to the confidential and exempt 

Property Assessment Records and GIS ownership data provided by the Property Appraiser, with the District 

and it's statutorily authorized district manager, including the statutory citation under which the exemption 

is being claimed. 

5. The parties agree to maintain the Exempt Information as confidential and exempt from public 

disclosure pursuant to Florida Statutes. 

6. The parties agree to implement, maintain and update appropriate security measures and 

permissions within their respective networks to ensure that confidential data is only accessible by 

appropriate employees or agents in full compliance with Florida Law and administrative regulations. In 

1 



OocuSign Envelope ID: D52051 F9-6477 -4229-8123-A3A6FFB 1 EF5D 

addition, each party agrees to provide its employees with appropriate training to ensure the lawful access 

and use of such confidential information. 

7. The parties agree to provide the redacted records and the applicable statutory exemption 

identified by the Property Appraiser and the District when responding to a public records request that would 

include any portion of the Exempt Information. 

8. Each party agrees to be responsible for the negligent acts of its officers, agents and employees. As 

between the parties, subject to the limitation of Section 768.28 Fla. Stat. Each party assumes the 

responsibility for the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of its employees. This provision shall not be 

deemed a waiver of the sovereign immunity afforded the parties by Florida law, the provisions of Section 

768.28 Fla. Stat. or a consent to be sued by third parties. 

9. This MOU may be terminated immediately by any party upon written notification to the other 

parties. Any dispute or conflict between the parties that arises from the implementation of the Agreement 

shall be provided in writing to representatives of the parties. The representatives shall meet to discuss 

disputed issue(s) and attempt in good faith to resolve such dispute(s). 

10. Any modifications to this MOU must be made in writing executed by all parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by their 

respective duly authorized officers. 

ST. JOHNS COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER 

Eddie Creamer, PROPERTY APPRAISER 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

r-:DocuS!gned by: 

~~1~~ 
District Chairman 

2 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUllLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

August 24, 2020 

Board of Supervisors 
Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
c/o GMS, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

951 Yamato Road • Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
(561) 994-9299 • (800) 299-4728 
Fax (561) 994-5823 
www.graucpa.com 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District, St. Johns County, Florida ("the District") for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. We will audit the financial 
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, including the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Bannon Lakes Community Development District as of and for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2020. In addition, we will examine the District's compliance with the requirements of Section 
218.415 Florida Statutes. This letter serves to renew our agreement and establish the terms and fee for the 2020 audit. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary 
inforrnation (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District's basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain 
limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, 
but will not be audited: 

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis. 

2) Budgetary comparison schedule 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all 
material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the 
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and other procedures we consider necessary to 
enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's financial 
statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it 
is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial 
statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to 
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a 
report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements and 
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and 
on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the 
scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. The paragraph 
will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the District is 
subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page2 

and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, 
regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Examination Objective 

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida Statute 
218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will be conducted 
in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and will include 
tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. We will issue a 
written report upon completion of our examination of the District's compliance. The report will include a statement that the 
report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor 
General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our 
opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the District's compliance is other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or 
are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw 
from this engagement. 

Other Services 

We will assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the District in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles based on information provided by you. These non-audit services do not constitute an audit under 
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, 
reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations 
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us with the 
information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also management's 
responsibility. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related notes in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudlt services do not 
constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and 
related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed 
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In 
addition, you will be required to make certain representations regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the 
management representation letter. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, 
preferably from senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and 
results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and monitoring 
ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring 
that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for 
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. 
You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, 
and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the accuracy 
and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with ( 1) access to all information of which you 
are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we 
may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we 
detennine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the 
written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or correcting journal 
entries to your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of the 
proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing 
us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have 
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 
government received in communications from employees, former employees, granters, regulators, or others. In addition, you 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page 3 

are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, 
attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives 
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your 
planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are 
not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the 
electronic site with the original document. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees 
acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we will 
not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be 
detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not 
engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may 
include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request 
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At 
the conclusion of our audit, we wlll require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial 
statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by 
generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Control 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, sufficient to 
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further 
audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting 
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal 
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing 
Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related 
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will 
perform tests of the District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. 
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will locate any documents 
selected by us for testing. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page4 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential information. 
However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available 
upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or 
indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit 
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may 
provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to 
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be 
public records under Florida law. The District agrees to notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that 
involves audit documentation. 

Furthermore, Grau & Associates agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, 
including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Auditor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is the District Manager ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, Grau & Associates shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract 
term if Auditor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the 
contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in Grau & Associate's possession or, alternatively, keep, 
maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records 
are transferred by Grau & Associates, Grau & Associates shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the 
District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT 
THE PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN. 

Our fee for these services will not exceed $3,900 for the September 30, 2020 audit unless there is a change in activity by the 
District which results in additional audit work or if additional Bonds are issued. 

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit to the 
Auditor General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that your 
employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. If we 
are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the 
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices will be 
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with our firm policies, 
work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid 
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon 
written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time 
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered 
during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate. 

The District may terminate this agreement, with or without consent, upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Grau 
& Associates. Upon any termination of this agreement, Grau & Associates shall be entitled to payment of all work and/or 
services rendered up until the date of the notice of termination subject to any offsets the District may have against Grau & 
Associates. 

We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent 
peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2019 peer review report 
accompanies this letter. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page 5 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Bannon Lakes Community Development District and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Grau & Associates 

Antonio J. Grau 

RESP NSE: 

correctly sets forth the understanding of Bannon Lakes Community Development District. 

By: ==+--i-""--w--~----------
Title: 

Date: 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District 

PA 
FICPA PeerR&vi&W Program 
Admrillstered in Florida 
bV The Flo!"ida h1stltule-of CPAs 

February 20, 2020 

Antonio Grau 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Rd Ste 280 
Boca Raton, FL 33431-1809 

Dear Antonio Grau: 

·~AICPA Peer Review 
Program 

AICPA Peet Review Program 
Administered U1 FIOrida 

by the Florida Institute of CPAs 

Page6 

It is my pleasure to notify you that on February 20, 2020, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the 
report on the most recent system Review of your fimn. The due date for your next review. is December 31, 
2022. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the administering 
entity. 

As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its 
congratulations to the fimn. 

Thank you for your cooperation. 

Peer Review Team 
FICPA Peer Review Committee 
paul@ficpa.org 
800-342-3197 ext 251 

Florida Institute of CPAs 

cc: Daniel Hevia, Racquel McIntosh 

Firm Number 900004390114 Review Number: 571202 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES BETWEEN BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND LANDCARE GROUP, INC. 

This First Amendment ("First Amendment") is effective this 1st day of August, 2020, by 
and between: 

Bannon Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, with an address of 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 ("District"); and 

Landcare Group, Inc., a Florida corporation whose address is 35 Enterprise 
Drive, Bunnell, Florida 32210 (the "Contractor" and, together with the District, 
the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District and the Contractor previously entered into an agreement for 
landscape and irrigation maintenance services dated August I, 2019 (the "Services Agreement") 
attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 21 of the Services Agreement, the parties desire to amend 
the Services Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto has the authority to execute this First Amendment 
and to perform its obligations and duties hereunder, and each party has satisfied all conditions 
precedent to the execution of this First Amendment so that this First Amendment constitutes a 
legal and binding obligation of each party hereto. 

Now, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the District and the Contractor agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Services Agreement is hereby affirmed and the parties hereto agree 
that it continues to constitute a valid and binding agreement between the parties. Except as 
described in Section 2 of this First Amendment, nothing herein shall modify the rights and 
obligations of the parties under the Services Agreement. All of the remaining provisions, 
including, but not limited to, the engagement of services, indemnification and sovereign 
immunity provisions, remain in full effect and fully enforceable. 

SECTION 2. The Services Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

A. The Services Agreement is hereby renewed in accordance with 
Contractor's proposal dated July 24, 2020, and attached hereto as Exhibit 
B. With the exception of the monthly and annual rates set forth in Exhibit 
B ($12,642.14 monthly and $151,705.68 annually), which shall apply to 

I 



OocuSign Envelope ID: 130630F2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

!he renewal contemplated herein, to lhe extent that any terms or eondilions 
found in lcxhibit B conllict with the terms of the Services Agreement or 
this Amendment, the Services Agreement and this Amcndmcnl conlrol 

and shall prevail. 

SECTION 3. All other terms of the Services Agreement shall remain in full !\,rec and 

effect and are hereby ml i lied. 

IN WITN!sSS Wlll\REOF, the parlics hcrclo have signed this Firs! Amcndmenl lo the 
Services Agreement on lhc day and year first written above. 

ATTEST: 

~t\J~ w~--~ 
Scere ry/ Assistant Secretary 

Exhibil A: 
Exhibit B: 

Services Agrcc1nent 
Renewal Proposal 

BANNON LAKKS COMMUNITY 
DlcVIcLOPMENT DISTRICT 

lnDoeuSlgned by; 

~~~!~ --· -, -~----·-
C:ha1rpcrson, Board of Supervisors 

LANDCARE GROUP, INC. 

2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C 16DF20B8ASF 

Exhibit A 

AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTlcNANCE SERVICES 
BETWEEN BANNON LAKES COlVlMUNlTY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND 

LANDCARE GROUP, INC. 

Tms AGREi,:)l!Ji:N'r (the "Agreement'') is effective as of the 1 '' day of August, 2019, by and 
between: 

Barino:n: Lakes Comm\n:iity Development Dis hi ct; a local unit.of special-purppse 
government established pursuant to ¢1,apter 190, Flori<ta SWute~, being situated 
in St. Jolms Councy, Florida, with an address of 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
SL Augustine, Florida 32092 ("District"); and 

Laildcare GroUJ>, Inc., a.Florida corporation whose address is 35 Enterprise :brive; 
Bunnell, Florida 32210 (the "Conttactor'I and, together wlti,, ilie District, the 
"Parties,n), . 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit <?f spec.ial-purp.o.se government e$.blis.h~d. pu,.rsu;:mt 
to the Unifoifil Comm unify Development!'.liitrict Act of 1980, as codiued in Chapter 190, F1ori<ta 
$/atutes (the "Act11)t 311d 

WHEREAS, the District was established. for the pUI'pose of plru»1h1g! financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; iiid 

WHEJtEAS, th~ District owns> operates and maintains .certain landscape and irrigation 
improvements {"Improvementsn); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into. an. agree~ep.t with i,.n i.nd.epe.ndent con-tractbr. 
to provide landscape. and irrigation maintenaQce services for the improvements; and 

WREREAS, , Contractor represents_ that it is qualified and willing to serVe M a landscape 
and ir;rigatiOii ·maintenance. ¢ontractot and provide such services to the. District, all ~· more 
particularly described hei•ein and Exhibit A ("Services,,), attached hereto an,d incorporated herein, 
within the District areas depicted in the map attached hereto as Exhibit .8 ("Landscape Areas"); 
and incqrporated .. herein by ref~,:enc~; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor wartan! and agree that they have all right, ~owe, 
·and authority to enter into and be bolllld by this Agreement. 

.:Nt;>w, TPElfEFOlm, i,n consideration of the recitals, agreements, ;md mutual covenants 
contained he[ein, and other good and valuable considetatioff, the receipt and sufficiency o-f which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties.agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. lNcoJµ>CiJ½.TICiN oF)lECIT;wl, 'Ille recitals so s\a!ed are true and correct 
and by this refei:~nce are incorporated fo~p and form: a ma~tial part ofthis Agreement. 

1 

3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

SECT)ON2. D.ESCRl;i:TION OJ!WORKANDSERVICES. 

A. The District desrres that the Contractor provide professional landscape. and 
irrigation maintenance services within presently accepted stan.dar~. Upon all Parties sighing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District witbthe Sei:vices identified in Exhibit A. To 
the exient there is any conflict between the 1erms of this Agreenient and Exhibit A, the terms of 
this Agreement shall control. 

B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shaltassign such staff as.may 
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating; e~pediting, and controlling all 
aspects to asswe cOIJlpietion of the Services. 

C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this 
A,greeIJ.lent Contractor shall solely be responsible-for-the me;ms, manner and methods by which 
its dµties, obligations and res_flonsibilities are met to the s~tfa(a,ction of the District 

D. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that ate 
subject to thiS Agteement, for those purposes c!-escribed in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicabk laws, rules, and reg~lations. · 

SECTION 3. $COPE OF LINJJSCAI'E AND lRW:GATION MA\'.N=ANCE SERVICES. the 
Contra.ctor will provide landsqap~ and irtjgation maintenance services for the.Improvements. The 
duties>-obligations, and responsibilities of Con~actor are to provide the material, tools, skill and 
labor necessary for the Services attached as Exhjbit A. To the extent there is any conflict between 
the .temlll of Exhibit A and this Agreemen!, the tef!lls of this Agreement shall control. 

S:Ecrr◊li 4. MANNER OF Co"NTllACTORls FERFORMANC:E. The Contractor agrees, as 
ah independent contractor, tp u,ndert.ak.e work and/or perform such services as specifie"d in this 
Agreement. or an:y addendum executed by ·th~ l?'arties or ill any authOtized· written work order by 
the District .issued ·in connection with thlS Agreement and ac~pted by ·the Contractor. All Work 
shall be perfo~ed in a neat iµ\d professional manner· teasonab.ly accepta9~e to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services \,y the Contractor 
under tWs Agreement and reiated to this Agreement shall conform to any writt~n instructio,ns 
issued by the District. 

A. Should any Work and/ot $ervices be req\lired vvltlcfy ~e not specified in this 
Agreement or any addenda, but which ate nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of 
Services to the District, such_ work or services shall be fully perfortned by the ·Contractor as if 
described and delineated in tltls Agreement. Extra work will be quoted and approved by the 
District Manager before.any work is staited. 

B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be lia\,le for the payment of 
any work or services not included in Section 3 unless -the District, through an. &uthoiized 
representative of the Distri~t, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to :l_)erfonn such work 

2 

4 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63OF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

C. The District shall designate" in writing a, person to act as the Di~tri~t•s 
representative with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The bistrict'.s_ 
representative shall hav~ complete ~uthority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret 
and define the District's policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and 
systems pertine.ht to the Contractor's services:-

(1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its 
representative. 

(2) Upon request by the District Manager, 1he Contractor agrees to n1eet 
with the District's representative to -wa~ the property to dJscuss 
conditions, schedules, and" items of concern regarding thitr 
Agreement 

D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its 
residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage .resulting from 
Coutractor's activities aud workwitbln twenty-four (24) hours. 

SECTION 5, COMPENSATION; TERM. 

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the.bistrict 
agrees to pay the Contractor an aroount of Twelve Thousand Fow HnndredEighty Seven Oollars 
and Fourteen ~nts ($12,487.14) per month for an annual total of .Qne Hundred Forty N\ne 
Thousand Eight Hnndred Forty Five J;)ollars and Sixty Eight Cents ($149,845.68). The term of 
this Agreement shall be from August 1, 2019 through July 31, iOiO, unless terminated earlier by 
either party in accordauce with the provisions of this Agreement. The District shail have the option 
of renewing ~ Agreement for two additional one yeat1:ertns -at the-same: price set forth herein. 

. . 
B. If the Dismct should desire additional work or services, or to add additional 

areas.to be·maintained, the Contraptpr agi;ee~ to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional 
work or services: UpOn successful negOtiations, tire Parties shall agree in writjng to· an addendum, 
addend~ work authorization ot change order to this Agreement, to whicl), the. terms of this 
Agreement shall apply in full. The ·contractor shall be compensated for such agreed additional 
Work or ,services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing. 

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment 
to the Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be p~id and require 
evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be sub.mitt~9-to the District 
by those subcontracto.rs, materjal men, suppliers or laborers, and further requiri;:: that the Contractor 
provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall haw 
the right to requite, as a condition precedent to malqng any paymei:it.;. evidence from the Contractor, 
in a f9nn satisfactory to the Districti that any indeb1;edness of th~ Cqntractor, as to ~ervices to the 
District, bas been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to tl:).e 
withholding and paym~nt Qf taxes, Social Security payments,. Workmen's· Compensation, 
Unemployment Coropen$ati,on contributfons, anq ~imilar payroll deductions ftom ·fue Wages of 
employees. 

.3 

5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16OF20B8A5F 

D. The Contractor shall maintain records confonning to usuai acc;:;ounting 
practices. A& soon as-may be· practicable at the beginning of each month> the Contractpr sha_ll 
invoice the District for all services performed in 1:he prior month and any other sums due to the 
Cortlractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date. 
The Contractor may cease.performing se,:vices under this Agreement if any payrpent due hereunder 
is not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such 
s_uppp:rtlng information· as the :District may reasonably require the Contractor to provid~. 

SECTION 6. INSURANCE. 

A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the 
followin~ insurance: 

(1) Worker's Compensation Insurance in accordance With the laws of 
the State of Florida. 

(2) Commercial General Liability· Insuranc~-cov~ri.ng the Conb:'~ctor>s 
legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 combined slngle limit bodily injury and ptoperty 
damage liability, and covering at .I.east the following hazards: 

(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and 
property .damage in connection with any subcontractors' 
oper~tlon. 

(3) Employer's Liability Coverage with: limits of at least $J,000,000 
(ohe million dollars) per accident or-disease. 

(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of.not 
less than $1,000,0()0 combined single limit bodily injury and for 
_property damage, providing ·coverage for any accident arising out of 
or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or ·us~ by t)l.e 
Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired auto.mobiles, tcailers, 
or other equipment req~ired to be licensed. 

B. ·Th~ District, its staff-, consulta,nt~ and $Upervi~o~s shall be named as 
additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No 
certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any 
change or. tepninatio;n, within th~ policy periods of the insurance coverage, 
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written 
notice to the District. Irts.urance coverage shall be from a repµtable 
insurance carrier, licensed to COl'J.duct business in the .State ofF1orida. 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required 

4 

6 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

insurance, the Distrlct h~ the right btit not the obligation to secure such 
requited insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that 
:r:equlfed insurance and shall furnish, p.pon demand, all info1mation that may 
be required in connection with the Districtts obtaining the required 
insurance. 

SECTION 7. JNDEMNIFIC,\TlON. 

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments1 damages, liquidated-damages,-penalties, forfeitures, bapk p~y 
awards,. c_ourt costs_, arl;,iµ:atiOn and/or. medfation costs, litigation expenses, 
attorney :l),es; and paralegal :l),es (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, 
or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 

B. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Distri¢t ap.d its 
officers> agen~ an,d employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, 
suits•.or demands by ~y persqn, corporation or other: entity for injuries, 
death, property damage or other damage of any nature, arising Out of, or in 
connection with, the work to be performed by COntractor. Conti:actor further 
agrees that nothing herein shall constitute 6r be construed· as a waiver of the 
District's limitati9ns on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or any other statute; Any subcontractor retained by· the Contractor 
shall acknowledge in writing such subcontractor's acceptance Of the ienns 
of this Section 7. 

SECITON 8. LlMt)"AllONS ON GOVERNMENTAL L!AlllLlTI', Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity or the Districts limits ·of liability 
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or qther statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation otfaw. 

SECTION 9. CilMl'Ll,'\J'!CJ< W)TH GoVERNMENTALREGULATION. The Contracfo..shall 
keep, observe, and perfomi all requ~ements of applica.ble local, State, and Federal laws, roles, 
regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days_ of the receipt of any notice. Order,. required to corn.ply notice, or a report of a yi.olation or an 
alleg~ci.vjolation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivisiol;l 
there.of with rt;Sp~ct fo the $~rvic;:e~ ~eing rendered under this Agreement or any ad.ion of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to tenns, 
wages, hours, conditions Of employment, safety applian~es, or any other requirements applicable 
to-provision of services, or fails to comply with any requiremeQ.t of such agency within five($) 
days after receipt of any ~ucl}. notice, order~ request-to comply notice,. or report of a violatiOn or an 
allege<! violation. the-D{&rr_ictm~y tenninate th.is Agreement, such tennination to be effective upon, 
the giving of notite of termination. 

S.ECTION· 10. LIENS AND CLAIMS. Tue Contractor s)lali promptly .and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by 1! to perform under this 

5 

7 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63OF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

Agreement .. The Contractor shall keep 1he District;s propeify free from any materialmen's or 
mechanic's liens and claims or notices In respect to suCh liens and claims, whiCh arise by reason 
of the Conttactor' s petfonnance under this. Agreement, and tj-ie Cont_ractor shall -immediately 
discharge any such claim or. lien. In the event.th~t the ContractQr d_p_es not pay or satisfy such 
claim or Hen wi1hin 1hree (3) business days after 1hefiling of notice lliereof, the District, in addition 
to any aJ}.d ail otQ.e_r remedies available under this Agreemen½ "inay terminate this Agreement to be 
.effective immediately upon the giving of notice oftern;dnation, 

SEC,ION 11. OEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY IJ:,rrEllFERENCE. A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle !he oilier to all remedies available at law 
or inequity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief> ~dior 
specific performance. The Dis"trict shall be· solely responsible·for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third paify. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit ot 
impair llie District's right·t<i proieet its rights from interference by a thircl party to this Agreement. 

SEC1'ION 12. CUSTOM AND USAGE. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to !he 
contrary notwi1hstanding, lliat the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agree:ment fo strict accordance with 'the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom 011 the part of the Di std ct IDc :refraillli,.g from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of.the District at any time or times to sJri~tly enfor~e its rights under this 
Agr~ement _shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or marmer contr~ to 
the Specific conditions and agreeme_nts of this Agreement; or as having in aiiy way modified or 
·waived the same. 

SECTION 13. SUCCESSORS •. This Agreement shall inure to the !,enefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, ~xecutors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 

. except as ex_pressiy Hmited fo. t.his Agreement 

SECTION 14. TERMINATION. The Disttict agrees that the Contractor may terminate this. 
Agreement with cause by' pr"oviding sixty (60) days' written no tic~ qf ~~ination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perforrh. accbrding to the tenns of this Agreement,. provided, 
however, !hat llie District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement. The· Contractor agrees that the Di~trict .may terminate this Agreement immediately· 
for cause by providing written notice of terminatjpn tQ the Contractor. The District shall provide 
thirty (30) days; written notice of termination wiU1out cause. Upon any termination of this 
Agreement,. the Contractor shall be entitled to -payment for all work and/or services rendered up 
until thf:! ~ffective tennin:,itit;m of this Agreemen~, subject to whatever claims or off~sets the District 
may have against the Con"b;actor. · 

SEC1'!01'i 15. PERMITS AND LICENSES. All pennit,s and licenses required by any 
governmentaf agency directly for 1he District shall be obtained and paid for by the District. All 
othet pennits oI: license_s necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agr~ement ~h!ill :be 
obtained and paid for. by the Contr!l,Ctor. 

6 

8 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

SECTION16_. AssIGNMEl'ff. Neither the District nor the Contractor maJ" assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of 11;ie other. Ar).y purported assignment without 
such.approval shall be void. 

SECTION 17. lNDEPENi>ENi' CONTRACTOR STATUS. In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shail be acting as an jndepepdent contractor. Neither the Contractor 
nor employees" of the Contractor> if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning
or application of' any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Ole! />,.ge. Laws or 
otherwise, The Contractor agrees to assume all liabi1ities or obligations jmposed: by ·any one or 
more of su:ch laws with respect to employee:;. of the ColltraCtot, if there ate any) in the performance 
of this Agreement. The_ Contrac~or $hall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, or{behalf of the District and tho Contractor shall have no authority to tepresent 
the Dl;.tricl as an agent, employee. or .in any other capacity, unless otherwise _set forth in this 
Agreement · 

SECTION 18. IlEI\D!1'iGS FOR CONVE!lf&NCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither ~ontrpl nor affect the meaning or 
~onstp1ction of any of the_prnvisions· of this-Agre~ment, 

SECTION 19.. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT, A default by either Party und.er this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party tQ all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event 
that either the District or.the Contractor is requited to en:f9rce this-Agreement by court proceedings 
or otherwise, then fue prevailing ·party shall be entitled to 1:ecover all fees .,md ·costs incurred, 
includjng reasonable attorneys~ fees and costs for trial> alternative djspute r~s.olution, or appellate 
proceedings .. 

SECTION 20. AGREEMENT. Thls. instnnnent shall constitute the• final and complete 
expression of this· Agreement between the Pm;ties relating to th~ subject matter of this Agreement 

SECTION 2~-- AMllNDM£:NTS. Amendments fo and waivers pf the provi_sion~ contafoe4 (n, 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 

SECTION 2Z. AUTIIORIZA'IlON. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied, with all the 
requirem~nts of law> and the Pru;ties have full po wet and authority to comply with 1he tenns .ari4· 
provisions ofthi~.Agt¢ement. 

SECTION 2:t NOTICES. All notices, requests; cons~nts _and other communications under. 
this Agi:eement ("Notice" or ''Notices") shall be in writing and shall i,e band <lelivered, maiied by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery Service, t6 the Parties3 as follows: 

A. If to District, 

7 

9 

Bannon Lakes Community Development. 
DlStrlct. 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

With a copy to: 

B. 1f to tne Contractor: 

A.ttn: Di~trict Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A, 
119 S. Monroe S/reet, Suite JOO 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: District Counsel 

Landcare Group,. Inc., 
35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, Florida 32110 
Attn: David Jackson 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon acNal ·delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or ona IJ.on..:business day, shall be deemedieceived Oil the next business day. If any 
time for giving Notice contafoed in this-Agreem.e;n,t would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to th~ next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States govenunent shail not be regarded as business days. 
Counsel for.the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices. on behalf of the Distii~t 
and the: COntrac{9r. Any party or other person to·whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addresSees of· any ~hange. in name or address to which NOtices shall be Sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice t9 the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 

8ECT!ON 24. Tll!IU> P AR1Y BEi'iEFICIARIES. This Agre¢ment is solely for the benefit pf 
the Parties hereto a:n.d no right or cause of action shall accrue upofi or by reason. to or for the 
benefit of ahy third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intende·d or shall be construe4 to ~onfer upm;i any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy• or claim under or by r.eas~m ofthjs A.gree~ent 9r 
any oft};t~ p,roy.lsi1;ms or conditions· of this Agteetnent; and all of the pro'\'i$i.9n~. representatiqns, 
covenants, and. conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of aiid. shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and Their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

SECTION25. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 
qont~ed jn this Agreement shall be cOnstrlied, interpretecl, and controlled accord4tg to thy laws 
of th~ State of FlQflda.. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be St Johns County; Fiotlda. 

SECTION 26. COMl'LlANCE WITH PUBLIC l{ECOJID~ LAWS, Contractor understands and 
~grees that all <;locuments Of any kind provided to the District in connection with thi~ Afileement 
may be pubHc i:ecords, and, accordingly; Contractor' agrees to comply •with all applicable 
provisions ofFl.oridaiaw in ha,n,di~g ~uchrecords, inciuding but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Flo1'ida Statutes. :Contractor acknowledges that the design~ted public records custodian. for the 
District is its District Manager ("Public Records Custodi~n'"). Among other requirements and to 
the extent applic~ble by law, the Contractor shall I) keep and maintain public rec9rds required by 
1he District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide tbe 

8 

10 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

District with the requested public records or allow the fecor~s to be lllSpected ·or copi~d within a 
reasonable time period at a Cost that does hot exceed_ the cost provided in Chapter 1191 Florida. 
Statu_fes; 3) ~µsure ill.it public records which are exempt ot confidential) arid ex.empt from ·public 
tecords disclosure ·requirements, are not di$l9sed except as authorized. by law for the duration of 
the contract term and followirtg:the contract term ff the Cont;ractor does not transfer the record$ to 
the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of tl)e contract, tran.sfe1 to 
the Distrh;t, at no cost, all public records irt Contractor•s· possession or~ alternatively, k¢p, 
maintaln and Iµee~ all applicable requirements for retaining public records-pursuant to Florida 
laws. When such·public rei:;..or(ls are transferred by the ContractOr, the Contractor Shall destroy any 
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and ex~pt from public records disclosure 
requirements. All records stored electronically mps_t be provided to the Distri~t 1P-a {oII11,at that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF TBE CONTR,\.CTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDlNG THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119; FLOJ/HJA STATf/TES, TO TBE CONTR,\.CTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO nus CONTR,\.CT, CONTACT TI{Jl: CUSTODIAN 
OF PUBLIC RECORDS JIM OLlVERAT (904) 940-5850 OR 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, 
SUJTE 114, St. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 3Z092. 

SECTION 'J.7. SJSVE!WULITY. 11,e jµvaHdity or unenforceability of any one or niore 
provisions of. this Agreement shall not affect th.e validity or enforceability of the remafoing 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held fu be invalid or unenforceable. 

SECTiON 28; ARM'S l.ENGTll TRANSACTION. This Agreement has beeh negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's lenroh tra,nsactlon. Th~ Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistan¢. of their r.espect;iv~ J!O)lDsel. In thC case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation Of any provision .of this Agreement, the Partfes. are each deerp.ed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubiful language will not. be inteipreted 
or i;:onsfrqed against aµy party, 

SECTION 29. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when-executed ·and delivered_. shall constltute an original_. and such
~oun,terp;µ-1:s together shall constitute one and 1he same instrument Signature. and apknowledgment 
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of 11ris document 
to physically form one document. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTlONALL Y LEFT BLANK] 

9 

ll 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

JN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parlics hereto have signed and soaled this Agreement 011 
the day nnd year first written above. 

Attest: 

Secret / Assistant Secretary 
Board o · Super'Vifiors 

Print Name: .'Ta.to u, ◊I< V<..r 

ATI'EST: 

Exhibit A: Proposal 
.Exhibit ll: Landscape Areas Map 

U/\NNONLAKli:S COMMUNITY 
l))<:VELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: Av+ La1-,..,e~a•~tlr~c--.----
lt,,: __/;J,a~•c~mu· ~4~:o~-------
lloard of St1pe1visors 

LANDCARE GROUP, INC. 

By:~~==~-~·~_'_, ____ _ 
Print: ~=I' ______ _ 
Its: PIIM!4f.!ir: 

10 

12 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

11 

13 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

\'\Lr 

Land~ GrQup: 
35 Ent"ei'prise br, Bunnell, Florld.a-32110 • Main Offlce:.'{311_~)51i"G-33i:t,~Fax: (38"6).'58653330 •wwwJ3ndcareg_rp.com· 

AUa~l)metJt 'A,' 
l>;t~c1iOa'J,SpeOJ(i9~1io~S for.c.oJlttitC1, L.~n ·~cape .Mainten;ujQ*, f9r;: 

Eastland Partners. tLC: 

The work for t~e Cxteriorfandscape maintenance is to ind114e the~ rni51iini-~of;ill lab%·materlal!i,·equ{pment; a.:cessorl"es 
.tJl..ii:-sefvlces." neC:essary Q ;- inddt:ni~J ·fO ~lis"tain: a1h11ffa lld. plan(m~t~riaJ_i; f ti:"a ·h~althy, .vitdrO(JS'·gro~lt1"g iOf1dltiO.n; f (ee 
Jr?m W.t{IJ:d~,-dl5eas~~; i"nsec~; ·a!)d }!tl!(ltlo_,~~~ :d~fti:.!~.Jldef a.s•~eU •a~· ii ~ompl1;t~lv. ·~pet:itJ0.n.~(jff{g~j\qli systflri, NI 
assocfated {llan!:ed_.areas are ·to. be kept In a.•continuous healthy; nea.1, dean a"'nj:I debr(!i free condltlo!l for (h_e entire-life of· 
.1he i:OhlraCt:. The i:on\r-1dor W11i be e)(rected :to·_ii.rovlde SeiYke'for the pro~erty ilfty_-tw.o_.js2( weeks)ierye;:il',, 

SCHEDULE '!A" -'3EN_ERAL ~ERVICES 

A. Turl.Mafotfnance 

Tm[ mafntenancs fs·ii6finedas ad.mowing,, eq,iJg_, trimming and cleanup (!/lawn .areaS, 

1. MOWli\~ of"Comffion Area 

.b. St. A.ugu!;tlne tu"ffs!liill•be mewed v,ieekly.durlngthe'growlrigseasorl'fr\"l'rrt Ma"fcf1"1Si;,thr'bµgh:Oi:Job"_er 
'1~!1' a"nd)~ necd_ed du,rtl'fg *e:non-gro~ifi&·.s~:a~~~--frqm:oCtob.er ~s-.,·1~rqt.1_gl) M~rel\;(s"';·· ~~slld: 911 
this.schedule,. it"ls esJlmated."tfiat tl!e conttacfor wlll per(orm a mfolm~fI) "9f .4-CJ'.arid·a maxlml!m of4 2' 
.mo>11lng,"f:ydes PtfU·ll'l9rith· period ln: the j)erforq1arice. Qf t.h!~ contrau:i lt Is und4ts.lbod th;it th,e 
ip~traCw m.a:v I:!~ Jequlied t~ perio~IC_all'f ~4d: Or d,ele\f"mQ\\'ihg ·cyth_s-b~sed o~ ~e~t):itii" iir "ll.l!lti{ 
factors.beyond ihefr-cOR\rol 

.r;,. 8a°hla' IJiff sha\i_he mowed W4ekiy d.ihlng ~he gl'qW!ng season f(of!\0 AP1ll h_t 1h1o!lgh:Qc;,o½t 1l< and as 
needed'durfog "the-noil-g~owlng season ·rrorli •October 1.,.·1hrough.Aprll 1si;. Bami O·nthls scheduie,.At Is 
·estl(flated ·1hqt-thecontradorw1II perform a mlnlmum.of-36 ;md .ama/'i[mum of-4o·mowln~ cy_des-per 
12.-mont_l) ·perfo~I ro Jh.ll Perform an.(~ i:inhi.s,r;onlni.:t;, It Is lJ!!Cfersto(!d,,tl}iit. the -~pf\Jtaft.r.-l)'l~y.he 
required to periodkally add or delete mowing .:ydes ·based on weather or otlier Tadors beyond t"helr 
control 

~- ,51, [Wg~sth;ip arnl. Ba_hta ~u tsh.ill, ~e ~~~ \yll.h rola_fy rl)PW.efs tp mei.ntaLri a -urlffytm )!elfih,t~ Mowtrg 
)Japlis, ~11.all_.b~ ~e.pt ~-u!fid~ntlv sh;i"(p anfpr,op_erJY _apJusted_ \o prov!.d~'a,d~anly:cut grus b.1/l~ti~ 
Mp~lng p:i.\\ern :Shal_l_'be.-vari.:W wherl;!. fei!~ibfe-tq pr~ve•ht rut.ting .ind {lli11!m!~~, colllp~lioh,. 

P~gel 9f21 

12 

14 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

e, Mowin,-helght far.St. A11g~tine and.Bahia lurf will be.Jet at 3W ko 4i';. 

(. ,?oySJ.i, tUrfsliall li,e !JlOWed based on 40 to 42:m·owlnk cycles p~f;1.Z-JJ1i.in.th period:fn.ih"~ ~erF~rm;ihce. 
t'.' f fhls· ~O/lltij\'..t, '.ff J · und.e~rto.od \~at !h~ 1:orll.rj\ctqr m~y ,lie ~1<quk~d. G p.~rjot!i9a.l!Y ~d~ o ( 9\!~e.t~ 
.mowing cv.d!lS biued.o.n weal!\ef ot otber·!a,tom 

&[' iOVfl~ ,turfshall b.e tU,tvtiih/frotal"{ mower't{l.rnaiitt;ilJl a" uniform height. Mowjng blail!;lbf\ail~.~e ke'pf 
stllliciently sharp c1nd properiv·adJusted to provide a.cleanly·cut grass.blade, Mo\Ving pattern sha·u be 
'W•rjef~t)efe 1~.a~lbl~ to ptey\!nt'r,u.ttirf;,ar)~ rb_iriifl!ll~'C()(!ieact!ol}: 

·~ Mo·wiii_E height forZoysla turf will be setal: i"-1:o -3h, 

Vlslbit: dfpp!n9s t!)at 111.ilfli.~ lefi rOlioWJnf.mp'wh'I~ Opeia"tlorls,slfali be:re(llb.v.eQ froJtl th!:! site ~l!th V\sit. 

J( .contraqot will' take :..speciill ,care io·preveni .~arnag!l •to plan.t material· as, a· (e.sult, of·the mowing 
,Operations. An'{ daitlaAe: cauSed;by t:'cilltr.~ctor's mo~ln& ·iiqlllpinent·may'-mlllt In the_reptab;rrl.eB\ O f; 
diii'(l;_Jged ma~~ifal, ?~.tJe c~nlf.~~\\)r\S. co~\, J1.eplacenie1_1i:nJ~~~rJat V~U ~~~9JsJfll\J~r }t~~~lo f~e· fUat1W.af 
being.replaced. 

Sldewalh; curb$,.(o/lcttte: ·slabs and Other paved.-s~rfac,e,S,wlll b·e edf;ed iri. tonJu/lction with niow·ln'g 
,o~eratl9n~. Ed~illf,ls defined as removal oJ unwanted turf fr9m the:abo.ve menthined bordet.s by.,us~ 
·of a /llechanjca) e~,er. Strl11g l!lmmen. wllj no~ be used for th.ls function/ It Is ljqderstoo.4 tha( edi:,ln~ 
IJ'( b.eds,and hard. surfaces· will b·e slipped periOdkally·to iet the .turf fill in.and/or·thld.en _tlie vert1cal 
e~e,• ·· 

a, SitlngJi\Rlmlnphilll be p~rformed aroJJnd road.si'gns; 11,..uard:pos'ts,ir~es.~lirubs, lit(ll(V·poles; anil otliet 
,ob~t~cli!:( ·wherii rrioWe/'~,cantiot: reilc~. •Grafoshall· be trimmed lo. the mtie (ie~ire·ti. helgh.t.:ts 
~llterrrl(Qt;d by.th,e'.mowink'ppe[atlon._ ''r:rlmmlnnhan bt.cwri~leted~witb epcJi.1110\vlii._c·operation~ 

.b, Malntalnln.g gnm-fr.ee·area~ hV use-of c~emk.als m:11yhe the ~r.eferred metho.d lrHertain·-a_pplii:.atfons. 

-c-.· ·ru~f'around \he.e,dge·of;I!! watervi~ys __ shan··1ie.m.i:,~e_a' ot:Strfng tr1rqmed !P-.thi;!.natu~al \\!ilt!!r'.s ed&~ 
·doting each mowing cycle. ltiS undersfood '!:hate.very effort wlll bi! made to·.keep dipping~ out-ofwa•iei 
b'odie.i, btit lne.vitabty_ soine.d!pp_lng~·-w111 g~t ill the viilter\vlth-~i'ev.i1Hn(wirid. 

13 

15 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

<I. Blowing 

p... w~en !,!sip€\f<11Ced alfina<;hinerf!.o 11l~an~ur~s; Sldey.,al~S11n~ othef p~ved:su!fac:es, care mu·s1 be!a'ken. 
t;,'pi'eVerit !}low_Jng·gra.ss ~-Ippi_Jlgs l!,llQ·Pe~s. Qnlo v.eQici~s .o.ron\o,otlwr ~ilf~{;cap_El~!lr1,(l~f\. •. 

. b. .CQ)llra~torwlll b.8-expti:te"dlO, bl.ol'ioff!he len111s·courts·;:p!ckteball c()urts; ~area:alld .ill enlfY.j)oinls 
.and•ofhr.S!mllara enUfe~ ·-· · 

5.. Damage Preve1;1l1on_l~epaf( 

Bf b.elaif' 

.sp_e!faJc;;lr~ $TI ~~liltBWo ~f~t~<;t.b~!td(n~ fou.p~atlof!!i; ljgl)I P9J,s,,.1~n:p9sjs·a.11Jt.,~.lb~r h:3-.ril~pe 
efements from.mowing, edging or str1ng.trtmrnlrlg .equipment.damage. Contraclor will agree lo;have 
:repai(S niade by-sp·C9afized COnlracloi"s ~rre\fnbu'se !he aSS0ClaU011. or homeoWni!i"S.Wilhlh-30 days for 
11_ny ga!llage lo. pr_operty .caused.by l~~!~-9{~~ m~rn.b~ris. or ~qµ)'pfll~p.l,· M_ufol) ~ are.r~comm.e~~~~ 
·1n areaswhere etjulpmenl m~y,come 1n oontael w!lhfh'e abOve,sta\e;filerns. 

.fi:,& d"etailifl{f proc~s. wli(lnclu~ frfm(ning; ('11Jl}(t'lg· ;rnd· shapfng' .o_f all ~h/uhbeiy;. Q.rfiDme.h.fiJ}/f(;}ft!i _aµ.:_· 
groql/efdaver, r(!maYal at .f!ee_ ~wkt;t.s;.sJrqCt1fr{J} PrUi({ngrpt1,;(ey;1 vfifietfi;;, o;pf/lflt inqtsr(.ajal,'d__. Of(IClmMi!l¥ 
qras.se~:as_ (!irec(ed; as_. Well ,?s fl]e dsUrrinJt.o!~ed )Ines, tree ~utEl:m: a"pd.thttrefTIP.Vafofalf Uv,ll(anted v.f:gel~f(on. 

f; Erunlng 

a. prune trees, shtUbs and grouhdcov"ers,lo ~nt:o"Urage heallhrgrOwlti arid crea1a·a·na1ura1appeili'ance, 
Prune to·colllrol lhe new plant growlh; mainlaln ihe desired planlshape·and remove dead, damaged, 
or diseased po1iions nfthe plani. Provide remedlal attention and repalrlo planl malerial asapproprhde 
lo season orin response lo lncldenlal damap:9. 

b; eru!'llng.oiJrees llf1. 1{1'a h·elgiif o.1.1 leet_~·JJ:i~!uded2111 lh~_scopeorthe:w.qrk:; lf,prunli:,g'kreqllfrii!d above 
lh~ lt!})g°hlo'f3 fe¥). ~~Hl\lfl._cjor ~ propos~ 'R¥~ira:_sery~ t9 Jl'!B.ni\geme.n\•atld acqlilre <Jpprovai p(!or 
lo perf~i-miniJJh\!-WO(k,: ·The)r~pi;h111!1)1e!gl:lt. Oflrees :5ha!t I;,~ @1~~ pjlly ronho foliowfog reasqns;-

~ · Pt.ovide c_leat~n9eJOJ pedesiri!llls, smqll'lehl.cles; mowers:afld bqHdlog·1t 
• • Malnl11in qh;ara.~ fro~ ~llfl!bS;iR ~ed ~re.~s. • 
~. il)lprove vis[~!HIY II} p~r~lng !o!~.a!ld ~cound ~n.lr!.e.~~ 

c. P.rnne tretlS. lo rem<>ye weal!;_branchil)~· .patterns _1irjd, ~rovide. corte#lve. prunlfiJ! for p.(oper 
,development. C\lflial:k·to braheh i:olla"f Wilhoilf !CaVlriQ sliibs .. Pr<lvide deilil. liri.d fluSh.cUI' with· iio 
tearfrtg orthelree b8.rir:. 

Pageii g"fl1 

14 

16 



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 13O63OF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16OF20B8A5F 

<1· eruM ~II: ~hJ~l:i_berfio.:acc.imlen\:e will! t_h -arChliesturaJ .i111~11t_ .J!i 1.1 reli!_l s_ !_ci il.~f:!bJ!.1_t! p!~r:i~il)gs_ aiyd 
in!~_n,tfi;i_d, !.U_g~llo,n: 

e, Prune lo <:Oftl~ln' perjm·eter'g_rowth ~i;hiri· intended "!>l;ld. area it., EslabRshed, groundcover -_s1!311" be 
)n_ainh1!nel:H" -l9 &~_away fto.nl adjaceolbaidscifpe and lull. M<1.ltJr~_g:,0UridcoY~i S;hallJ>e.:malnlaiy~d 
.:;!I a"IQ;ins\sle'_nl. iev_ei l]ei9ht 19 {i1ci :-,_lde:~:sm,ci'.ollwlll .e\iel:i:appearan_c~ _an~ 1l"eparallon from~*djac_1fnl 
planlmal;e~(a(_ · · 

f-c Cra))e_ty\yrlles-'(re H> IJ.@'.~111~9.ilp~_perye~rirlt~e·,v1_lnleJ tnonl~s: THmm!P9 ~holi!!I lno(Ode relOOV~_l 
.of old bfooms;•sucker growth and any-cross, branchln;; Trfmmfng i;hould be done ill ~uch a way-Iha! 
ciltS are i,o.fess than 12" aw~y froln PreviClus ye;1r.1;,,cu1s;. ·1-h!al _Rac.idrtt•~iJI nqt __ be-petuiliie·<J .uiileSS 
-91nt~led."o.lh~r.Wis~ ~y-~qag.-rne~t._. - · 

g; l:1rllning o(all palms less thc1n.12' Cf\n h_elght will be:!nclud~-1rln .lhe.se\:tional IQ!alion. Pnmlngconslsls 
Of femqya_i _of ail d.ead"Jrodd$·, seetlpods.a:ttda_l!y foQ~~'~ools, 

2, Edgltig 

a, Ed 1f9 fs dBl!ned as remollaf.of unwao·1ed Vege1a1ion: lllng beds alid t_ree:sa;ucers, l:dges •ae lo be 
_per1_1ii~dh.;11laf _1o;iheJ1r;:iun!J. .-

c. c_arewill be lak~n Jo malnlalh bed·e~m!s . .ir-ideslgned ln.ellher slraighf or c:urvlUnear lines. 

3. Weed Control 

t, General 

a, ~~d ;uea_s. ar~r.l~. b!MPf;fyed. afh1( eac~,dp_laJJ. s{rv_i~,, f.lll,.8£4 P'!SJ•el!l'!!Qe.ri_t·~b~mi_ca!s;_!!.f.~ afpepl~.ble 
-~i'!ljs~fconl{QI,• . 

b. Ha1dscape ~acks and expansklil jplnJ's,are robe sprajed in conJuncllon wilh lhe .. delail cycle to tontrol 
weeds. 

1. Pol!clngfS1_1ec[al .Maintenance 

'a. C:Oniraclorwilfpciilc.e·.1he grounds on each-tervice'vlsilto remove ltat.h; debrkrand'faltilrflree ·uu~r-less 
than 2,' 1~ ~Jlm!ller, ~'!!}\raclof is ,10tr~sponsl~!8 ~<:!' fl-!rn.~v_al;o.f ~ce~.iy~ s!.~r{f\?~f:b_rf; W~lo~would 
'be:performed with prior approval. 

~---~Q!)_lra~IOJ wlti .ded_i!'.;ale. per~o/rn_el_-an1 speJ~!fze~ ~:qy'lpll)~.111 fo~ i!l~-_rep:1o_~ai ofseason,~1 ie"!'f drop 
·from all landscap_e and_hardScap_.e areas du rind th.~ moplhs of Novemberlhroug~ l:',p1~: 

15 

17 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

"f... ¢0.ml'!lunjs_ati!)n 

st; ·rft.c• ~n.t@ctot' Will. ti;l/liini.fnlcat.e w!Ui nta·n<ag~/llt::nt .(qr :-iC\V 1.ano'S-.tfa)lC lm1~ ,eqllliiff~ ll'Phif;q!J!te 
:~~en\lqn. · · · 

b. •b:11\fta'dor.a~ees lQ ta1te_patfj{i IIloii.th'fi fllSpeit{ori~ of thej:irDPeity .td.ehSuce i:he!r ii'~rftimlall<.'e of. 
WI~. agr~,e,rri~l1t· ift'.ef~· tije ;;~~~ard~. requl~d bi:.i'9W ;'lp.d prot~~lf. fti!t: ?V~t~II ·v/eit,b~lnt •of th.~ 
,pmpertfslandscarr!, Coniracfor ..ilso.aJ~I-ees to com.pleb! anywo* ttiatapr.ears on punih IISts rcsul\ing, 
fr6tn l~i?c;IJo·ns Ot l'iY\f:w!;::Wltlilll thfe~ ·w;~eksbfieielVirift\1,e!Jl, Cont(:icf9i: Wl~l,h:l:J"C. tfieii" ACcn\lht 
Ma)rigc;t-pafti~JP:a.te. .9rl'its ~etialf ~nd; tiav~-'\lf~ir .~V(.n; an~ Ornament;il_ in,d. !rfi~t.ioll~ M.:;(rl',tg~~'Ot' 
T echnklans.avallable-Jf.needed, 

e-: <routf.ai:tp(Will ~ f~qllir~d lq fn►li.ita\Jl.ilfi11.~@•~ti\fe,l.'/~P 5lf¢~r-:a 4\stotll¢f-)!.eJVk~.W~(~ Qi:~!!:r'iySJeni 
'(so•ftware1'.thai:-wil! .iHow· milna,g1m'cnt tb milke direci:·COniact fur.5ejyfoe:r'e9µes.ts .1nd/oreltita Work. 
llie-.Web site also mustbe'set up to alert prpperlt ma 1'1"4(;~ment::whe11 tequeS.ts become_delinql!ept;· 

q.: ~i:ifr-t~X a_gr1;c~ }~ ~i'.ll'~ ~·q!1~1m~.'f119,\it~.iiq~t ~ya.ll~hlt; Y!·i!iSP.J;q f!nl~~l;.~ h1?m~·~Jl~~~(:.tJ.1:1ns·1?f 
common area fur the·purpose·,of aa:epting-them for ma inrenance sel'Vlces:, The·rontra,totwill De .a~l.ed 
td fofrioilinh:aie via mCflitiiand\l.m\On.tliei{WillingriCSS;fu.a;~pt S:OiTljjl~(e4 ~r~S dfsiate' d~flcl~hi::1e's 
~Qa.~ Jlree!9.Qe;,;re1?~.i;t.!=~: · · ' 

2. Staffirig'. 

a. lhe CoO.fractOr shilll have,a" wi:llieJlperiented kco1.111t Manager;. This per$on.should,~ave·e,itemly~ 
. klidwle'd~'C' OJ hoftku\tU/-al pfitdicl::S,-~nd b~ c;ipii~JC -Of'prqj:,etly supekrlsing c!tfief~. He/she.and Qttie'i 
'SUR!:l)'~ots *~l,l.(~ he !ri~ -~~ta.lh-w°fl.!! ~n.!fPP'!l!1·.~'.lt_4GJl11guJsh_~.!fi!;!'P lr<!l'!I \fo; tf.~w_; Th~ ,\t_q:,.~,I)! 
l\llmager'.w\1h':ommunicaie with the property's staff, fn· order lo .maintain r:oritfnulty,.the.samc' Account 
M;in~'i;i:~r-S1\ .. ii.Jl~e'ijt ~e -i~heduied Jrialriti-han_i'~ ~j,"etatltirls. tkroU,ghOJJ\ tli~ )'~iir~ A~i ·,.'f.tlcl~,ate'd 
·r;qa·n_ge.t Jn supj:J\lfsP_ry·pe1.5qnneJ sJ:ial! lie ~!_(!Ug~t tQ ,tt1e:~~P.l!f!.n qh'rl11_n11g,m·~, P!1Pr ~ ~VV sui,lt 
c:hange.. Th!$ wm assilre the Co~sultant and llilana~men't-thiit-'m;ili_t.lenanCe personnel·remafn.farnJliar 
\.,.ll\l·.the.tfl'aiiitefl'ilri\:i;fspi::CifiCi\)IBn\:the•"site ~ria'·aOY, clianC:io~ COiilb'lioJ1s. 

b. 'The r;rew mem'ber.; stiotild lie prop,erly lraihed.to c.irry oul:,their.a~si81.wd b.~k~ a1ui.~hoo[d work in a 
-safe p'iOfi::SdO·r;al lllanllei'. EaCh,tieW JTl'erribef ~fiou1it bC \n;fiill Ulllfum'l·at ~11.tl.rh!'ls lo incl'lldb a11 ralri~ 
cold ~~a"1tt ~~a!' _andh,!;_ts-: 

c. ·_AintractOr Is: expe.ded lo_ Staff .the. p_rc,,~erty .wi~.~ 'ital_~e~· •P.ersonnel cxper.!t:nce~ In co~mercliiJ 
'\~ridsp!p'e 111alrtenani:l!t. fl-ii pe.r;:Q.nnef Op plying fertill,:i!cy1 lnSei:µcides, hf!rbldiles ,111.d ~o~ld~a {Tlils.t 
be 61,rtilie~.~y \he.fl Qe.par~!'J;-1!t ofA·gr\Cylhlie anc:!.~n~!lme.rSeryic_ci. Th~s11: lfl~.ivld~_als sro.yM ~~ 
Best ~iinatement Pr.ictices Certified and hold"a Um1ted :certlli~~loi:i for Utban.land'sr:ape Commerdal 
Fertli(i.fir-~r .J ·0:r.tlfi~P,'. P~st CQht'r9,I J)pef'ltor qr 3q j::iriploye.e-Witli ,n. lQ-cii.fd. working_ Under' fh~· 

iS!Jf!~.fYJs~i?O' (!fa~: . . 

d Colltriekif-agi.eelto,~cre~n an·~~W ffietilb'#'~.for .diinlilal p"ackJ!:roiillif, iQvl.~j; fy'!ana'gemeiit.il.iid. tiPt 
-!'i'ITIP.J<.i~ .. P¢iiPi.' (or ~tS.:O,fltr;tj:t thi!t ~11.1!~ bee_(). CQri~'i,;t~q' of pf P,1!!:4 ~lily "rP, .a. (eCfi{ly·_qf~~-Atw, 
'Contraetor ~grt;c~$ 'to follow, al) iMS· guldelifles 'for hiring.and la Jlla!ni.ain an l•!t •ahil-other., required 
,doclimeil6i On-.e'adi ettijl!oyC.e-. 

16 

18 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

e1 .Con~cior k~p'l'i\e~ lef.s~f{:lh~ P,r<1pe·rt.ywi\lra~q.\r~klv. ~Jo!lniq P~t;?n,n~l-HoJ@;1:ys ob~Ne4 \~i 
·do •n?J:. requir~ .staffin~ Include ·wew-Yeilr!s-,Day; ~emori~f Day, Jit.de.p.e:m;\ence .D;i;y, la~or• 'Day, 
~-!cs~_ivii;tg' oa,J fod l,:lfristlf\i;!i D~y •. tlOrrtiiif ~or~ln~ h~~rs'.:tf~ fi'~ffl_,7:Q~A':4 Until ?~00.l'M'. s:at\iTd.ii?~ 
-~il! \ir;~~{~~vaJ!;l!:11.e ~.r m~keup:wClr~~d1Je io,l(li:\e_m~n~'WE?thj:f f!Oti, ?)09.AIY! µhtil 5:fr./1, 

'SCHEDULE''B".F- TURF CAREPROG'RAM JS'r~ .AUGUSTINE); 

Application. 

~rdl: $prirlg)tranufar fertilnai:iOn,. brtiadfea1 Wee~ coni:rol, insect ;1nd·.dlsease CQnlrol 

JUly,: 

NOtiii'SQine rfppiii:bb.bhS.. l'fi1l.~e:. wmbfiiii-J /6( eiJicfen'ij~ App)ir:lit!OriS j:Ot'ilie oPPeQ ;r;-..Je/et~d:baSefi pil tcW 
;ri1tt1Pl°it, ayaii,q"qi//~y.P[ ptvPU.C.1:$ .Or iiu:iu'.~ntwea,thei;. 

1. Fert.~[iatlon 

·a. ,Annual.pfogr.iini W.U.1,lfli:_h'ide'-li:lllin!ITiuiitPf S: !ht of N/1orxi'squlirefe.et·witli a fulnlm\inf of SO% 5loW 
f~:(ea~e::.tod lf hi&ti 'i>!?t!$.Sil.!11/bjen~· IJ1·~i;: fall-furtiii_z.1,tio.Jt to P,rQmote ~Pt. d,e;velop,ff!~! unJe~s-~o)I 

:sampledndlcafe·the r.reserice ofsuffiden t 'pqhmium. · 

b: ·Nl fert)ih!'=t/> utlllit!d uf,:der ~Js prp)~hfm flre.to'b~ C_U5tom·l:;il¢4~dri\tfi:.ii b\llanceJt nll\rfen~Jf:ip{i!g."e. "t,.. 
~m.1?t,.*~ rn\nor l!~~ ~ra~e-el!crneyitjl~tkage: w'I\I ~.e fru;li!d~ W!\h·~~ch :j!Ppllca;:i(!!l 1(?~_fi!;ur~.lp:a:t,all ~~ 
requlr~menb: otgr:asses-are met. lfsoll s1!1mples Indicate.a hltih pH, alt fert.J\l'(ers Utilii:ed.wlH be s·ulphur 
-~"-~d-p:toil'.U:t:1:st . -

f~·g~B ~lf~t: 

17 

19 



OocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

~ .All hard~c1lpe surf.!ces.i!re to.t~ bl9WrrofHmm-edliltely fol!Dwing:a rertlllier•·apjllicailon to prevent 
.sta_iriing.. 

!I• ·.soHs.sliaff i>e.. \i.!fi~,!a i't.il ~Ila bk t.c.Jli(lg.f;idjl[y lWlt:e'p,er. 'fi:il.t l.o)'qbriltof fqr pH. alid C:hemh:;il Ql.i~e-up. 
l'tie:i,is'.uits wllj be·provid!?'d .to' m.ima&emen1:-along ¼1th· the ~n.tracV;ir'S r1;C:q:mm~nda~idn ':IS:, '°-:arly 
·changcs.!n the ~urf.r.arepro_g.am base_d on.these results, 

a, Tlle·reducli'on of irrl'gafion:wai~r-.dufing the·wlnter season WIii cframatkaliy-redute i:he _poietitl;;I 'for 
rung~sidiseii:id pYObJellls.,0:i.nti'acfor'w\\l. De re-spoo~Me to jnanaip Sfulrl.cl:,O('lrr;;a_tio)\ tiii:t.li?S; 

!:!:· 'S_upph;)JJ"ntaJ IQsect!~d·e11PP.licatl'orts y,-JQ ~pro'4di;d ~.a.i!dttlon _tq-~e ritirm?) f!ft;Yi;ntJve v.ro;rarrra; 
m;eded. to .Pfo\ild~ ~otttr!)J. 

·a, Weed oonfrQI wtll be l!mifed_ to the.broadfoal.variety un1,ler this program, 

A • .Warrnntx 

J( i~e·gt~s~ c9yerl{~fun9~{ !,his lurf µre Pr/:Wi,l(!.l.cll~ ij_u~ ~9:if!s~ct f~f~f?,~on, ili~asi:=.~r lr!f PfOP~f (eril)l~r 
appl~tfo~ithe _,lffucted ~ss. Will be rcplat;e'd a trio c_harge, Con Ir actor ~11 not be. h~lilJ'eiponsi_!>J~ for)_urf, 
lqs_s'.d.ll~ tb g:uii:(iti.oni Pe~_o,id ~~Jl'oo.ntro!;· 'Thlt'lrn:::lucl~.(ntiiJ,at?".ch;~, dtse~s~ 5µi:li ;;-s}'\ltt;·All Ro'qt R9.t' 
,!If\~ -,ve!"tkt1,1cli_ ~$ c;ia~g~SSV/hlt:tt il(e \l!l.b;e:~t.i.h!e :,,.,ifl:i fUrp:!;!Jt'tY·:1va:¥•?!~ .cben;i/11::ils~•.nig!Ja .\r.~wc ~ro;as, 
:dralnag~ ;eroblems;_ or acts :of.God, fri thC e'{ent: .tliese _condltlb~s ar~ p~~lstrng; the con~?ctpr Is 
'(1cJflQ11sjb\if~ ~wp!9y1Wh11li!.v.er·c.ult1ir.~I Rr<1~tia;s,<:a.fl-~e I"\lso11'a~).Y, pepi:irnfed 11? ~l(~J1j::I d1~1!fe. ,;i.( 9'~ 
afftt:t.edniateriaL 

A, APPlicatiti"iiSthedu!e 

18 

20 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 130630F2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

~C;omp1eie Uqtiid 11Hl•B N?~•K.'fer.llllz~.,md broaaleafweed control lo Include hfanket 
P.re-e'rttergent herbicide applkaiioll: 

t;ofllPle.t~li!1~1Q '.!.8:Q•B'. N;'-.f.-i<:'fertlih~r.'i!.rl~ br6.a.~l~afv,:e.~d.:i;pntt01)i:riJidµd,(J;il~n.lt~. 
p{~i;_~i;rg!mtJ'le:rJ;?fu.iq~ ap~lfqti?Jt~ 

Not'e!.Somf! upplk'dtlimnVill be r»mbfn!!difor.ej/lifency.• App/kulions can li!! added ouJeletecF 
~O~f#ef qfl..sqi/SamP./~:s~ p{!P/1abil/fY. o/'prodli~;Qf~fl[l!!'Q{ We[!lJ'ii:r1 

$, A"pp1\fationRt:(Jufremecilli_ 

~., AJJnuii.f'prpgrall\ wi!rlilciu4!:= ~ .rni.~ffJ!U!l\.f:l(~.\~~ 9f Jf/1@qsquaJe ft;~t. ~ti;\ a_.m!h_if!}U~ of 11~ ~N\Y 
release and a higt, Potassium blend in the late summer fertlllution-tci piomote toot divelopment unleS5 
J,;,il .s;imPle~ mdlcai~•th~i,prfs_~~C~ ohufflt.l~i pf:J~.sil!ti'i, ' 

b:. A!Jfuftil/z~rs uillli.edunder thiS pr~gfain'ate to be·custom blendedwith'a halanted ht!trilill{ p;rcltage:. A 
coijipJete tlJ!l\oi' at,d tiai:e erern~nt paCkag4 w.il! bl! lndUd#\ with eath aflpUi:a~n t{J etnur.e. that-all~ 
ti:!ctl\infmenJ.s ofgr~s~~ ,re met,• I( s9i_l s,liff}pl~s'\11~\ca~,~ hlgh P.{i, al(fe:'r~liiets uljliz.i:.d \YijJ .tie S,ur Pfo,it 
coated produc.~ 

¢.: ,/1,U har~µlpe ·surfyice;;,•a~ tD b~ ,h_loWJ\'off !lllm.edi;i,t~Y. fO\lawlJ1g .a f~rt.i)\~~'r 11PP:ilca.tlOn tp (ifevet,r 
:~!nll'!g; 

·e; :"!iojkshalf~:L.!si1cd ;;ta·relliibie tesii11gfacillty l.wlce l?eryea:r'fo moniiol'(or pl-hod chemical makeup. 
"The. ~\JU:S 'will be PtoVided to tnimiag,;in'6Tlt;iilongi'with•1he C:olitr.i~tor'i ·re~me~d:i.tlol\ liS' tQ,all'{ 
:~h:i..i\ffes in th~ twfcare p.rpl?"ain'~as.~nfi'tfo:Se. i'e-suits. 

2. losed/Dl1easec'ontrol 

A' The~reduc_tfo'\l·ofin!gatilin water, ~urjog the, Viii.n~r ~.ason, vi\114.fitl,l'i.it(f.ai!_y r.e.4uf~ tJi1l:·po~entlai f:or
fungus/di1e<1se prohlems:i:::onlfil:ctor wili be re:sponsible to manage settings'of lrrlg;i.tlon'\imflrs. 

ir. ·supplein_en~i ins~ctiC1de -.tppir4tlot'is wm be pr<S"v!ded ifl_ ad~itj(iii tO the rlorfria'i rreVfintl'le'f'tO~~A'm as 
n,eet;fi!.!l.to lJ(o!Ji~e S<!'!t.rol~ 

19 

21 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

l. Weed 0:infrol 

a, 'There IS no·warr:anty for. B:ahia:huf. 

January: 

OctciJ:.er: 

Disease & lnsi?ct Control 

R;rti!ization 18--0-1(ATnfnqntum S\lifiite 

'B~ri:l~d~/Pqf!i.s~ .~-p, 

-Feitilizalion 13-3~i3 w/RClnstar or equ[valen"t product. 

se_d'~ &. aro·adl~,ifWC't~ convoiiOise.~se & )t)S&tContrbl 

~re.At:t.tilf\!?.nir,op Dte>~:;l_l\.g~ 20% Qrgan((t'f~af iW 

FertUlzatiol'l 1-t-0-14, TopCholce Applfca"tfoti 

20 

22 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

November: 'blseise "&. Insect Control, 

·D!!~ember: ,P,otasJi~Q-.62 

fi.q}¢ SOri'jePpPl~r:;ci~!'~~ 'il.111 Pt),iiriibjne.1'tc:l:~}fid.efl.V(; .Af,'p/fr;~~/is_ cfl~ . .6~ b;fdi!.8 pt l_fe]~l:e4.lw~ttP ri(lc 

Sofl'S!Jll,IE'lf!.s; qi(qifqJil(l~ ~/ .prfx!llc}s° Qf ,ftJt:Jefr}e_i]t'.W.eqtb,fi"; . 

a, All fertlli~ers u,tll~ed Ll!}~er t~ts p)ugr,~rn.~'(e.tp be<eUi.~on;i bl~.i:i:~~~'!-"it!f.~ b.~!.;r.i;ei,l Jl},!ttfent P:",i;~-!ge,. A 
complete minor and tra·ce.-eJement pa.dl-'R~ will he ln~luded with each 3pplkatio.n t?,ensut.e thaf.ill the 
i"equ!f ~tr'ien~oftr,i,.ss.C.$ ,lreni.el.. )f:SOW!J,ampi~ irh:iitate a tllglff!H,-ail. ftrt:illiers ut11lze_ti\vlli'beSJ1JPnur 
·cp~\ed prodl!cls.,. · ·· · 

b. All fillribC3pe il'.ttfa'c-eS, \lre to be l:iloWn,6ffiriill'lf:diatdV, follovJin~ a fertilizer aepneaf!o.n to.prevent 
·stalT)ll)t, 

~; ½i(s-!lhlil( btj ~:!!led .it. 'lj ,.re11il~l~ tt;iti~'g f.iPjlty ~J~·per·y({a'r Jo i;nonYtsl;ri¥,p~ .1hd thern.i.gai_ m:a}1e' 1,1jl. 
The. ruults will be provided to.mitnaieriiimt.a1tinii; with•tlle contr.u:hifS tecomll'!endatlon ~ tn.iny 
•ih·an~.~s hi ih~ t\lif.c)rirptOg1}1iil ba/!ed o.n:tl-(ese: t.eiul~ · 

l. ·1nsectfOJse=ase tonfrol 

a. 'The.reiiU'ctioJ'I of-lrriC:a.tlon waler' dtitfoil; ihe.Winte[' scli'son W11\.~r.arrtaliC31\y"rCdLic.e'tlie potenli:!l'for 
·fl1ngil$/~l~ea·~~ pf{!bi~mll., <;oni:-r.i~mr. Wilfhe tespiinJiibi~ tq rµ)nfgf:Setti.ngs r.ifJt'riJ;ation tii-iler$ .• 

b: Supplemefl!al ln~e!=6dde.appl!catlon$ will be provided in .iddltlon to·the normal pre11enti11e.prosram as
ll«deil to 'prOvide i:rin\tol. 

3, Weed Cbrifrol 

a. Sedge control ls included ;1s a p:art Ofltiis pro.u.;i,rno 

4.1 War.rai:iJ¥. 

lf.thec_giiisS. cb\ltl(l:a ulldef thli.ti.uf clre 1'irllgfih'n'd!~ dUe.to,i.nSect lrlf~titlOq, d.J~:i.Se Or.lmpfofje( furtUJ~ 
ispP,1/~tjori,. llie iJ'fect_e.4-gra,ss wlltb'.~.~ph1c..e.d a.t.W c;h~f&!'!:~ t?n'1<u;tn~ wi)I '19.t ~e:~eld.J~;PP!lsll:!!~ fil.r t!Jrf 

P:age'i29ti;i 

21 

23 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

lo)~.i{ue i? 'cQl'iq.iJion~ he'/on:a tjieefir C<?_'J\trol. Th1S Jhd4dCl)::n~~i!.½'~;h!s.h tr~l!te,as, tlr p i~ag~r?~le'fll~,; 
pr ac;ts=Qf bod~ In tlie event t,fl!!5e Gondltions are pre-existing; the, t:OnWlch>t ls reSponslble. to empJoY; 
wttatil\!~piltµ.ra_l P,(/i#i clfs, ~ b!l Feil ~ti;i~ty·eeJ{oitqj!4 to ~xteJl<OJie llfe:l_)fth_e:a~i;;(~.r:n~teriah 

'.SCHEDULE r,a3,w .... _)"UR~ cMe:PROGRAM" (ZOYSIA} 

ji., Appl_ica\lim,";ich.-i;~~l1'· 

FebrUaix: 

Aprjl: 

May: 

1\Ugint: 

Pre-:emeri;__en t. iierb!clde/.spot tre-a"imenf for weeds and fungal'actMfy, 

fe:rtJ~\i.im J~rilll.ll!~r 20-0-iclj;; "$pf;lt tr(~tvt.ee4s~and)r~at f\iiig_.;i"fap~ l~fr 
aC_tivity':i:S ne;OO$sary. 

lnsect/weed/d.lse;ise control as·neces~ty. TopChoJce-af2.0.lbs, _per.1(100 Sq. Ft', 

Uq~ld"lron Sulphate andT echmanf?n. tnsed-/weed/djsea_se coniro\ as .. 
necessary. 

POst ernergeritweei:I control, Insect/disease Control as. necessary, 

·etanket. we~mergent tierbti;lde, wJ.Uqu\d. ltot1. .s·l)Or -~a_t w~ill: ·;iqd 
iri~pett/(fe'llt fun,i;ai" ~ctlvity. 

22 

24 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

~lal\Ret PObs"fid-0-6'1,:'~pAlldifon"llf 4 l_b~ P.er 1,CiOO'SII! Ff., IP.M--sp9( tfeaiweeds 
1),S:pec~:Sa!Y,)n~p:i;J/~1;a~~~&?:i~~6y.Jty. ···' ·• · ' · · · ·· 

N'ofe:.Some app/faitlons will bi? oombfnedjor.efjJcier,r.y, Apptlmtfonst,mbe.difded.Dr.deltted bosedo11sa11' 
somples,,1:Jvai/ilb1Jity of prr1_d11ct:f or incleJnenf!we"arher: 

<!, ,/\1! f!:,rii!lz~rs l!iih~e~ uil~l!t iht.i:· pr(?uaJ11 ·a.r~ £9. 6i; t:\lS_tpr,:i·bL~de,4 ~(th;s1~a!a!1ce~ 11,~l;fle(!t nack~gt;: 1', 
•.:ionip_J.e\e; r')ilJt?r ,and irai;=~ ~tel'!1~"~ pai,l{a~wlilb~ ti;lq!u!fe_r,1_ W1ili.~t1.c.h apP.~~~P!\!9~nwr~ ~a,!JJI j}l~ 
· r~qufre;rrief!~ 1?f-gra5g,s are ~ei,.1 lf ~hi!JTJPI~~ (l)"d.ica!1: ~ ~lS'n·pO;:~ll-fi:rtt,llzerS )lti~z~d .Wlf! ~~ s;u_fp,hu'.1_' 
~0 ,k4 er'?~~<:ts, 

b. All harf.lscap~ surfares,are to lia blown off immediately following a fert!l!~er appliCiltion lo. prevent 
'sfultllri~. .. 

c. Thiialgatfon system Will be fully:Operational P.flor tq ~ny Ter-b1fzer-appUeatioil. 

t_f'. :i(!ilulJ-t!i !?:e.testei;! ;ittne1l~~l6 ~tfng Jac.\l\tiJ)Wrc:e_p~tY.~~"r"tQ:rnl:!vitqr forpH_i!hd c_heinkaf maKe 4P• 
·11ie results. wlll be provided .to management alCng:wlth· Ehe contractor'$ recommendation as to ant 
·chaTige5-In the turf care pro11.r.im based"on.\hese results. 

a. 1}le· reduction offrri~tion watei: duril)g the winter season wnl,dramatica!!y;teduce the pptentlal·for 
(4iig~V'1ise'ue P,'°9blerns; €oJ\lra.i:tl.if will.be (eSpdfislbl!'i ~ trr,lnag:~-:,;~ttin,l:s Pflrri~tlon ,imer;;; 

b. ;supplemental lnsectidde·appll,;:atlons wUI be pro11id-e.1fl1f.addltlon fo 1he:normal preven"t1ve··ptogram as 
rit.edi:P. tq prOVlde COntrOI. 

3,: Wei:.d-"CoJitrol 

23 

25 



DocUSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

)f .t4.1fttas-~ CPlo'J!t#¥)Ji:l~f this ty.rf.c;g{;:p1Plfra!Jl-t!leS; ~tJ~ t_o-"1.ns&diin.i.S~ftoni. d~~s~ qt :il!IPI\'-'P~l' 
lerrtilfa~t ,ippJbtfoni. tf!e_ :1ffeJ:t"t( gi"ass Will ,be_ repi~~i!. a~ ~ ·c!i:f!rge'. bintr,:,dpr will .not },1e. held 
ce5.p6'h_.slb!e:°for'tuif loss·~ue !Q q::ft1_~jtlciM·t,l!,Wn~ 11:)e,i_r ~ntroJ. 

~c.lUS!ons· 

All \¥Pile. i'e~tflcted spe.~lfic;aHV. fQ-tti~ Oe5dll:.ied afeils ai. Hsteil.t'n tillr:SCl;)pe of.Work. 

N~Unitfer tirtishin"g,qi' -anY, ri'•(~r.ai veg1t);aticm 1i !nj;\lldi-id JJ_ri)~fbth'e.t~W~ *cl!i'etl, N? iii~,;$, Qi; ma1:eiial 
WUI Ile ·pruru!lhway froni ~rPpcrty_iirlesfthfa ls:~n a_Mi.ti•;ni_afserv.l~. 

Tu·l~'Y?J!S not:ln~_IU\lf! ·any Jl(u,!i_h_~Jrf!illlmtln.·c~.6f¢r'.,;if Ci!;tilS~p'0_11l:ls ~t iig,ai,_i'nacl;essl_ble,~ ncir!Dai . 
mtiWllf~ oonoitioM; Als9,e11d1!d~rj:J1111f.Jl'~f Ii~~ IP?~ f:ff anythlnG."t\'/tl inerl_Ciln,nO~ r'flvlJ~l~ {)IJ(tt,iiri. 
r~~oi;i) j.'iic\ up., 

fl'iiV-~iim~_gd_ W sµ'e_eri o;ric!oSlir~ not p(qre;4.~·d·b:y 1,iqfl!ic.iP.'}.ii_o):de"r~ or ~\cl<'P.!~te,s. 

O-!mage from cfog urine; ti-eei:es, hlghwinds', fi.i'il, hurrfcanes-,.tomado;_floods, tsunaml)-llp!hijng,, lire, 
restrfCtlons by !l!)Vemmcrihl agencies, goVetnm'cllt; cii.y, rta_tc·!)r l_oca.i waterlilgtestrletion~, teglllati'on:for 
.mand;ites,~adsp_f~q? ~r ?.nv ~c:j:o'fo;iwr~~ -

'Pfid!. 1. Tun~~esiillsease Of anyilifng:_imporietl'tb or created' in-the Linli-ed Stl!fi ftia't:-ltas no.,lmmediai.e 
controfsuch as,_but not llmltedlo; Asliln Cjad Sc;;i)e, Bor1der rilcstin,g Whitefly, Borer:s:, Oilllllhr·1ps,,flg
Whltefli. fusariurn'Wflt; Ganoderma B'utt Rot, Pink 1-libiscus Mealy:ilug,.}l.ugose Splf<!\lng Whlklty,-srl 
timka.weevn, ;-ake--Al[ltoof ito(, NeW'pests';lre'.lnfroduted infq_'the Unlt~d Stares every year' 1md.thlS: list ls
'!llJbjtCt to.change widiouf notice .. 

Ah>j dani:ages to frees, shrohs, soil.or-flowers ~ue t? cityt govemmint <1r any water res'b-ktlol'ls. 

-Oani:a~ tall~ed liy faU!ty: lri!gatl~ri o;iJ.lfuiliers, tlhier.S, valy'e~; Sole'ri8\i:t~;.l!rie· bft:a~ Qbizy,th!rl_}t ilffi.lia~d 
wltti lt'il.gffeijo'Ji.#m1'pofieri~.t'estflctii.ig· Oj Stoj>piV:~ ln'\~tlni, 

Th.i5'.dci.!!~. IJCil;.ln~iucie_ any m·alntel'!:a:n.re or replacement·~ we;i:ffiei"e.dJtefJI:-, ln~fOJing sJgr1 ,~p_\sfr, f~hl;Et" 
'Ji9s¥~ ti_rpbi;.f ~tainin1pie5, or-any othei--jtem.tl-iat ~~s.rli;t<!tiO~tedi!Utj' \onotfl)a\_con'cli~oni ffii.,V • , 
repl.ictirti.entdone I,y;thePlflt'l"/(i;tor will he-J~.i\~ln ~he·fnrm i;,f a. \vrJtteliWo'rkorderc,to_tller'lt llr'ld l;i~n~d 

,and d.ited by'l!oth 1?:a'rtle:: v,rlo( t.o:any,-:additicmal Worki 

SC,H_EQqLE !'C" - TREg/ SHR,UB. CAf\E PR.OGF!A,f).1 (lflric!Uded, -~ee ~che~~!e ·F.~ Fe~ St)mm,aiy) 

Sprlni_ i(anular ~rf!Uzatlon and lnsect/dlsease.oontrof as needed. 

24 

26 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

May/June:· · liueCtldisease co·ntro!ffertilization II$ neede4 

October! 

o.ecemDer: 

.iyC>r~: Sarrtr:,apJJ.lfcatiops '11111. 6,; ~r,Jbli;ie~(<!r !Jfjtlency. ~p,elltpt(o{IS Con ·11e.1idd1id'ar Jefete.,:I ba$efl {)h J.Dil 
sUtppfes, il~pilafiiJity'"n/pr¢1fcti.orJnderri~ribV?athfit. 

l. Ferti1iza'tfori 

a:~ f:E,rt\li1el)' se}Fc.le:~ majt b!!,:ap"pr.oprJ.at~ fo:t tlfe pf.at\t m.<!~!!.ria.1,to"tii; ¾rtitlie~ s_ucl!, il~Ptl-'a_~til•forwhlg 
fe.rtilitC:r for Azaleas whk~ rt!qulr.e: irlo\<ferroi! pf!, 

!,: Jtji'lu~{'p"r4gf.im·..yOn~dU!fe-., mlnfrTl\i·m o_t' ~o½ ~low ~1el!~.e. t,l_ltroge,·fatu1 •(~lgk ~ota·ssiuro b:fl,fi!{.in thi,;" 
~n f.E:rtlnz~lfrm \'? P.f'?ftlP\e. foi:it-t!eve!~pmerit 1,1~!!!S!! -s,ob -~;i.mp!lf _resul~ in~IP'!t~ !fie:, R.resep~· gf 
suffideJJtl>'o.tassium, · 

~- A_\i_~i;ti!i?,~rs qtillz.e.~ un,de~ \hJs-erQgr.an;_i ;fr~.to·b.~ ~~sJqnj bleri4¢ wi~ jl b_a~_nced l_i~t~1JtP.a:1:ka~; I\ 
compl~te; mlnor and lr,ICe-ilii:ment pllck:age will be indUded wl\iieacltapplic:;i.tk,n to.ensure-that.ill the 
i-i:;.CJujr~nients ~f pl,htrnil~.rfal;a(,;i'm~f. tboil ~)mp·1"s:ln~IC:.at'e;a·6.lgl_l_pH, ail ~i-tifr.r:ef~ uiiJi1_ei'{ WJ11 Q~ 
cS01i>hPttq~t.~~ proii!Ji:ts; . 

Q. Uri! pf~gr:am• oo\l~wall fe[lility req~l~l!ffl~hts:or'I -tit e}(i$'tlng'"s.hru!;!s:~J_\Q p.ili:n~,.,as ','_lell ~s.:an newly 
·fnst;iJfed s.i\n)hs,.tre~s; and p;i_ltns up'.tQ 1S\ All nat(v.e tri;d or ttan"spJanted'ttees o\rJ.;r 1,5~ 1_n,o~r;i.ll 
·helghtwTif requite sped.ii C0r,~deratlon·a11d are t\ie~foreexd'uded from this program. 

e.. r~rtilitHWHl.biPlstribµ\e"d i;._1.1enfy:undi.r't.he dri"pwne i:if.ll.,ii:h. pl~11t, .fiplf~ial ~are:Wi~ be taken")lot.td" 
"~l!lrnrf' fer11!1.zi;r ni,IIIJer i!H\l~ ha51!:;n,q"r tri'~~cro~n ~fpi,J.r1!.;1:,; 

25 

27 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63OF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

~•· ,s'qll~ shall ~~,t~~\ecf a.I: !neHil.ble: i~~til"!g f,JC(li.it .~nfe pet-v.~<1J.!~ r1i_9nf~f i'Or pif1 ~f!)piltQ~~s/f3~e f\11 
Rool f\pt and· cherr,ii:al IY!a~e-up, The results: .will· be provided to manag_emen\ :along; with the-. 
c~·ri:t:r~ctOr'SJefohiiil~fuia;ti(i.rJ..ii'fOilii'('~hange.:, in u-i·~ wee/~hriib ca~~ ji'ro'!l:_i"am ba'$e'jj oil il'i~se t~ults .. 

ii, ln\~t an"d tlls~ils,;-OOhl[Oi iS. infe,nqe<1~ rn~a·Jl ;fthqr'oµ!l_h W:p.e:~ion_Qf;lil pl,u\Url~ fof. th°I! p.r,i!~e.11,Ce 
·of inse<":t_t>r 4;s~.~·se:· ijttivlty _and the ~pjl~oprl~t~'.((Catpi·~nt;app)bid, All lnsec;t "l!l'ld ilis~~.Sit hife~\alj~~ 
require. folfoW-U(),a11pllcatkms furcontr!'.)J·and are,ini:h.ide~ in thls ~~ogram. · 

b; Cohtr;i,doi f*_reSpq"risible fpf~I:: C<lrii.iiiliq:Us fQoi\ltp~ng for, th·ep~~:Simce·O~dll_q,;ag{ng.j,;~'ects'ofdf~eas~. 
Aily-pro ble:tns i:io·ted tie_twt;i;n _reg_ul;irly .scheduled vlsit£Wlil be.-fre.ited ;m'I seNli:; ca·n. Servk.c calls due 
·ro ili;ti\le' irlfe'statlbiis att ln.cludec{ in.tliis.-Pi:C!_gtiitn,. 

£:· 1Ai~ pr9gr,_m ~v,;r:;: a!l_"4\se!1.~"' ~n? l~~qp1_~li"'.ity"pf1 aJl:~lcl~tirig·~lJrul;l_s:attP·p:i!m.~;:~s Yfell ?~ a)j newiy 
'jnstailed shru~$,-bee.st and p~lnwup lo 15'. Ali nathie trees or·b'ansP.fanted trees oYer-1S'.'.10 Qverall 
"hc~htwili"requi(e s.Pec1aicdnside'ia\ian·a;i_ii are 1hifrefo're cxcluifed·ftOITI this pro~t".irp~ 

d. -Cf?f!tr.lctor will be re9ulred:t.o appi•falt· pesticides in:.sccordan,:e•wiih-tabeled di~ctions'btcludlng' the 
ti'S"e Ohii'j,Pei'SOiial P,r,Ote~UVe:Eq~_ipriiffil', 

·;,,, eonsid!'T-lng .the. illve5tment: ln Spi!palry_ l\ilr_ns:siich .is'. Pht)i:nb!\1arlelies {i.e. Dacj."y)iferiif s;tvester; 
Cah~ty lsl.~nii·.Qi!J!! ~tc.), t;:oTJt·~ctdr ViW (ndud~ &n:Jh;ati.oij ;arid/~~t l ~µ~ jlren:ct\ fut'potep~ar q\S-Ei:ise 
·:m~·lri~tion two ~espefyeati · 

lfa·,t1fant or tree dies from lnmi,or di'l!!·a;se-daf!t;i!te wh·(1e under lh/~.Tiee/Shttib ·eare•Prog_ritm,. il will be 
r~pl;i'i::ed·Wit\i;efne_ that l~_j-~a·soii.ibl'{ aVal!.ible. Exdus'iOhi to thls-~3ri".itl.ty· woulcl be pr<";·"i!xisthig i:Ot\d!Uotcl, 
fi!{ll'llll~~~;bor~rsj lbq,~, -aqd <t\;i:ia~'es .S.\.lt.h ?s Vertlc;illi~m:a11H.ftl~Jlfit1rn:wt1t~ri.d \3;ini,1?~rw, ~.l!tt~t tli~t 
are unh-Catable wltti cu·rrently-avallable c}temlcals,"teJ<as "Phoenl~ Pa1TTI bedlne {"TPPD"..I, solf t:onhminatlo,\ 
d(alrfa~e P.rPbli'lm~·or.¢6nd.iti0iiS tfi;1~nri:v"/!:ll't:th.e p:if}tti)ctorlrom Pr.oVldlng P.f9p'l;:r:frrilf'l;1io11, s.ucnas.w:i~. 
M,~!'<1gel'l'l1c,n.t. blstrlc.t restt\t::tiQnli,,Of, 1,111\ippro~d krigatfo[I re.paf(~·and -~is ofGoq. lri .t~e, !?Ycpt tbese 
condltiot\S exist the .c.O~tt:ac~r)s re_ipooslPle to employ wha.leven:ultural pr11ctfCeS cim be· reasonably, 
perfo.nri~d. to ~.terid the:ll«!:~of,th~.'affec.ted m~teriai. 

-/Ii., Beddlit~ Pl.tilts: 

26 

28 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

::flie-1H1t1/l'i dnlPq!Ptisttof ''F{qw.,;/ ft~d.t" {s ti?. 4ff!W 1.1ft~tiflop·{9 ~hi~-,f~ploy~ 'f}ie,/1fgJi~~ l~vel. f?l' 
:~i_i:~-0!!l?t1 J~o!'f.if P.i; plm:~.;:J.~m·.if!e[r.q_~iQ_!l.!:/.l.~~ 

l. Schedllfe-

a . .All-flower bed~.ofr)-fie.property lncludiriJ uins and pols wllfbe t~angedoutfuur {4}:times pery_ear. 

'Iii ·C?.1!1!:i:cto.r're'i:t.,gtih~ tnci!t. fl9W!;r b¢~f'ilr~ l,rit~Qd,;d ip·IJJi:h)lg\i,t;an.d be-aulify higli,~(0Jll1.;<_ar~~s:iln.d 
s\iOuld be 5elected foq:ofor,;p,ofus\on.and disP,lay, · 

7; i~4lla1foi"i". 

a; P!aJM-~r!;',J.Q.~.e in";~il~q 1,1~)~1Jl1; a tn1mtqljlr ~-~-tf~.9£~~-10'''..b..G-(d.~p~lldlng_qri typ.~l P!l'.l:We~n· 
,P.lants, 

~; .~rlnu,IIY, prJpi' tQ:t~i:!SP,r[rig ihs!ng~ ciut; e~1s.tlhg ~P11 W1H Q,fr.clJ\QVi::<l. to:a tfiptl) 9f~{ir\ alh'IJU1ifi,i bi;d_~ 
:a!1d:rep.'l~~e!,i wil:h ~eaTT growjng med/ullnpmp~s.~1· of 6(* Pit~t·?i"nq 4<-i'l' ~rte. agt'q,.,Pjn~ Bar.K. 

4 ,(\.lt'l;leik Wl!I b¢ !=lea;ned)ri~.fi.irid o:i!Tlai:.nlnft.li11~iliate_d i;q~~dtpffi' o((t i(rior·(n \fi~_ii}«all~~h:.it\'cifnl!=w 
'.pla,'!~• • . 

e: J,·g~nlila_r tiflle"re/.eMe, f~rtl.ljzi;_r-anti, ;i gninul~r ~9°ft.e.miCJu.ngi4de\vlll:b/!' li,ttirpp!"a.~<f. li)tpJlie: 1:/edflipg 
,so!I at the time of. inst.a Ila tlot:i, 

3, M~l_ntpriarl_ce 

11, flot,ye(Deds; flb&,!1.l~ iitn·~~III be:·{f!_vjeWed'at.J!";itl.i S~ivice.vis_it;(O.'r1he f)')IJQwlng:' 

... RtiniiVal-Of~\I il~t :i,wd 'debris-•. 
• Rerno.~al gfw1c,e_d~~-
• l!l~P~~ fyir i:he•pit:;s~ni:;e·of·fo~~t or dise"a;i;rac~ylly.and treat l~m-~iilil:e)y. 

b. :SJ,!~d hi;:)ld"s aJe" !? be.r.~ni.""'ed 1ro·~ Co!eufplarits ~.s.sOoh .is_th¢y a'p~·e~r, ~~11Jiil\in}('-bfc~_Jelf1•pl~l\~S 
'I.~ t6 !:/t! a Pil-Tl_of th"~:_Or,-_gtll!)f;.nf;t\i;itenanqf~s weJt freq1;1ent·"pinct\inif: will f'c'Wlt [ri he~!thlet;, m~,rr 
compact plants-, · ·· 

.i:;, P"rollfiY,bloo!Jlers1!'}Ch ~!! ?illyhrr~ujr_:~ lf!al l9i- t?.i9%C!f?ea!lry,~!!'IP.11!S·are.to b"e (i;IJ\C?V$=,d, 

cl. P.r.~,e-niergent,heibli:ldes; 'a~e'ttotlo be tised in an1.1Ual De:dt., 

27 

29 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

e: .Ci;m~t!'J!' gUi!~~n~~ 'thi:!(spry~licil~W .fn.d.pr;!:f~tm~nf~·Qf:,i!! J1nn,1,1"1ih1l.~!1,fuigffu(;i"p~i-\o"cl_-~f -~O d~~, 
Any pl~ritthat.fl,.lls-to perform durinq:' tf,j~ J1erfod will be immedlalelr re_placed ;it--ihe con~m;l<;>f's 
~x:~e.n(e:. 

4. Warranty 

Any. Deddlng-plantthatdles due'tp lim.ict:darnag,e or disease will be replac.ed uQ,;le1;w.ir(!!l\ty, Exduslons-lo 
tl:il~ _1,l(ar1~1ifywould. be hard f(ee2~·1heft,: v-1m:l~li~m, .r.abblts,-de_er.or condltlons·be-,;o.nd th~ir cof'!tn?I, Rabbit 
and.acer l'epell21l_t are nQtlnclu,1100 in thh contrai:.tand~ll be_i~talled·at:m additional ch;1.r,&e, 

a. Mulch wil_\ be·replenl.she~l.l'I a lilied areas twtte· a year: 

~- f.tl!:!r. lg ~P.P.li£~tlijp",,f'!~,::is wiU ;~-~-,n~P.im;.4 !?.V {~~'!ipg ;iJI rw~igo. 4-;~{J).,"ilfl~-acciJ,IJJ.':ll~~d .rriufFh 
·ma~er~!:•11Jd:esI~~li~f1l!,lg ~. 4eli,ned, ~pif,;i!'fll'~dgt ~-11)1 J~~-d~n~ H'e¢ r!~a~-Vfell ~s ~•f' .icf2" ·ai,ep 
ti:;'1;11Cfl'.a!~rig a.lf!Jllrd~C~P.~iutface!..10 jildl!~~'eqylpnieot.mi~s.Jn <)fd~r tq h~l.1' th~niuii:h lri p~p;. 

b; Mulch ili:OUld 1i1{Jnsta1le;d Iii we·ed. free.beds 1ha~l)c3.Ve-beei'l jirOplirlY,.lidg~d ::ind_P[epaTtd. 

~ f''{'l)li~h s.l'!l?ui~ bi; !11~~1!~~ ~~ fll.~1.n.t~Jo..:a.1)/}," l~k)ln_i,s!. l!l a_!~~~-are?sl tns:\\l~ing,fri;·e fllJ.8$ \ir!l!~n 
~-~JlS :inP·.m~Jnl~fl!l"~e flt.In; yql~ ~}h_eiW~~ i:ll~i'l~ PV'!'ft<l.mlgemenl', 

.C, PalinTflrilrnlnt: 

).,. S:pi,cimertP.a~PafQ,~ $Uth ai; .PhP~I\~ va.r.~~lj_~ (l,e, Dacfyllfeta, ~YJ'?~1~r} i:;.iii~ty. lsbr;~ ha~; ~fo,) lo ll)!c~'!s. 
cl12 1;CT wlH be lrlinmed two tknes"pe;ryeal";lo"ose. or excessiv'eUootswi!I be remove"~ at)d/or cross cutdqring 
U)li p~o~,si:;. 

2. All palms·le!is tti'1!n112' CT will be tilmmed as needed by the.de(all.crew during; the regufar.detall rOtation,as 
o}ltiln~i¾ lri Gen:er<I\Se'rvlt;es. · 

3. Washl11g{oni:i.palfll$ in excess of12'. CTwlll b·e trimmeCftwo.tlmes ptJCye.ir~ 

4. Trlm $a~al;,Wa.shtn&1;:on, aiinesei. f":n and Rlhho.n P.il.imS·s.o lliah_he lowest rem,aloing. rioncls are left-a ta ten 
and two o'Clo.9( j)TPfile. "l-lurij,:ine!' Cul:$ afe: Qhly i<i.P(l:don,e_at th'e!'lfre.i:lion ofrilan<!g~m~n~ .. 

5'. When trimming, ~ut.tli.e frond"cli;,~e,to t~e trunk without tiiavln~ ''$tubs" 

28 

30 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

·SCHEDULE!'E•LtRRIGAlJON MP,.tNl'Et-lANCE 

J.., Fr~quency of Servtce, 

:a. ,O:infnctor Wlll.P,erfonn the·.following: itemized servlc~s undef"Sp~ciffcations"',011. a. monthly basis,• 

B,, Specifications.. 

;t, N;_y~~~,~tiwm•rq~l;}l~§~~t.i:!'!'1 

-2" ViS:Ullilf cllf!c~ful.~'ny.~~in'lijvfd head~ Qt h'¢:ads n~ediri~ r~pair. 

3. tlean.-s'traihten ot.ad!Jlshny heads,notfuncticinini:: pr.operly: • 

. a. .!:i~fgj:ljen;.t~.iiiac;t1;to ~(!~ing ai:,~:tqlfql .VP. p,ih;it,on r\si:,r'he~¢; ~S. m,:e~~~; 

5.. Jl.~pp'rt in'i\iS,,aJ;.,li o(ValV.~ }ipx tlia.t tii;ly"be dajn;i~q'i{Y11·,u1fWay! 

i;. Leave areas:t[l which r~palrs on1djustmen\sare made ffeeofdebrk 

71 A.djµ;'f.oo!l..~l_lef~o the ~al~flhtt,rt\!-~a::,:~ic.1a.'(e_(,{ P.Y. \Y'l;~,~er cori_dttfo~ ~rnJ._sea~QrrnJ f~qtil.i"~e~ts, 
lndi.Jdlng;adjustii:igpf raln-_s~n~or. · · 

=C QualifylngSiafemenfs 

.a, Repal~that.become nece.S.S;iry ani:I. tllat are·.over.and above the routine maintenance con&ac!twill be· 
·done on·a time and mal:etial bnls -at the ·rafes·ol ".$35,bO/,ht; fof a \:echijldiln and $6S;O(Vnf. ror· lf 
·spedallst. 

b, (Ui und.erstood·itiat tirtle.ls ofth~ ~ence foi' ripai~~ so.tt,at·SIJ~. p1an1sana tre.~·do ri6t"i:llii, Tfierefor~-, 
a not-to'i:xceed ,Prlte ol$·souoo Is appi-oV,1:d·V,!1thbUt a forlll.il_ p~op'o~l 50. tl\af the contr.li.tor--·cari" 
_pr'q<;e.ed in a tiilll?lyinaflfll!'r, • . . . 

~• '.s;i:i~!ce 9'ils_ n;quJ~ j>~):w~~P. :n;J:ti;dq\e~ \Ii~!~ w)JI l):~ij11\¢"d_Qp.a ~i.i:ie a!)d rg~~erla! t,a$J~-~t; t;he ,a~~ 
-of $35,00/hr. for-a te_chnklan ilhd.$65.00/hr; for a Sr.ecl.ilbb 

·1;1, ·Wh,!lJl nqtan . ..em:ergen,cy, mque.stJ~r~utQorilil.tiOl'.!·-Qi11rt ~Cl s~b,njhed In_ w,T~!\ f.ul"f!l lp"l1Jp11age.rrv:p.i: 
f~r apprO~.l!l·.Y(tietf th~ ~os~ W}1f ~~d ,$J;bQ.~. fi.. d.c;gcrl!)!i9!' qf ~ prpbiem1 ~: lo.c_q\h.m ~pd 

· ei\im.a.t~d. co_~tshull)d·~.e.J!ltlJ,1,;\~~; 

29 

31 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16OF2088A5F 

~~ CoJl_tra,e~r: wlll _PJlY SP.t'i.cllll a~~n\lon ~:h}l:lntt,lrrig,ajl~l} 11·ra_f11ten.;u_ic1t ln.~p~ctfto.rt1t9~D*l/re )ha:t~prlnkle~ he.~d~ 
~l~,P?;f,!i~.nei!s-9 t~a,~ ~a\'er,4!?e!-"!10t'sprjiy ?lr~w QJ:I.~ P..u/1~!!1~, ~i~~RWS. o,~ ~c,~jng.-¥,r~;,J ~~!I ~o·a~i!d~t 
any li.ell9s ,h:aJ,~t~ f!l4nq f.9 h~ ollJ of po~iqQ.p: 

'.4. Damage resulting ·from .contr~ci:o!"s;crew~ worl<lng .on: th',! property: (I.e.,. mov/ei and· e"dger ruts}.wlll"be 
repaired at no.ch,arge:to lhe ownet~ 

5. Canlr:actor Shall not-Ire" fieldtresponslD!e Tor any.syitem fulfure-caused 6y Jr_ghtnin&_ 't:a~h-uction·workj_pre-. 
existi.hi;,conditlons, fi-e~,. ads·of_ God, or coildltions·~yond the!( oonfrol, 

6, Cdn!factot ~~jlll.1_!!llh"el1i:;\d f~,Sp"\)f!.sib!t; fur' 4ipiag!!':i tn t~!1' !.i;n~scape c~u~~ J:iY,n_ia_n.d.alo_r_y:"a.t.et;r~lrii;tJo!.l~ 
piated on: ilie property by the g,oveming water; mat1a_g1,cment· dlslrlct: 

30 

32 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

EXHIBl:TB 

Maintenance Map 

31 

33 



DocuSign Envelope . 158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F JD· 13D63DF2-BA87-4 

' 
I !!j 

0-0/;
1

/· 

34 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

Exhibit B to First Amendment 

Landcare Group 

lrflgation • Landscape. i,; Maintena11ce: 

Landscape Maintenance Service Agreement 

For: 

BANNON LAKES CDD 

475 •W. T6WN PLACE, SUITE 114 

,ST, AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

35 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
MAIN OFFICE: (386) 586'3321 

FAX: (386) 586-3330 

35 ENTERPRISE DR. 
BUNNELL, FL. 32110 

DA Vi'@lANDCAREGRP, COM 
WWW.LANDCAREGRP,COM 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BAB7-4158-A602-C16DF20BBA5F 

~tt· 
Landcare Group 

35 Enterprise Dr. Bunnell, Florlda-32110 • Main Office: (386) 586-3321 • Fax: (386) 586-3330 .. www.landcaregrp_CQm 

Lan~scape Maintenance S.ervice Agreement 

This Agreement, ls entered irito on Atigust 1. 2020, by and between Laridcare Group, 1n·c., hereafter referred to as. 
'tontracto(, ·and Bannon takes Community Development 01.Strict,_ the owner or designated owner's representative, 
hereio~fter ref~{red to as "Owner". 

The ContraCtor-.iand Owrieiwish tO.eriter into an agreement that define5 the terms a'nd condltibns irl which the 
Contrador' wlil provide grounds·maintenant:e:, pest cbntrol,·pal"rn piuriing, muk:h installatid1'l"and irrigation seivices as 
st.ate~ in "Practical Speclf\Cations for COntnct LandS<;ap~ Malntena_nce" (Attachment 'N) which is attached to this· 
agreement. 

Servlc~S: The contractor agrees to performtmdScape niaintenarice services f6Ythe owners property, located at.. 
Bannon lakes COD-Common Area, lakes, front median easement, Duran Drive b·ahia area, and Amenity Center.at 43~ 
Bannon lakes Bl'1d. ·St. Augustine, FL 32092, !wr~!n~fter referred to as "property'11 as put forth in the "Pfi)ctical 
Specifications for' contract Landscape Maintenance'', {Attachment·~Al 

Terms of.CQntra:ct: The Contractor shall render ia.ndscape-malritenan·ce servlce:, for the teriri.of One (i) vear.{~) 
!=oi:nrnen_dng on August 1, :Z02o·and sl)a_n end on July 31, 2021, unl~ss ten:ninated tw ei~her partv·by pro~lding sh<ty (6Q) 
days Written notice pi"lor t.6 th·e end of the ctirtent teriTl:· 

Corripensation: The owner shall pay to the Contractor-for seivfces rendered, the sum of: 

i. Jwelve thausan.d, six hundred Jo,jy-twq dq/lars_ and fourteen cen_ts ($1l,f;4i.14) per month, or 
2. On~ hundr~dflfty-(!ne thousan_d, ~~ven hundr~d_five ·d,#la_rs and shdy~eig!Jt ~~nts ($is_1,7_0~.f?B) p~r year. 

TO be paid within thirty {30) days Of the first of each riirinth in which the work is tO be·performed. The owner agrees to 
pay any ahd all expenses incurred. by Contractor in the co!lectiOri Of d_4e ·compensation. 

EarlyTenr,;lnatioo: ln..the e_vent thin the Contractor falls to provide servjces as Qescribed_.in (Attachment 'A'}, th~ Owner 
may terinlnate this agreement by givirig·s!Xty {60} days written notice by effiail Or facsimile transmission letter'. 
Contractor. may also_ terminate this agl'.eement in the Same manner, or immediately. if Owner refuses or fails to pill{ 
Contr;;ictor accp_rding to the .terms _bf thls agre~m~nt. 

owner 
Name: .----------------

Sigilatt.ire: _______________ _ 
Prinl · 

Name: -------------
Ti~le: ______________ _ 

D_ate:-_______________ _ 

Owners 111itials, ___ _ 

Contractor 
Name: landcare Group; Inc., a Florida Corporation 

Signaiifre: _________________ _ 

Pr"!nt Niline: David Jackson 

title: Project Devefopment Manager 

Date: ---------------
Pagel of2_0 

36 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

·\i,1 
~~-

Landcat"~ Group 
35=f:nterptise Dr, Si.mneU, Florida 321io _. Main Office:.{3°8~}}i8&.332.'1 • Fax: {386) S86._333d ~ www.iandcaregrp,cotn 

Attachrn~nt iA' 
Practic.al Specifjcatioils for Contract Landscape Mainteil.ance for: 

Bannoh Lakes CDD 

The work for the exterior landscape ma!Otenance is to include the furnislilhg of all 1.ibori'materials, equipment, accessories 
and."$~_rVkes n·ece:SS_ary dr Tnddental to sti"st~in aii turf arid plant materials irfa_health'(; vigOrpus ·growing Condltlriil, free 

fr<?rrt w~ed$;_ di~~ases; in?e~ts, ~nd ·n\.l~titiQ_n.~l defi<;:i~i:i.c;je? a:s Yf~II a,s -~ -\:OJllP!.e~ely_ .~Pt;':i~~i9J;la! _irrigi3.tic;in ~y~tem. Ail 
associated planted areas are to be kept in a·continuous healthy, neat, clean and debris free condition for the entire life of' 
the contract.. 

SCHEDULE-uA 11
- GENERAL SERVICES 

A, Turf Maintenance 

Turf maintenance is defihed as ol/:mowing, edging! trfmming and cleanup of lawn. areas: 

1. MoWl.ng of common Area 

b, St A1:1,gustine turf shall be nl0:Wed weeKly:dUiingthe grqwirtgsea"$dn from Mar.ch 15ih through Ocfobel' 
.15:th. alld as n~ede~ ~l!ring t_htfno11,g"r(?~ing·seaso11 frqffl_ Qctober·15 1

h through March i5lh,. 8;:!_5ed Of.I 
this schedule, it is estimated.that the contractor will t,erfornra· mfnimum of 4·(j and ·a maximffrrf of 4i 
moW_ing·cydeS per _12~riJpoth period in_ the petfOrfll.:il)Ce ofthis·coritrai:.:t. Jt IS uoderstqad that the 
c-;:mtraCior may_ be required t9 ·p~riod_icaUy add_ qr -~elete moWing eye.le~ based on-, w~aJ~er o.r oth_er 
fac"tors beyond their control 

c, B~hi~ turf sh<!II b1fmtiwed weekly during the ·growing s~asqn from April 1:;tihrough October 111 ·and_qs 
n~eded ~u_ring the n9~~gn?V'!ing s~a5?n frpm·oc_tob~r 111 i~rough_Ap(il 1~~--~f!sed on."thl.~ ,schf:'!dl!le,_lt is 
-estima.ted that_ the contractor wlll"perfo.rm a minimum of 36 and a.maximum of 40 mowing cydes_per 
1i..:hjof)th p_eiiOd in th~ performan~~ of this cpnJr'a.ct., lt is Undeq;tOocl t_hat. the contractor may- be 

requir~d l~ pi:;r!odic,~lly adg or de(~~~ n_1owlng cvi;:.les·i;>a~ed. 011 ~~a_t~e~ or ~f:.h~~ f<:!<:tors. beyq(!_d th~ir 

control 

Owner's lfl!tials.~--~~ Pageioli.o 

37 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C160F20B8A5F 

~- St Augustin({ a.nd ~ahia turf !>hall .be cut Wi~h ro.~rv mo,;ve~s to ·maln~·a1n a ~_nifqrm ~eight Mow·i~g 
~lad~_s sh~II be kepts.uffid~n_ijy. st"!arp and pr':)perly. adj~sted i:Q prov(~l;:l ~-~lea~ly ~~~ gra~s blac,fe. 

~o~ing p_a_ttern ~hql! b~\ 1ar!e_d wher~ f~asible: t9 pr_~v_ent h,lttiflg.and. rnlnirnizi: compac.tion, 

e. Mowing_height for St. AU~ustine and Bcihia·ti.Jrf will be !ieta1:•3W' t9 4''. •. 

f. Zoysifl turf shall :be inoWe.d.base.d o.rt40 to 42 rnpWii)g <;'(des per ii-month p~rfod in• the p~rforrrtanc~ 
of this contract; It is understood that the contractor may be required to· periodically add or delete 
mriWing qcles based on weather' of other factors; 

g. Zoys!a turf shall b~ cu·t with a rqt~ry rrio~~f to rn~lO:taln a unifo~ height, Mi;iwif)g bl~i:ll'.!;;· shall _be fee pt 
sufficiently sharp and properly adjusted to provide a cleanly cut-grass blade. Mowing pattern sht1ll be 
v_arle:d whe_re feasible tQ PteV~nt r"uttiiig and r'nininilze c:Ompactioh. 

h: Mowing height forZoysia tuifwill be setat2 11 to 311
, 

i, Visible dip1?fr1gs tha.tmay·re left fqll(,rwing_rnQWifigo_pen1tionsS_hall be:teh16VedJrom the·site each visit, 

j. Contractor wiff take special care to avoid allowing any clippings. to be discharged or blown into 
stoimwate.r ponds qt tlrop inlets', 

k. Contractor wilf "take special care- to prevent damage to pfant material as a result of the mowing 
opel'ath;m~. Any dalTlage caused by cOntractrir's mOwing· eC{Liiptnent"JnaY result In the fe()l.icei'n"eht of 
d~tni:J:ged material a~ t~e .con~fa¢tqr'.S i;:ost Repl~c_em·en·t ma~ria! Will De of sirn.ilat S_ize ~a: th~ 11la.terlal 

being replaced, 

2. Edgiflg 

Si_de"Val~s,: ~ur~;.,:·c~ncre~ ~1.a~s. and '?-~he_r paved.~.u.rfa:<:~s·wi!I be e~gf!_d. in ~onju~~tio.[1.VJith·mt?Wh)g 
·opera~ionS; Eqglng·is-defif!E!µ as remi:;ival of_unwante~·tllrf from t~e above ni~ntl91_1et,I ~(?rders l?Y use 

of a me.<;:hanit;:al edger. String trirnrrie~s will 1_1of .b~-U:>f!C:i. for t~ls funct:i~m; I~ is l!h~~~s~opd t_h~t ec.Jgjng 
of !:,ed~ and hard·surfuces'will be Skipped periqdicalf'{to ie~ t~e tu~f_fill in and/~r thicken ~~e Vertica! 

e.dge. 

3. StdngTrimming 

a. .str"irlgTri_mrrtin~sha!I be pei"forined arouf1d road signs,g\lard posts, trees, ;s_hrutis, utility pol~s~ a_ntj ot~er 
t~b~:t:acle$ wh~re rriowe_r~ ca~nOt reac~; Gr~5:~-s~aff _l?e t~irn.med to tfle: san:ie-d€slrf::t;I height a~ 
determined bylhe·mowingoperation. Trimming shall be completed with each mowing operation. 

Q. !'A~il)taifllng grass-fr~e are;i.s btus.~· of c.h~IT!ical$ may be the prefe.fteq rn~thod lfl c~rtain. appliCatiof.ls .. 

owner's Initials._"·---~ P~ge3 qf 2o 

38 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

c, Turf-around the edge of all waterways shall be mowed or striOgtrimmed to the natural water.'s-edge 
-duting·eaCh mowing cyd~ •. lt is understood that eVe'ry effort Will be: made tO keep Qi(JJ)irigs ot.it of Wafer 
.b~dies, Quti!"levit,i_bly :;.omeclippings will get !ti-the Wa,t1:1-r: Wit!l_pre:Va_iling wjnj'.l,. lt I~ understo.Qd that the 
Owner is.responsible for re:gular lake .m.iintenance, including spraying the water line with aquatic 
herbicide where it me'ets the turf; 3rid.clearii.flg o·uttulverts 1 Inlets, and outlets. 

4. Blowing 

a. When iiSing forced air niachfnefy tO clean Cufbs, sic;leWalksaiid othef p_aVed sllrfaceS, care mu·st be taken 
to ·prevent bl.owing gr:ass dipp\i:igs lpto beds, stormwater- ·po_li~s1 lniet~~ onto ve~icJes or onto ·other 
hardscape surf'aceS: . 

b. Contractor will be expected to blow off the t;er'lnlscO.(uts, pickleball courts, pool area:·~n_d:ail~ntrY poilits 
~nd ·other si~_i!_ar arnenJtie~. 

S. Qama~e p;-eyention/Rep~ir 

~-· Detail 

Special tare shall b~ ~ken:to protect l:)µildingfoµndations, ·!lgl)t p~_le.~, :;ig·n post$ an~ ot.f:ie.t: hards.c.ap·.e. 
elements from mowing 1 ed@:ing or' string tiimmii,g equlpment-dama_ge. Contraci:-or. will agree to have 
repa_irs tna-de by .spei;:lali~e.if -i;:ontfactQrs; or :reirribu~~¢ f:he associatiori pr hom~Qwn~r~ Within 30 ~lays. fof 
aoy Qarytage: to property ·c;aused by th!;!'ir.cr~W m_e_m~~r~ or equipment, Mulch b~~s are rec;ornmen·ded 
In areas Where equipment may come in con"tactwith the above stated.items. 

Tht;? <{ett111ing pr.Ocf;!sS w_ill include (riininirig, pruri/ilg' and Shapin(} oj <;ilJ ~hrubbt;?(Y, pm_a_mental ttees anil. 
gn;,un·cJcQver,, r.efriDval oj- tre.e sµcke"rs, Structufa} pruning- o/ SelF.Ji:t Varif!t{es OJ pla{!t mdter(a{ i::Jl1d OrncilT/entt'JI 

9russes _ds directed; as Well_ as ihe ~efi.iilnt, of J?ed Jines, t:re_e $i1UC~ts ..and Jfie r:enlavql.of all tmwa.rit~d vegetati0(1; 

1. Pruning 

a. prune tr~es, shri,JbS and g_ti:wodcovers.to encoUra~e h~althy growth and Cre;:ite·a natural appear~nC:e. 
Prune to control .the new plant g,rowth, maintain the desired plant shape and remove dead,. damaged, 

or .diseased portions of.the plant Provide remedial a"ttentlon and repair to·pla ntmater.ial.as appropriate 
to season or In response .to Incidental damage. 

b. Pruning of tre¢s. up. to a·herght 9f 8 fee~ i.s.inclu4.ed_ in the s.c!Jp"i~ ~fthe. w9r~. if pnming.i~. r¢quired a~ove 
tt-ie._height Qf 8 fee·t to_i1ttilctor sha.li prop()~¢ ah extra ~~rvic:e .. to f!Jana~emen~ and acqU'ire approval_1:1rioi: 
·t~ perrOrmlng the wo:i~. The branching height of ~tees shall be taised.or,ly ft,:Jt the folfowing reasons: 

• Provide de;:ii"~n1:ce for petlestrla,lls,_ snii:!IIV~l:ii.cles, mowers and buiidirigs, 
• Mairita/n deara~ce from shru~ in 1:;ied ar~as. 
• l_mprove viSlbility in p~rking tots~!)~ arounµ entries,. 

Owner's ·1~it,lals~: ___ _ Pa&e.4ofio 

39 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF208BA5F 

c. Prune trees to remove weak .branching patterns and provide corrective pruning for proper 
•development _Cut back to branch collar without leaving stubs. Provide clean and flush ·cut with no 
tearing of the tree bark. 

·d; Prune all shrubbery in.actordahce with lhe·architectural irite.nti!s it folate"s to adjacent plantings and 
lritetld~d fuilction .. 

e, pr,.m~ to :COritilin. ,perimete"r" growth Within intended .b_ed areas~ EStahiished· -~rOunclc;Over 'shali. be 
r1al!l.(alf"!e_d. 4" t0: f/'' <;1way frc;i~ ~djac;ent._hJ:!rdscape <!nd, turf; fylatur~ grpl!nd~ov~r s'1_all !Je·,naiDtair_e~ 
·at a consistent~ level height to provide a smooth and even appearance and separation from adjacent 
_plant material. 

f. Shrubs are to be pruned to a height no greater than 24 inches above -i:he _ground in medians within 200 
le~t Of ~n·1nterSei::tl6n, and on:Side roads thclt ar~:Within the drivers lirie Of sight. 

g, Crape Myrtles are to be trimmed once per _year inlhe winter months, Trlmmi~~ should include removal 
of old bl()oms, suck~r growth aild any CrosS_brahching, Trim"millg".ShDUld be dOne in s:Uch a Wa"y-.that 
cu~ a.~ n~ _l.~Ss than· 1211 away _from pr~yious year's_ c.t.i~. "Ha~ RclCki.ng',-Will no, be per:mitted. ~r:iless 
directed otherwise by management. 

h; Pruning of all palinS ieSs th~n 12' ·CT (fl h~ightwill be inclUded.iii ~h¢ ~ect!Ona! rotai:km,. Pr.urilng co"iisi~ts. 
·of removal of a11 dead fronds; seedpodS: and any loose boots, 

2. Ed_~iri_g 

a:. Edging ls d¢fined. !'!,S .r~mova:1 of uriW~ntf;!d ·v~get~ikm_ aio_rig ·bed_s atj~ .t.tee. sa)i_cers,, E~9es ar~ to_ be 
pet'µendicular to the· ground •. 

b .. Only·mechanical edgers will be used for this• function. 

c, Cafe Will be taken tQ maintain bed edges a$ desi~ned in.~ith~r straight.or curvilinear. lines, 

3, Weec{ Contr:ol 

a, Bed ar~as are t9 be sprayed. clfter t:ach:.detail s~f'-Jice:. ·Pre·~nd po_st-~hu;~rgt?.rlt·.ch~mlcals:are ~c;c~pt~hl.~. 

mean·~ of contr:ol. 

b, Hardscape cracks and expansion Joints are to be sprayed.In conjunctiOn with the detail cycle fo control 

weeds, 

c: General 

1. Polldng/Spedal Maintenance 

0Wri¢~s liiidals ____ ~ Pa'?e5of2Q 

40 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

a, ~ontr:a<,:tor will polite th~.grOl,!nds on ei;!ch service visit tq remoy~ fr~sh, deb:ris-i'nq fallen tre.e litter less 
than 211 in diameter; COntractor is not,re~ponsible for removal.of excessive storm debris which would 

be perfortne.d With ptior appf°l)\lal, 

b. Contractor will dedicate personnel and specialized equfpment for the removal .of seasonal. leaf drop 
from al! landscape and.hardscape areas during the rriOnth:S of November thnl\.!gh Aprll; 

2. Communtcation 

a. The· Contiactpf will. com"rn:Uhicate wi.th ma.nageiTient for ariy lands.cape issu.es .i'¢q"1,iidng jinmedi3te 

attention. 

b. Ccintractor·agr'ees. to take· part in nicinthlY inspecti9ns elf f;he_pr6perf:y. to eiisur'e their ·peifofrilancEf of" 
~hi.s agr~~i:n~nt m~ets: the: ~(<!nd~fd~ required he:rein. and pfo~ects· .t~e ·ov.l:,!ral! wet!~~~'ir1g of th~ 
property's landscape. Contractor also agrees to complete any work thatappearson:punch lists resulting 
frO!ll iils'i;,edio"n_s· or rev'fews within three weeks· of'receivin~ the"m. ContractQr wjll.h,,ve their Account 
~anager partl~lpa_te on Its behalf and, have. ~~e,ir Lawn and :On:1~m:~ntaJ and lrrigqtlon. Managei:s c;>! 
Technicians,available if.needed. 

_c, COntracto·rwiO be req1.,1ired~o ma_intairi an int~ractiv~_we~ site 9r ~ custo.merservh:.:e Wo'rk Qr.d¢r SV.stem 
(software} that will allow management to make dirett·contact fat service• requests and/or extra work. 
The web Site "alsO 'nlUSt he Set up to alert.Prope·rfy lllanilg¢merit When requests becOITle dellri(lllerit 

cl, c;o·ntra;ctor agrees to have· a q4alified .-indivi~u~I av~ilable to. !ilSj>l,!d fin·i~hed· homes and. :!:ections of 
common area·for the purpose of.accepting.them for maintenance ser.vlces, ·The contractor will be asked 
to co111mtuiicaJe via rpeITIOraridum o:n th~ir wliilngnes5; to.a.q:ept compl_eted··ar~as or s:tate d~ficle11cies 
t~at pr~clude a.tteptan~~• · · · · 

2. Staffing 

a. The·Contractor·shall have a:well-experienced Account Manager. This person should have extensive 
knowledge 9f horticultiJral pra"ctices, and be ·capable Of properl•tsUpei'vising Others. H.e/she'and other 
supervlsO.rs.should be in a Cert.a"fn_type uniforms that qistlnguishes them ·from· the crew. Th~ Account 
Manager will communicate with.the property's staff; In order to maintain continuity;"the same.Account 
Manag~r shall .direct the scheduled maintenance .operations· throughout the· year.- ATly afltlclpated 
cha.ng~s !n s.up~rvi·sornler$ofmei sh_aU be brought to th~ att~nt10.n of tn~riag~~~~t pri~r. t<? ~ny such 
change,. This will assure the Consultant and Management that maintenance personnelremaln familiar 
·With the rrlainten.rnce spetificatioris,.th~ site an·d.any chan&:lna: Co.nditfons. 

b. The·crew members shoulcfbe·properly trained to carry out.their assigned task,-and should work ln a 
safe pfofeSSlonal manner. E.:ich ctew me"mber: ShoiJld be in full ·uniforfu at all tiines tq iilclude all rain, 

coid we:at,her gear a·nd_hats; 

c, Contractor ·fs expected to staff the property. with trained personnel experienced in comtnerclal 
!anciSt3p!;! )1'laintenance,. All perso.nnel applying fer:tlii~er.s, Insecticides, herbicid~s and fu.ngi<;id~ ni_ust 
be certified !:>v the Fl Departmen~ of A'gricultu.r~ .and Coris.umer Servii:es. These lndlvidua·I~ ~houl.d be: 

Owrier'5: lhitials._~~~~ Pag~.~ ot:2,o 

41 



OocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63Df2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

B~st Managemeli~ Practic¢s Certlfi.ed and:hold a Limited CE!rli~cclt_ion for Ufban lands<:ape C:Omm~rcial 
Fertilizer or· a Certified Pest Control Operator or an employee with an ID card working under the 
St.ipervisiOi1 of a CPCO, 

d: Contractor agrees to screen all-crew members for criminal background, advise Manag~ment and not 
.employ·persons for"this:Contract that hilve hee·n. convicted of or pied guilty to a :fe!Oni,i Ci'ilile, Also, 
Contractpr agrees tq· follow all_ INS guidelines for _hiring and to 01,;i"lntah'1 .i,1.1) 'J-g a£1d other" reqt1i~~d 
documents on each employee. 

~. Ci:;,ritractcir is. exp.ected to staff the prdpe·rty With adequately traine~ p·ersonhet Holidays i:>b!ief"Ved. that 
do not require: staffing include New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day~ Labor Day; 
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Normal working hours are from 7:00 AM until 7:00 PM: Saturdays 
will be made avaliable f0r makeup;work·due tci ind~m·ent weathef .frQrn 8:0{.).' AM l!lltil 5'. PM.-

SCHEDULE "B'l-TURF CARE PROGRI\M {ST. AUGUSTINE). 

A. ApplicatiOn SChedule 

AppliCation 

January: late winter fertilization, br6adleaf weed and disease control 

Marchi spring: grahulai:-Jertillzationt btOadl~<if weed control, iriSect "and disease colifrol 

.Early ~umrner ljquI~ fertiliza_tion with Arena ~~~t we~d ~ol)fr.o_i 

July: Insect and Weed contr"OI 

~epte_m_ben late summer for_tillz<1tlon1 insect and disease: con~rol 

November: Fall fertilization and broadleaf weed/disease control 

Note:_ Sor)1e pppl/ca_tic:m~ J¥ifl be combined for e/fi(;Jency. (\pP,li~a.tlons can f?~ a_dded or del~~ed b(!sed Of! soil 
samples; aV{li/ability of p,:odµcts-or inclement weqther. 

a. Application Requirements_ 

1. Fertilit:atio"n 

Pag~.7 of2o 

42 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

a. Annuai·prog~lil w_ilJ-indu~e a minimu~ of 5_ lbs. o_f_N/:J,OO()square feet~ith ~ minimum of30% slow 
release and a high POtasslum blend in the fall fertilization fo pi:omote· root development unless -soil 
sample~:indlccite the p~sen:c~· pf sufficient PotaSSiulll. 

b. All.fertilizers utilfaed under this program are-to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A 
coinplete ffiin:Oi and trace·.elemerlt package Will bi! included with ~ach applic~.tion tb etisi..ir.e.that-all the 
tequjr~{iieri.ts of grass.e? ate met. 1t·$o!_I sai-npli;:iif inct!c;/lt~ij·higli pH, plj ferti.liZern l!tilized wiil.!J,~ Su(phur 
coated products. 

r;:. All hard$c1lp."e surfaces are to be biown OH ii:ninedi~tely follow)ng a fertilizer "appllditiOo tq· prevent 
staining, -

d·; The irri~ation sy·stem ":'1111 be fully Qper"ationai prior to any. fertiliz"er-aJ:1PliC<ltion. 

e. Soils shall be1ested at a-reliable testlog·f-acilify.fwiC:e·per year to monitor-fur pH'and chemical mcike up. 
The i'esults Will be pr_ovidEd tO rriar'iagement' aldng· With -the Cptitra·ctor's iecoiilmendatioil as tci any 
cha1_1ge~ in the t_urfC~re·program'!J~s.E!fi o_n ~hes~ r~sults! 

2. lnsect/Oisease Control 

a. The:r~ductioil _of irtig;l't:icin·water during t~e Winter season will ·~ratnatically redµ~e·tlie potential for 
fungusjdlSease problems. ·coritrador will be responsible to manage settings of lrrjgation timers, 

i,. Supplemental insecticide applkatioos will be provide,Hil addition to !he normal preventive j,ri:>giam as 
ne.~~ed ~o.provid~ co~trql. 

3, Weed Control 

a. ·Weed controi will be li'mited to ~he·bro:adleafvariel;y .ur,der thi~ pro~rarn, 

b. Contractor shall alert management of outbreaks of Sedge,·invasive B'ermuda,_ or Crabgrass. 

4. Warranty 

If the grass covered under this ttirf Care program dies due to lnsi?<;.tinfestatioti,_-dis~ase or impr.Ope"r ~rtilizer 
app\ic~tiOn, the affected gr"ss 1/,f.ill Qe repi~·c·ed at_ r:io charge. Contr~ctor will n.6t b"e·helifres:J}oQsible fo.rturf · 
loss due fo condltiOns beyond their control. This includes nematodes, diseases such as Take•AII ·Root Rot 
and 'weeds si,ich aS Cr~bgrasS Which ate Untreatable With cu(rently· available chemil;als, high trc!-ffic' aieas 1 

dra"illage prQQIE;"ms; or· ~cts of qqd_. In th~ -~y~nt. th~-~E;" conditi6.ns_ ar.e pre•e~isting; the contractqr fs 
responsibJe,fu employ whatever· cultural practices can be reasonably peiformed to extend the life of the 
affecteci !Tlate_r'ial, 

Owner's:!hit_jals._· ---~ 

43 



OocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BAB7-4158-A602-C16DF20BBA5F 

SCHEDULE "81" -TURF CARE PROGRAM (BAHIA) 

A. APPlkation Schecfule· 

MOnth 

M~tch: 

JUf!e: 

AppficatiOn_ 

Crii'n"jl_iet~ iiqUiQ 18-0-8 N-P-K fertiiiter ahQ broa_cileaf weed ·contrOI .fo irlcltide blanket 
p_re-emer&ent he"rbicide applic;:atio_n. 

October: Complete liquid 18.-0-8 N-P-K fertilizer and broadleaf weed control to lflclude blanket 
pre~emergent herbicide. application . 

.Note: som.e app)icatioiis".Will be c"oit,bined /of ej!icienO(,.App1ic·atfQh~ can -~e added.Qr' de!"eted 
biiS'ed 011 soil Samples~-aitriilability" Of f,iOducts or incl~ment weather. 

B~- AppliCatlon Requirements. 

1. Fertilization 

a. Annual program will include a minimum of 2 lbs of N/1000 square feet with a minimum of.300/4 slow 
r_eiease:and a high P.ota~slum blend itl the.October fertilizatkin tO promo~e-rOot developm~nt unles_s·soii 
samples indica-te the presence Of sufficient potassium, ' 

b. Ali fertiiizers Utilized under this prog~am· are tQ be.custom bh;md.ed with·a -balanced nutrientpackag~. A 
<:~rpf)I~~~ minor _a_nd t~a.c~-el~i:n~n~ pack_~ge WIii be included with_ e~ch appliGatron to ensure that ~Ii the. 
requirements of grasses are met If soil samples indicate a high pH, all-fertilizers utilized will be Sulphur 

~pated products. 

c. All hardscape surfaces are to: be blown offimmediai:ely following a fertilizer application to prevent 

stairiiri~--

d: The _irrigati_on_syst~01 will be ful_ly oper:¥1Honal pd9r t9 an{fertilizer appllc;:ifion, . 

. e. S6Us:S.half be tested at a reli.ible testing facility twice peryear-fo_monitof for.pH a·nd chemical make _Up. 
The reSult;s will Pe pr:Ovjde,d t;o' management along With the contract9.r"s ·reco·mrrl~:mdatiort as. ti;) afly 
changes in the turf care pr(?gram based on these results, 

2. lnsect/Dis~ase ContrOi 

Owner's.-!llitials ___ ~~ pa~e 90f20 

44 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13O63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

A. 

a. The reduction of irrig~tion water during the winter season will dramatically. reduce the potential for 
•furigUs/dis.eas~ probleril_s, COritf~ctor will be f~sponsible to man~~~ :!i~ttings qf irrigatiori tirilers, 

b; .Suppieme~ta_l i1_1s~ctki.de ~ppllqi_t)O;ns vyill Qe_ Pf.9~id.e~ i.n addit)oo t9 the nc.>rrna! P.reve.ntb;:e progra_rn as 
needed to provide control. 

~- Weed (qritrol 

a. Weed control will be limitE'd to the broadleafvariety under this program. 

4. Warranty. 

.a. !here. i.s no:warr~nty for Bah!;I"tJlrf, 

Applicatfon Schedule 

Jah~.ary:• 

February:· 

March\ 

April: 

May:-

June:· 

SCHEDULE "B2"-TURF CARE PROGRAM (BERMUDA} 

Application. 

D!°s:ease &. ins~ct ¢ootrot: 

Fertiliiation 18-0-8 Ammonium Sulfate 

·0·arricade/P.otash 0-0-22 

"FertUitatloh i3'-3-13 wi Ropsta"(Ot equi"val~nt produ~t; 

Sedge & Broadleafweed·tontrol/Disease & lnsect·controt 

Core Aeration/Top Dressing_ w 20% Organic Peat 1/81
' 

.Fertilization 14.-0:-14, TOpthaice Application 

Disease & Insect Confrol as Needed; 

owner's li-iitials._. --~-

45 

Pag~ 1,0-of 20 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

Au~ust: Se.cl$~.& Broadle~fw~ed Control/Di_Sease-& IOSe:l;t C9nt;rol 

October: ,Fertiiizatiori 1~-o-&., Core Ae·ratlon &,"Tor Dressitit; w 20%.Qr~~niC'Peat i/P/ 

·November: Disease & Insect Control 

Deceinber: Potash 0-0-62 

-Note·: Some(at,pUcations will be Combined jOr ejficii!i1tji. Appiicatioris tan be cid~ed·-br deJeted.bilied ori 

$Oil $Qrri(?lesl ciVt1ilci6i!ity of pfqdticts ·or !hdem.ent weai:he/ 

.e.: A(?pllc3tion Re·guirements 

1, Fertlllzatl9n 

a
1 

All "fertil_ii:er~ uti!iied µn_der this prograrn ,:ne ~o .~e· cys1;om·_ bjend~<J With_ a f:,alan¢e~ nuti'ie11t pack9g~. A 
com_p!e"te minor and trace element package Will be included with each application to ensure i::hat all the 
reqt1lremen~_of.graSSes· are met, lfSOil sarripleS iridicate a high p.H, all fer.tlliz&rs utilized Will be SUlphllf 

c9.ited pr.odil~ts. · · 

b. All hardscape surfaces are to be blown off Immediately following a fertilizer. application to prevent 

stalnin~. 

c, The.irrigatiOn system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application,· 

d·. Soiifshall ~~ tested at a ·r~llable testing_fadiify twlc~·per yeartd·~onitot (or pH and d1~rt_iical r(lak_~ up~ 
The results will be provided to manag~ment along __ Wlth the contractor'.s r~cotnmendation .as to any 
Cha·n~es in the tu'rfC.ai~ program baSed on theSe i"E!si.Jlts. 

1--·. .lnsect/Oiseas~ C9ratrol 

a. The redudion of"irrlga·tioh water during the winter season wlll dramatically reduce· the potential for 
funglls/diSease problems. Contractor will be responsible to ni'a·na~e settings Of irrigation tin'l~rs. 

b: .Supplemeni:al insecticide applications will be provided in addition to the normal preventive program as 
neede.d .. tQ provide contr:ol. 

Owner'"s ltl'itials_. -~-~ Pagel_lofiO 

46 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

A, 

a. Sedge contr~l is included ·as .a part of this progra111 

4. Warran~. 

lf the grass covered under this turf care program dies due to insect infestai:iof'!( disease or-improper fertilizer 
ap·pticatiOn, th.e affected grass will be l'eplacf!d cith,J.Chii'rge. CoritrilctorWil! nOt be held "r~sponSible for farf· 
loss due tP. cQn~iUohs bt;!'{ond thei.n::Qn.trQl; ·Th_is includes hematqd¢s,"hi'gh tr~ffic .;r~as; drainage problems, 
or acts of God •. In the event these conditions are pre~existing 1 the contractor is responsible. to employ 
whatever ctilttiiill practice:; ca·n be reasonably' pefform·ed tO eXtel'ld.the life.of the affected material. 

SCHEDULE "B3" -tli~I' CAl'lE PROGRA.l'/l (ZOYSIAl 

Application-Scheduie 

Januarx: 

February: 

March 

Ap(II: 

June:· 

)uly 

August: 

September:· 

October: 

Ariplicat:ioO.· 

1PM spot treatme:nt for w~eci~ as nec.essary and inspect/treat fun~alactiv.ity. 

Pre-emerge.ht herbicld~/spot \:rea"trnent for·we~S and fi/11gal"act!vily'. 

Fertilization (granular 20-0-1~). Spot.treat weeds and.treat fungal-and i_nsect 

activity as necessary. 

Post·emergent weed c;OntrOI, insect/disease !;:c;mtrol a_s nE:'c¢s~ary,. 

Insect/weed/disease control as necessary. TeipChoice•.at·2·.o-1bs. per iOOO Sq. Ft'. 

lnSett(Weed/dis.eas_e ctiritrol as. necessary. 

Uqui~-!ron Sulphate !:Ind Techrnang.in:: lllsci.GVweed/~isease.cootr91 as. 

necessary~ 

!PM-spot treat weeds as necessary, inspect/treat fungal activity. 

Feftilii.atiOn with 14--0-40 or sirililar. Weed/insect/disease ~antral as lieCessary; 

Pc;,Stemergent wee4 c_::Qntrol, !nsect/dlse.as_~ c;:onttol .~s neces~ary; 

Owner's_ lr,itials". ___ _ Page 12 oflO 

47 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 130630F2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

November: 

Deceniber':· 

Blanket pre-emergent herbicide, w/Liq_uid Iron, Spot treat weeds and 

Inspect/treat fungal activity; 

Blanket POtash 0-0-62 i:JJ)pllcatl6n· at 4 lbs'. 'per 1,000 Sq, Ft., I PM-spot treatweeds 

a·s rieces:;ary, insp!;!ct/tteat fuo~al activity: 

Not¢: ~ome applications. witi b~-¢mb_ined fot·ettideney. Applicqtions can· be. ·added di': deleted baS:ed !)n soil 
sa"mple"s, a_Vq11ab11ity of ptOducts of inclemeri.t weather. 

B.. Application Requirements 

1. fertili:Zation 

a, Ali fertiii;-:e"r!i utiiized ulider ~his pr_og"ram' are _to be.tµst.oril "bl~nded wjth -~-ba{anc;:et;I nutrient~ackage. A 
co~plete riliifr,r and trace element package Will be·induded with e.ich applictltion tO erisllre that all the 
requlr¢meJltS:of grasses an:nnet, If soil samples indicate a hig:h pH, all fertiliiel'.S utilized.Will be SulP,hut 
.coated products. 

b. Ali hard.scape ~.ur'f,ices ~r~ ~q be_ ~i_o'?Jn off imme_~i~~ely foli_ow!!lg ¥1. f~rt!lizer applic_ation· t~ preve.r:it 
staining. 

C, The "irrl~tion i;ystem Wil(be f4Jly ~p·era_~jorial p_riorto aily.fertilizer.applk:ation.: 

d. Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility ·twice per' year to monitor for pH and chemical make·up. 
Th(l results :will be provided to: managei'n~nt a!Ong with the· co11tr~ctor's r'e~ommeridation .)S to ahy_ 
·d1a"nges in the tt!rfcare·program.·ba!?e_d.on ~h~se r~sult,s, 

2. Insect/Disease Control 

a_. The· reduction ofirrlgath;m_ water duri(lg t.h~ W!riter season Wm dramatically redm;~ th~ pot¢ritla1 for 
fungus/disease problems. Coritractor will be·responsible to manage settln_gs of irrigation.timers. 

b. _Sµj>pleilfentai irisec~lclde applii:ations will he provided in additidn ~o the.rt6rriial preve·ntive prcigrarri as 
ne~ded to provide·c9n_tr(?I. 

c, TopCholce gr3ni.Jlar irlsec;ticide tO be a\)f)Ued at2.0 fbs; pef 1000 ~q. ft . .fo"r: Mole·crickets Oti.cE! per·yea.r, 

3.· Weed Control 

pag~ 13 of20 

48 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

a. Weed control will not be limited to only the broad!E?af variety_ under this program. 

I;>: Contractor ~.ha·n_.afertmanagement 9f 9utbreaks·OtSedge, itlv_asiy"e B_ei"myda, or Cr'ab~i13ss, 

~- ·wa_r_ranty 

If th_~ grass i;::pveted '1Qd~r t~is -turf tare program ·d!f!~ du_e to __ i_n~ect infe~tatlon,. dlsea_se or_ ·tfl!-pfopet 

fertiliier _appl(ca_tion~. the affected grass. will be tepla_~ed at no ch~rge• Con~«;:tor w\11 not be. heJq 

respori~jble fpr tU_rf loss du!! to condit_ions _beyond t_heir control. 

C. Exclusions 

A. 

AII-Wcirk ri:Stdcted spedfically·to the described a,:eas as_lis.t!!d ifl gur scop~.of W9rk, 

NO unde_r brushing:ot.any natu_ral vegetaUqh"i_S in_tlud~d unless· otherwise specified. No vines. or mat¢rlal 

wlli be ·proned>aw~y.·trprri pr~j:1¢rty line!f, this iS an additionai service. 

Thts do~~ not.inc!µd~ any br_µ~h tri"mtrlif)g il.'.~~nt~r 9f c~nals/ponds or area~ lnacc:E).ssibl~ to norm~( 

m·owinq: condition~. Als9.~X:clud°es_ removal.qffarge iogs c;ir"a11ytl1i!'lg-two·men cannot phy~ic;,1ily" {withfr1. 

re~son} piCk '-{))1 

.Any damage to screen en.clo.sl!res pot_proiected by !~n~scape bprders·9r ki~k pl~t~~i 

Damage from dog urine, freezes, high winds, haH, hurricanes) fornad-o, floods, tsunami,_ lightning, fire, 

restrictions by governmental agencie~~ government, clty,_st.ate or local watering restrlct"ions; regulations or 

manCates,_acts·of God or any act of-nature. 

Pests, funguses, disease·or anythi"ng imported to or created in -the-:United States that has-no immediate 

contr~I such as, but not limited to; ~ian cycad· Scale; Bonder Nesting Whitefly~ Borers, Chilli Thrips 1 Fi"g; 
Whitefly,_ Fllsarium Wilt1 Ganoderma Butt Rot, Pink Hibiscus MealfBug; ·Rugose Splraling-Whitefly,_Sri 
lanka.-Weevil, Take~AII Root ·Rot; New pests are.introduced Into the United S'tates·every year and this l!St Is 

subject to change without notlce.-

-Any damages to trees, shrubs, sod or flowers due to city, govemment or any water restrictions. 

Dama~e ~at.isf!d by faulty irri~~tion toritroll~rs, titnfkS,_ v~lves, soleflriid.s, line bf.e.ik$ o"r"3"nything affiliat~d 

With ir'r~gation components.rE!Strictlng OrSto"pping irrigiititig. 

ThlS doe_$ no_t includ~ any maintenance or replacemen~ \0 w~ath~red.items i"ndudin·g sign repair, ft'!rn':¢ 
post$, timb~t retaining ties, Or-any· other item that hasdeteririr.it~d due tO normal conditions. Any 

repla~ement done by .the ·cont(a~tor wiil be_ done in ihe form of a_ Writte.ri work ord~F tq ~lient-and sigried 

·ai,d di\ted b'f bOth pattlEiS _prior to 3ny" pdditloiial Wotk. 

SCHEDULE "C" -TREE./ SI-IRUB CARE PROGRAM 

Application Schedule. 

MO nth APp]lcation 

Owner's Initials·.----~ Pag_~ 14.ofiO 

49 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

Febryary: Spring granular fertilization and lns:ect/dlsea,se control as needed. 

Mcirch/AprU~ lns:~t/diseas~ eontroJ(fertilization· as needed 

May/June: ln~ei:t/dise;!ase contr'Ql/fertili:zation as: _ne~ded 

July/August: Insect/disease control/fertilization as needed 

October: Fail g~anuiarfertilizat;iori and rnsectfdlSease control as needed 

.December: liisect/dis~ase c:onh-ol as ne.eded 

NOte; Some·appJications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted based on soil 

samples,. availability of products or inclement weather. 

B. APPiication R~quirerilenbi" 

;i.. fertiliza~ion. 

a. Fertilizers selected must be appropriate for the plant m.aterlal to be fertilized such as an acid forming 
fertilizer for Azal~as which.J'equir~ a lower so.ii pH, 

b; Annual _program wiil Include a minimum of 30% slow release Nitrogen and a high Potassium blend in the 
fall fertilization to .Promote ""r"oOt deVelopmerit tiiiless. sOil sample r.esults indicate the presence .of 
.sufficient Potassium. 

c. All fertilizers utiliZed under this program are. to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A 
complete minor and trace ele_ment:pac.kage will be included with each apl)licatiOri to ensure i:hafall t_he 
requirements ofplaritmaterial are·met ff soil samples indicate a· high PH, all fertilizers utiliZed will be 
-Sulphur coated products. 

d. Th!S. program rover·s a·II fertjl!.tv r~.quir~m~nts.on all eX!stlng shrups·af\d palms, as well a:> al_l newly 
installed shrubs, trees, and palms.up to 151

·• All native trees or transplanted frees over 15' in overall 
heiiihtwili require ~-p"ed~l corisideration and "ar¢ therefore excluded fro.in thiS prog_ram, 

ei Fertilizer will be distributed evenly under the drip zone of each plant. Special care wlll be taken not to 
"dunip" fertilizerneithei:a·t the ba·se Ocir.in the· crOWn of pli.lrits. 

f. The irrigation-system wilfbe fully.operation~! pri9r to ~ny·fertl!izer applic<!"t:iori, 

·Owner's,.111i~i.als __ -~~~-

50 

Page 15 of~O 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

.S: .Soils shall be tested at a reli.ible testing fuCiHty once per year to monitor for pH, Nematodes, Take All 
ROOt Rot arid Chemical make-up. The results Will be pj-oVidecl to j-nanagerheJlt alotlg with tlie 
Contractor's recomrn';'!rid~tic;iri a$ to a·ny change~ in .the Tr~e/$hr4bcare program_ l;,as!;!dt;:m tlJ~s1:: r~sults. 

2, Insect/Disease Control 

a. inset:~ and· dise~ise _to.ntroj is intended ttl mean a thOr'ough inspection_ Of.iii pia"ntlngS. fuf the presence 
of insect or ·disease activity and the appropriate treatment applied. All inse~t and disease infestations 
require fol/PW-up applications for-contrOI an~ are included.in thiS•program. 

_b! Y!nfr~ctqri~ respo.nsib.l~for t~~ continuous m~nJtqring for the pr~s~nce ofda.rraaging insed~or dis_eas!="• 
Any.problems noted between regularly scheduled visits will be treated as a serv1ce call. Service calls due 
to active infestatioris are lndudeil in this·ptogr'ar'f! .. 

c. This program covers all disease a;nd Insect activity on all existing·shrubs and palms; as well as all newly 
installed shi"Ubs, trees, and palms 'uP tO 15', All ·native trees onr~ns·planted trees.cl/er 15' in overall 
heiShtw!lf:requ\re speCial tiQn.~ld~ta_tion :and ~.re therefore ex:dude<;t.fr'Orn this ·pr:ogram, 

d. Contractor will be required to apply all pesticides in accordance- with labeled directions including the 
uSe .ofanY-P.~rsa:nal P.r'O~ectiVe. ~quip_ni~nt, 

3. Specialty Palms 

a. Crinsid¢rhig tlie irtv~Strnelit In speci_alty Palms such as· Phoel'li>c:V.ai'ieties (i.e_. Dic:tylifera, SVlVeStt,r, 
~an_ary ·1sl~nci Da.te_ ~~c.}, Contractor will foclude fer:tiiiz~.tio_n and rQot/ bud dr~.l'.lct"ffor potential diseas~ 
and infestation two times per year. 

4; Wammty 

If a plant or tree dies from insect or disease dam<!ge while under this Tfee/Shrub Care Program, it wlll be 
repi~~ed with One that is reasanabiy avafiable, Exciusior1.s to this wa.rranfy W6uld be pre-existing condltlOns, 
.n.e~atqd{'!~; bore~; loc_:µsts; arid g!sea,~.es Sl;IC~ a_s verticill_lUm and'fusari"um:Wffta_T'!d ~anQderrna f;lutt"Flotihat 
are untreatable with currently avallable chemicals, Texas· Phoenix Palm :Decline (!'TPPD".), soil contamination, 
drainage problems or collditions_tli~t prevent the corttt~<::tQr fr:Qm providing p_f6pe~ irrigation, s_uch as Water 
Ma.nage~eJJ~ DiStrict r~str!ct!C!f!S ·or. .m:iappp:~~~d irri~!IC?.O repairs a·11.~. Ac:ts of God.. 1.n. ~he event tli.e~e 
c~nditions exist, the contractor ·is responsible to employ whatever cultural practices can .be reasonabl,y 
perforrn_ed to ~xt~rici ttie·jif~•~{.the alfec;ted r'n_<~te~ial. 

Owrier-"s IOitials._~-~- Pag¢·1~_of~O 

51 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

SCHEDULE 110"~ SPECIAL SERVICES 

Flower Beds 

The nature and purpose of ✓,,Flower Bedst~ is to draw attention to the display. The highest level ol 
attention should.be placed on their on-going care, 

1. SchedUle 

a. Alf flOwer beds cm. the ptoPerty iriduding ums·a.nd pQts will.be th~tigedou\ fm..ir. (4l times p_e,:-yea(. 

b; Contractor recognizes that flower beds are intended "to highlight and beautify high ·profile areas and 
shOuld be selected for. cOlor_; piofu"s;ion and dls_play_. 

2, ·1nsfalla.tio1J 

a.. Plan,ts are tq b~ lns~ailE:d µtilf?ing ~ fri?ngul_ar. sp~~ir\g of lF'-lo'' o'.C, (~epending 011 type} b~~tvye~n 
plants. 

b. Anm.g1!Jy, prior ,to the Spr'lr\g ~h~r!ge 9u_t, eXjs;tlng soil w_lil ~e t.~TT!c;r•-.,~d .t~.a d~pth of~,; in :a:11 <!!nnua.(l:!eds 
and replaced with dean growing medium-composed of 60% peat and 40% fine ag~d Pine Bark.-

Ci All beds will b~ c_leah~{il_n~ h<!n~ or mac_hinE_:!,<;ultiv_at~~ft.9" a d.epth·o(G" pr_lc;,r ~q thf: !n~tall_ation of 11.ew 
Plants. 

d, Create-a·.2" trench wJ\~re the ~dg~ Qf th~ bed is adj_aC-etitt9. turf Qr liardscaP~, 

e. .A grantilarltine-re!ease fertilizer .and a granular systemic fungidde . .will be incorporated if\to the bedding 
s't,il at the time Of iilS.talfati9n. 

f. Follow-up applications·offertillzer, fungicide and insecticide are provided as needed. 

3. Maint¢n·anCe 

a. FioW¢:r J:,~ds~ p~t;s and urns ~11.P.e·reviewed at ~ach serv_ite V)s_it fur--the ft;)lloi,ying: 

• Rf;!m·o_y.jJ qf ali litter and debii.S, 
• Remov_al of;wee.ds'. 
• Inspect-for the presence·of insect or disease activ-ity and tre::.t Immediately. 

b. Se~d h~a~s are t<;t b~.·rem_oved from Col~us· plant~ <!S so«;>n a:; they appear.· "Pinching'' 9f _<;:c;i'leµs·plants 
Is to be a part of the on-going maintenance as well. Frequent·11pinching'1 will result in healthier, mare 
compact plants. 

c, Piollfic bloomers such as Salvia requke that 10% to 20% of healthy blooms are to be removed, 

Page·f7 of2Q 

52 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF2088A5F 

C. 

4, ~re-emergent herbicide~ ~re; not tq be used in a!}nual beds • 

. e. Contr,ictor gUatantees the sui"vivabili_ty arid perfor'm~nc¢ Mall <Jnriual Pla"ntiiigs for-a pe•riod of 90 days._ 
Any plan~ th~t Jail~ to pei:f9rm during thi~ ·peri~d wil.1. be irnmedi~t~ly (epi?~i;I at the c;ontra9tof~ 
expense. 

4, Warranty_ 

~flY bedding p_lant th<1:tdi~~ du_e-to·if!~ect damage or d!~e.ase:~!'il! b.~ replac~q u_nder wa_rrancy._ Fxcfusidns td 
tl)fs_w_arqmtyw?uld b~-h~rd free~~i ~~_ft; yandafism~ t~.P~i~, ~ee_r9_r c_o.nditjQtfs'.beyo.Jid _t~t;fr·cont(q!, R~µ~it 
'and deer re:pell"ant·are not induded fo this co.h_trai;;~ a_fld wlll be iostallec,f .~tan a~tditlonal c~a_rge. 

1. Schedule 

2, Installation 

a. Prio.(lo applicatio"fl, areas Will be. prepafed by l'erilOVill!tiill foreign debris.arid accurnulated mulch 
material and establishing~ defiried~ Un.iform e:dg~ tri _al_l bEid and tfee rings aS·Well aS.a.1" to 2" deep 
treiit:h:alOng a"ll h.irdsCape ·suifaCeS to iri"ch.Jde.~qUip!'Tlent pads, irl Order to 1-iold the·mUlch ih p1ace. 

b; iy'!ul_ch should pe· !r_istalled.in w~edJree b~ds that ~.a'f~ been properly-e~ge~ -and·prepared_._ 

:c. Mulch ShOUld.be ins~lled to m.airitaln a.1"-1-1/21
' thickn:ess in <!11 bed areas, inc;luding tree."riil_gs in laWn· 

areas and maintenance.Strips unless otl-ierwise dire"cted by mana·gemeot 

Palm Trimming 

1. Specimen Date Palms such as Phoenix varieties (i.e. Dilctylifera, Sylvester, Canary Island Date; e_tc.) in excess 
ofi2' CV:wiil be trlmmed·t:w~ times·per year. ·loo~e Orexce$Sive bo·ots Wi_il be te!TJ_O\fe~ i;!nd/gl' ¢r6ss cut during 
t_his p_rote~s_. 

2. AIi palms less_ ~a·n·li' CT Will be trimlJl.ed.as needed by·Jhe· ~eta~ crew_ during th¢ reglJlar detail rot_atlon-as 
(!ulllne~ in General S~rvlc;es._ · · 

3, WashiTJgto·nia palms in excess ·of ;I.2'. CT will btj trimmed two times l)f;r;ye .. r. 

4; 'rrlm:.Sai;,al: ·washington, ¢hine~¢, Fan_ an_d Ribbon P.alms:so_ that the.fowest_l'ema!ning fronds: are l~ft at a tell 
and two o'clock profile. "Hllrrlcane1! cuts are only to be done at:the dlrectlon ofmariagement 

Page 1:&.of20 

53 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

5. When.f:ri~mi~g, cut the.fr~rid ~qs~ to the trµnk ~ithoUt leaving "stul;)s1' 

SCHE.DULE «E" - IRRIGA'TION MAINTENANCE 

Frequency of Servic-e 

a. ~qnt_r~t~Qr w\ii pe_rf9~m th~ follo'?,'jng Jt~!"llii~~ s~,rvi_~es uhder ~':Spec!flc~ti_ons'; on a mpnthly b_;;isb, 

B. Specifications 

C, 

1, ACtivate ea~h zOne·of the system. 

2, Vlsuall\' check for any.damaged heads or heads needing repair. 

t C(¢an,.~t.ra:ighten or ad Just any he:ads, not ('µnctioning p~operfy.• 

4. Stralghte~, ~e:-at!:ach_t9 br..icing and touch µp palnt_O_n ris·er head:S .as neede:~ .. 

5. Report any valve or valve box that may be.damaged In anyway. 

6. ~eave areas i!l Vo{hic'1 repair.s. or ~djµst~erits are made fre~· of debris, 

7. Adju_$t_C:Ontr9ll.er to the\Vatering he~c!s as dictated by\.Yealher· co.nditiQmfand·seasonar reqllirf!rri~nts· 

indU~lliga~justing of rain sens~r! · 

Quaiifying Statements· 

1. .Repairs· 

.a. R~i:i:~i~s ~}iat b~come neceS$_,:i'ry and ~~at ar~.over "and· ~bov~ the rO:utine_ m~inten"ance c;Qntract will be 
done· oil 3 time· and material hasis at· the rates .Qf $~5.00/hi" .. foi ii technician arid .$.65,00/ht. for a 

specialist 

b. 11:is LindCr~fopd th,at:"tif11e IS of .the essence fur repalr~!io that sod, pJants and trees dO _not~ie. Therefore, 
a. not to'e'?(C~~d·pr_ice of $i~900\oo is app~mted vylthout a furmal ptoposal_SC? that.th~ oon~ract9r c~!" 
proceed in a tlffl~I.Y .ma_n.n_er. 

2. Service Calls 

a, Service Q\11~ required between _scheduled Visits,W.il.l b¢ billec,f on a time and material b.asis at the r~tes 
of.$35.00/hr, for a te~~nician a·nq" $~5.0Q/iir .. for a specialiSt 

OWne(s·lilitials._· ___ _ page 19 of2Q 

54 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 13D63DF2-BA87-4158-A602-C16DF20B8A5F 

b. When not ~n en:ierg~ncy, request. for authori.z.a~p~fl'r)us~ b~ ~ubn_;ltle~ ifl wr,tt~n fotf!I !Q Jtji3n~gement 
f9~ apf?rc;w~I whe,;t th~ 1=osJs v,,ill ~X<:~ec;I ·$1i0b0.Q(); A_ de_scripi:j9n cf the proble~,.= i~ l9p1~ion_ al"!~ 
estlm.ated costshoul4 be jnd_u~fe~. 

3. Contractor will pay special attentiori during irrigation maintenance inspectlons·to ensure that sprinkler heads 
are positioned so that water does nofspray directly-onto buildings, windows or parking areas and to·adji.Jst 
any heads that are found to be out of position •. 

4-. Damage .resulting from contraitor's·crews working on the property {i.e., mower- and edger- cuts) will. be 
repaired·atno cha.q;e-tp t~e: owner. 

5. Contractor shall ncitbe held responsible for any system failure r-..aused by lijg:htning1 construCtion worki_pre-
existiiig q'.mciitions, fre·eze1 i'.i~ts Ot,-God, cir C~nditlo_ns beyorid.thefr c9ritr~I. · 

6, Contractor shall not be held responsible for damage 1:o:the landscape caused by mandatory water restrictions 
plac:.ed ori the property by ~e· ~o:ifemingwa.tefm·~1:ha_gem~ht.<lis.trit.t, · 

Owner's lnil:_ials ~--~ Page 20of2o 

55 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd., Bldg. 300, Suite 305, Jacksonville, Florida 32257 

Memorandum 
Date:  November 2020 
To:  Bannon Lakes Board of Supervisors 

  Jim Oliver, Richard Whetsel 
From:  Brian Stephens              

             Operations Manager 
Re:  Bannon Lakes CDD 

  Monthly Operations Report 
 

The following is a summary of activities related to the field operations of the Bannon Lakes Community 
Development District. 

 

 

Landscape / Irrigation:    

1. Multiple irrigation repairs have been made. 

2. Landcare is preparing to overseed the Bermuda Turf.  

 

  

    

 

 Amenity / Site: 

1. Cleaning of the pools is being done two (2) days per week. 

2. The Amenity and Fitness Facilities are being cleaned weekly. 

3. The interior paint has been touched up in the Pool Restrooms. 

4. Ant mounds are being treated weekly. 

5. Freedom Pest Control is continuing monthly pest control services for the Amenity Center. 

6. The annual Termite treatment for the Amenity Complex has been completed. 

7. The filters have been replaced in all of the AC units. 

8. The paint has been touched up on the baseboards in the Clubhouse. 

9. All of the pool furniture and metal patio furniture has been pressure washed. 

10. The office walls have been cleaned and repainted. 

11. A flag pole was installed at the Amenity Complex with an American Flag. 



12. New grating has been ordered for the pool gates. 

13. The main pool gate lock was repaired. 

14. Multiple holes have been filled in at the Dog Park. 

15. The sidewalk in front of the Clubhouse was pressure washed. 

16. The shower faucet was repaired on the pool shower. 

17. Two (2) parking lot lights were repaired. 

 

   

    

 

Ponds: 

1. Lake Doctors is doing a good job maintaining the lakes. 

2. Construction debris has been picked up in all of the lakes. 

 

 

 

 

 Other Projects:  

1. None at this time. 

 

 

 

Should you have any questions or comments regarding the above information, please feel free to 
contact me at (904) 627-9271 or Rich at (904) 759-8923. 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd, St Augustine, FL 32095 

Memorandum 
Date:  November 2020 
To:  Bannon Lakes Board of Supervisors 

  Jim Oliver & Richard Whetsel 
From:  Bre Meeks                

   Facility Manager  
Re:  Bannon Lakes CDD 

  Facility Manager Report 
 

 

Clubhouse Usage:  

• Clubs are active and typically meet on a weekly basis. The clubhouse is reserved for private 
events with more prevalence on the weekends. Residents are continuing to clean and meet in 
accordance with CDC and state guidelines.  

    

 

 

Pool Usage:  

• The pool is has many regular users that come daily. The residents are aware they are to maintain 
social distancing practices while at the pool at this time. 

 

 

 

Fitness Center Usage:  

• The Fitness Center is back at full capacity per the Governor’s directive. The residents are aware 
they are to maintain social distancing practices while at the fitness center at this time.  

 

 

  

 

 

 



 

 

Active Clubs at Bannon Lakes: 

• Mahjong 

• Women’s Card Club 

• Men’s Card Club 

• Games Club 

• Bunco  

    

 

 

Events: 

• Food trucks are now coming to the property two to three times weekly, per resident request.  

• The "Dancing in the Streets" event was held on September 5th with fun for all, including a live 
band. This was a big hit with the residents.  

• Zoom Workshops are held monthly by Florida Health Care Plans. 

• First Coast Athletics is coaching a weekly field day for the children of the community.  

 

 

 

Future Events: 

• Fall/ winter events are currently being planned. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Unaudited Financial Statements
as of

September 30, 2020



Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

 

 General  Debt Service
Capital 
Project

 Capital 
Reserve

Memorandum 
Only

Assets:  

Cash $163,902 --- --- $33,052 $163,902

SBA - GF $101,463 --- --- --- $101,463

Investments:  --- ---  

Reserve --- $384,750 --- --- $384,750

Revenue --- $486,759 --- --- $486,759

Prepayment --- $125,274 --- --- $125,274

Due From General Fund --- $3,626 --- --- $3,626

Due from Developer --- --- $9,299 --- $9,299

Due from Other --- --- --- --- $0

Prepaid Expenses $22,500 --- --- --- $22,500

Utilities Deposit $50 --- --- --- $50

Total Assets $287,915 $1,000,409 $9,299 $33,052 $1,297,623

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $24,103 --- --- --- $24,103

Contracts Payable --- --- $9,299 --- $9,299

Fund Balances:

Restricted for Debt Service --- $1,000,409 --- --- $1,000,409

Nonspendable $50 --- --- --- $50

Unassigned $263,762 --- $0 $33,052 $263,762

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity $287,915 $1,000,409 $9,299 $33,052 $1,297,623

Bannon Lakes

1



Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

Adopted Prorated Actual
   Budget Thru  09/30/20 Thru  09/30/20 Variance

REVENUES:  
  
Assessment - Tax Roll $377,650 $377,650 $378,906 $1,256
Assessment - Direct $127,103 $127,103 $93,488 ($33,615)
Developer Contributions $90,789 $90,789 $0 ($90,789)
Interest $0 $0 $1,205 $1,205
Facility Revenue $300 $300 $325 $25

Total Revenues $595,842 $595,842 $473,924 ($121,918)

EXPENDITURES:

Engineering $4,000 $4,000 $0 $4,000
Attorney Fees $12,000 $12,000 $7,655 $4,345
Dissemination $4,100 $4,100 $4,750 ($650)
Annual Audit $4,200 $4,200 $3,800 $400
Arbitrage $600 $600 $600 $0
Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Trustee Fees $10,000 $10,000 $4,333 $5,667
Management Fees  $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $0
Information Technology $1,733 $1,733 $1,733 ($0)
Telephone $200 $200 $118 $82
Postage $500 $500 $400 $100
Insurance $5,800 $5,800 $5,750 $50
Printing and Binding $3,000 $3,000 $862 $2,138
Legal Advertising $2,000 $2,000 $1,059 $941
Other Current Charges $700 $700 $160 $540
Office Supplies $1,000 $1,000 $54 $946
Website Services $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

 
Total Administrative $101,208 $101,208 $82,650 $18,558

Amenity Center

Insurance $19,974 $19,974 $13,840 $6,134
Utilities  
   Phone/Internet/Cable $6,800 $6,800 $5,061 $1,739
    Electric $25,000 $25,000 $14,126 $10,874
    Water/Irrigation $15,000 $15,000 $10,431 $4,569
    Gas $200 $200 $0 $200
    Refuse $3,100 $3,100 $3,530 ($430)
Security   
    Security Monitoring $600 $600 $0 $600
    Access Cards $2,500 $2,500 $1,500 $1,000
Management Contracts   
    Facility Management $60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $0

  

For the Period ending September 30, 2020

2



Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

Adopted Prorated Actual
   Budget Thru  09/30/20 Thru  09/30/20 Variance

For the Period ending September 30, 2020

Continued Management Contacts   
    Field Mgmt/ Admin $22,000 $22,000 $19,158 $2,842
    Pool Maintenance $12,000 $12,000 $11,752 $248
    Pool Chemicals $10,000 $10,000 $7,158 $2,842
    Janitorial $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $0
    Janitorial Supplies $3,450 $3,450 $1,798 $1,652
    Facility Maintenance $7,500 $7,500 $4,641 $2,859
Repairs & Maintenance $4,310 $4,310 $24,073 ($19,763)
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $19,583 ($19,583)
Special Events $5,000 $5,000 $5,036 ($36)
Holiday Decorations $1,500 $1,500 $691 $809
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $900 $900 $230 $670
Office Supplies $1,500 $1,500 $300 $1,201
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $500 $500 $0 $500
Pest Control $1,800 $1,800 $3,650 ($1,850)

Amenity Center Expenditures $210,634 $210,634 $213,556 ($2,922)

Ground Maintenance Expenditures

Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000
Landscape Maintenance $141,000 $141,000 $150,776 ($9,776)
Landscape Contingency $20,000 $20,000 $11,105 $8,895
Lake Maintenance $7,500 $7,500 $7,450 $50
Ground Maintenance $8,000 $8,000 $579 $7,421
Pump Repairs $2,000 $2,000 $0 $2,000
Streetlights $9,000 $9,000 $8,662 $338
Streetlight Repairs $5,000 $5,000 $2,633 $2,367
Irrigation Repairs $7,500 $7,500 $3,810 $3,690
Miscellaneous $5,000 $5,000 $415 $4,585
Reclaim Water $76,000 $76,000 $30,387 $45,613
Capital Reserve $0 $0 $50,000 ($50,000)

Total Ground Maintenance Expenditures $284,000 $284,000 $265,815 $18,185

TOTAL EXPENSES $595,842 $595,842 $562,022 $33,820

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($88,098)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $351,910
 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $263,812

3



11
   

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total
Revenues:
Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $25,840 $213,656 $132,712 $0 $1,695 $179 $3,020 $1,790 $14 $0 $0 $378,906
Assessments - Direct $14,968 $0 $0 $48,583 $0 $0 $14,968 $0 $14,968 $0 $0 $0 $93,488
Developer Contributions - FR $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest $190 $155 $156 $155 $141 $117 $79 $66 $47 $37 $34 $27 $1,205
Facility Revenue $25 $25 $25 $0 $0 $50 $0 $0 $125 $25 $0 $50 $325

Total Revenues $15,183 $26,020 $213,837 $181,450 $141 $1,862 $15,226 $3,086 $16,931 $77 $34 $77 $473,924

Expenditures:
Administrative
Supervisors $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FICA Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Attorney Fees $2,037 $430 $170 $580 $0 $370 $916 $971 $1,182 $0 $299 $700 $7,654.64
Dissemination $592 $342 $342 $142 $292 $792 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $792 $4,750
Annual Audit $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $1,300 $0 $0 $3,800
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $0 $0 $600
Assessment Roll $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Trustee Fees $1,333 $0 $0 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,333
Management Fees $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $45,000
Computer Time $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $144 $1,733
Telephone $7 $0 $23 $27 $0 $33 $0 $0 $18 $0 $0 $9 $118
Postage $12 $32 $3 $127 $9 $23 $14 $4 $92 $20 $62 $4 $400
Insurance $5,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,750
Printing and Binding $8 $291 $6 $9 $266 $25 $9 $111 $15 $33 $56 $34 $862
Legal Advertising $81 $0 $0 $332 $0 $0 $175 $0 $0 $350 $0 $121 $1,059
Other Current Charges $67 $155 $112 $85 $60 ($433) $10 $16 $16 $24 $23 $26 $160
Office Supplies $0 $15 $0 $0 $15 $0 $0 $13 $6 $1 $3 $0 $54
Website Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $100 $100 $100 $100 $1,200
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $19,455 $5,159 $4,550 $8,196 $4,536 $4,705 $5,310 $8,101 $5,615 $6,614 $4,728 $5,681 $82,650

Amenity Center 
Insurance $13,840 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,840
   Phone/Internet/Cable $421 $420 $420 $420 $201 $637 $419 $418 $418 $418 $437 $431 $5,061
    Electric $1,206 $1,162 $1,277 $1,289 $1,207 $1,231 $1,124 $815 $1,044 $1,238 $1,247 $1,284 $14,126
    Water/Irrigation $538 $694 $667 $695 $628 $764 $795 $2,988 $807 $474 $704 $678 $10,431
    Gas $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
    Refuse $252 $253 $253 $253 $253 $253 $324 $321 $316 $314 $315 $422 $3,530
    Security Monitoring $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
    Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500 $0 $1,500
    Facility Management $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $60,000
    Field Mgmt/ Admin $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $1,597 $19,158
    Pool Maintenance $911 $1,737 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $911 $11,752
    Pool Chemicals $600 $240 $1,169 $0 $720 $180 $840 $0 $537 $465 $885 $1,523 $7,158
    Janitorial $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $7,000
    Janitorial Supplies $0 $0 $0 $380 $21 $0 $354 $406 $0 $0 $454 $184 $1,798
    Facility Maintenance $1,275 $1,300 $0 $0 $0 $495 $590 $0 $0 $981 $0 $0 $4,641

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

General Fund
Month By Month Income Statement

Fiscal Year 2020

4



11
   

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

General Fund
Month By Month Income Statement

Fiscal Year 2020

Amenity Center Continued 
Repairs & Maintenance $1,000 $3,322 $2,555 $1,875 $1,549 $1,177 $0 $1,650 $1,462 $4,072 $2,880 $2,532 $24,073
New Capital Projects $10,005 $0 $0 $2,483 $7,095 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,583
Special Events $1,165 $513 $416 $342 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350 $500 $1,000 $750 $5,036
Holiday Decorations $0 $691 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $691
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $230 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $230
Office Supplies $74 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $84 $0 $0 $0 $90 $52 $300
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pest Control $350 $150 $150 $150 $150 $150 $750 $250 $250 $250 $800 $250 $3,650
 
Total Amenity Center $38,817 $17,662 $14,996 $15,978 $20,144 $12,978 $13,369 $14,938 $13,274 $16,804 $18,401 $16,195 $213,556
 

Ground Maintenance Expenditures               

Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $12,487 $12,487 $12,487 $12,487 $12,487 $12,487 $12,642 $12,642 $12,642 $12,642 $12,642 $12,642 $150,776
Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $1,430 $0 $2,295 $4,885 $0 $1,250 $1,245 $0 $0 $0 $11,105
Lake Maintenance $475 $475 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $650 $7,450
Ground Maintenance $579 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $579
Pump Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Streetlights $727 $720 $727 $723 $723 $723 $723 $702 $708 $728 $728 $728 $8,662
Streetlight Repairs $0 $968 $0 $1,665 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,633
Irrigation Repairs $790 $558 $57 $642 $167 $198 $178 $370 $250 $278 $253 $70 $3,810
Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $330 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $85 $415
Reclaim Water $2,178 $4,089 $2,015 $2,187 $2,819 $1,672 $2,315 $4,240 $3,429 $2,100 $2,102 $1,243 $30,387
Capital Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
 
Total Ground Maintenance Expenditures $17,235 $19,298 $17,365 $18,354 $19,471 $20,615 $66,508 $19,854 $18,925 $16,398 $16,375 $15,418 $265,815

          Total Expenses $75,507 $42,118 $36,911 $42,528 $44,151 $38,298 $85,188 $42,893 $37,814 $39,815 $39,504 $37,294 $562,022

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($60,324) ($16,098) $176,926 $138,922 ($44,010) ($36,436) ($69,961) ($39,807) ($20,883) ($39,739) ($39,471) ($37,217) ($88,098)

5



Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2020

Adopted Prorated Actual
 Budget Thru  09/30/20 Thru  09/30/20 Variance

REVENUES:

Interest Income $2,000 $2,000 $5,223 $3,223
Special Assessments $769,808 $769,808 $767,226 ($2,582)
Prepayments $0 $0 $258,313 $258,313

TOTAL  REVENUES $771,808 $771,808 $1,030,762 $258,954

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016
Interest Expense - 11/01 $291,350 $291,350 $291,325 $25
Principal Expense - 11/01 $180,000 $180,000 $190,000 ($10,000)
Principal Expense - 11/01 (Prepayment) $25,000 $25,000 $45,000 ($20,000)
Interest Expense - 05/01 $287,300 $287,300 $285,925 $1,375
Principal Expense - 05/01 (Prepayment) $0 $0 $140,000 ($140,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $783,650 $783,650 $952,250 ($168,600)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES AND USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($11,842) $78,512

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $512,248 $921,897

FUND BALANCE - Ending $500,407 $1,000,409

6

I 



Series
2016

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contribution $22,749
Interest Income $0

TOTAL  REVENUES $22,749

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $21,403

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $21,403

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In (Out) $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $1,345

FUND BALANCE - Beginning ($1,345)

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0

 

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2020

7

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 



11 Adopted Prorated Actual

Budget Thru  09/30/20 Thru  09/30/20 Variance

Revenues:
 
General Fund Transfer In $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Total Revenues $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Expenditures

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $16,848 ($16,848)
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $100 ($100)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $16,948 ($16,948)

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $0 $33,052

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Other $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $33,052

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $33,052

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Capital Reserve Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2020

8



Series 2016 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 4.5% -5.0%
Maturity Date: 11/1/48
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $382,750.00
Reserve Balance: $384,750.00

Bonds outstanding - 1/31/2016 $11,850,000
Less:  May 1, 2016 $0
Less:  May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($50,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 ($190,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($45,000)
Less:  May 1, 2020 (Prepayment) ($140,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $11,425,000

 

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2020 ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS

ASSESSED # UNITS
SERIES 2016 

DEBT SERVICE 
NET

FY20 O&M 
NET

TOTAL ASSESSED

RREF III-P-EP ARAGON INVESTMENTS LLC (ACRES) 65.57 -                 27,627.53    27,627.53            
RREF III-P-EP CYPRESS CREEK FARMS LLC (ACRES) 68.86 -                 29,013.76    29,013.76            
RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV LLC (ACRES) 7.67 -                 3,231.71      3,231.71              
SUBTOTAL ADMIN O&M 142.10 -                 59,873.00    59,873.00           

LENNAR HOMES, LLC 81 -                 67,230.00    67,230.00            
SUBTOTAL PLATTED  LOTS 81 -                 67,230.00    67,230.00           

TAX ROLL ASSESSED 455 764,711.77   377,650.00 1,142,361.77      

TOTAL ASSESSED 678 764,711.77   504,752.99 1,269,464.76      

DUE / RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2016 

DEBT SERVICE 
RECEIVED

O&M 
RECEIVED

TOTAL RECEIVED

RREF III-P-EP ARAGON INVESTMENTS LLC (ACRES) -                   -                 27,627.53    27,627.53            
RREF III-P-EP CYPRESS CREEK FARMS LLC (ACRES) -                   -                 29,013.76    29,013.76            
RREF III-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV LLC (ACRES) -                   -                 3,231.71      3,231.71              
SUBTOTAL ADMIN O&M -                   -                 59,873.00    59,873.00           

LENNAR HOMES, LLC 33,615.00       -                 33,615.00    33,615.00            
SUBTOTAL PLATTED  LOTS 33,615.00       -                 33,615.00    33,615.00           

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS (3,770.70)        767,226.39   378,906.08 1,146,132.47      

TOTAL RECEIPTS 29,844.30       767,226.39   472,394.08 1,239,620.47      

DIRECT INVOICES DUE IN INSTALLMENTS OF 25% DUE 10/15/19, 1/1/20, 4/1/20, 7/1/20
LENNAR PARCEL DOES NOT HAVE BOND DEBT ISSUED AT THIS TIME ANTICPATED ISSUE DURING FY20

THERE IS AN ADDITIONAL $90,789 DUE FOR DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

DISTRIBUTION DATE

SERIES 2016 
DEBT SERVICE 

RECEIVED
O&M 

RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
1 11/19/19 13,516.60      6,675.12      20,191.72            
2 11/25/19 3,348.18        1,653.49      5,001.67              
3 11/26/19 35,459.61      17,511.59    52,971.20            
4 12/13/19 229,781.74    113,476.84  343,258.58          

5 (11/26-12/6) 12/19/19 202,854.44    100,178.89  303,033.33          
6 (11/2-11/3) 01/14/20 223,023.63    110,139.37  333,163.00          

7 (11/9-12/31) 01/29/20 44,943.18      22,195.02    67,138.20            
INTEREST (10/1-12/31) 01/30/20 764.10           377.35         1,141.45              

8 (1/1-1/31) 03/30/20 3,431.95        1,694.85      5,126.80              
INTEREST 04/14/20 362.77           179.15         541.92                 

9 (2/1-4/30) 05/06/20 6,114.66        3,019.70      9,134.36              
TAX CERTFICATES 06/10/20 3,625.53        1,790.46      5,415.99              

INTEREST 07/10/20 -                 14.25           14.25                   
11 07/13/20 -                 -               -                       

-                 -               
TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 767,226.39   378,906.08 1,146,132.47      

PERCENT COLLECTED DIRECT 0.00% 73.55% 73.55%
PERCENT COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100.33% 100.33% 100.33%
PERCENT COLLECTED TOTAL 100.33% 93.59% 97.65%

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Date Check Numbers Amount Amount

General Fund
7/1/20 - 7/31/20 673-685 33,308.86$          

8/1/20 - 8/31/20 686-703 35,420.18$          

9/1/20 - 9/30/20 704-730 68,942.20$         

Total Checks 137,671.24$        

Capital Reserve
7/1/20 - 7/31/20 3-4 9,006.95$           

9,006.95$          

7/1/20 FL Pool Permit 350.35$               

7/19/20 St Johns County Utility Dept 2,574.48$           

7/20/20 AT&T 200.43$              

7/24/20 FPL 1,966.01$            

7/28/20 AT&T 217.95$               

8/18/20 St Johns County Utility Dept 2,805.69$            

8/19/20 AT&T 219.39$               

8/24/20 FPL 1,974.74$            

8/28/20 AT&T 217.95$               

9/18/20 St Johns County Utility Dept 1,921.18$             

9/22/20 AT&T 212.97$               

9/25/20 FPL 2,012.30$            

9/29/20 AT&T 217.95$               

Total Paid Electronically 14,891.39$          

Total General Fund 161,569.58$        

* Fedex Invoices will be available upon request

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Check Run Summary

7/1/20 - 9/30/20



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/01/20 00044 3/20/20 03202020 202006 320-57200-49400                                     *              350.00
OUTDOOR MOVIE

BOUNCER, SLIDES, AND MORE INC.                                    350.00 000673
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/20 00013 6/29/20 10351    202006 330-57200-46210                                     *            1,245.00

REPAIR HOG DAMAGE
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                            1,245.00 000674

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/20 00018 6/16/20 68700106 202007 320-57200-45800                                     *              314.27

JUL REFUSE
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687                                            314.27 000675

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/20 00014 6/22/20 90       202005 320-57200-45310                                     *              406.04

MAY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
6/22/20 90       202005 320-57200-60000                                     *            1,650.39

MAY REPAIR/MAINTENANCE
RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               2,056.43 000676

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/09/20 00003 7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,750.00

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-53000                                     *              100.00

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-35100                                     *              144.42

JUL INFORM TECHNOLOGY
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-31600                                     *              291.67

JUL DISSEMINATION SERVICE
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .75

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-42000                                     *               19.80

POSTAGE
7/01/20 65       202007 310-51300-42500                                     *               32.85

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SRVCS LLC                               4,339.49 000677

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/09/20 00012 7/05/20 20034    202007 310-51300-31200                                     *              600.00

ABRT SE 2016 FYE 12/31/19
GRAU & ASSOCIATES                                                 600.00 000678

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/09/20 00013 7/01/20 10449    202007 330-53800-46200                                     *           12,642.14

JUL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                           12,642.14 000679

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/16/20 00012 7/03/20 19870    202007 310-51300-32200                                     *            1,300.00

AUDIT FYE 9/30/2019
GRAU & ASSOCIATES                                               1,300.00 000680

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/16/20 00005 6/30/20 115748   202005 310-51300-31500                                     *              971.00
MAY GENERAL COUNSEL

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                              971.00 000681
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/16/20 00059 7/15/20 2227     202007 320-57200-49400                                     *              500.00

MOVIE NIGHT 7/24/20
KONA-IVE OF ST AUGUSTINE                                          500.00 000682

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/16/20 00017 7/01/20 515549   202007 330-53800-46800                                     *              650.00

JUL LAKE MAINTENANCE
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                650.00 000683

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/16/20 00013 6/30/20 10563    202006 330-53800-46400                                     *              250.20

JUN IRRIGATION SERVICES
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                              250.20 000684

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/16/20 00014 7/01/20 89       202007 320-57200-45300                                     *              583.33

JUL JANITORIAL SERVICES
7/01/20 89       202007 320-57200-45200                                     *              910.50

JUL POOL MAINTENANCE
7/01/20 89       202007 320-57200-46001                                     *            1,596.50

JUL CONTRACT ADMIN
7/01/20 89       202007 320-57200-34000                                     *            5,000.00

JUL FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               8,090.33 000685

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/03/20 00060 7/24/20 202161   202007 320-57200-60000                                     *               80.00

REPLACE ZIPPER IN CUSHION
POMPANETTE CANVAS AND UPHOLSTERY                                   80.00 000686

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/03/20 00014 7/17/20 91       202006 320-57200-60000                                     *              860.63

JUN FACILITY MAINTENANCE
7/17/20 91       202006 320-57200-60000                                     *              226.21

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               1,086.84 000687

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/20 00017 8/01/20 521781   202008 330-53800-46800                                     *              650.00

AUG LAKE MAINTENANCE
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                650.00 000688

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/20 00013 8/01/20 10696    202008 330-53800-46200                                     *           12,642.14

AUG LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                           12,642.14 000689

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/20 00018 7/16/20 687-1073 202008 320-57200-45800                                     *              315.01

AUG REFUSE
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687                                            315.01 000690

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/14/20 00030 6/23/20 1036774  202006 320-57200-54500                                     *              150.00
JUN PEST CONTROL

FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              150.00 000691
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00030 6/23/20 1037031  202006 320-57200-54500                                     *              100.00

RODENT CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              100.00 000692

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00030 7/20/20 1039405  202007 320-57200-54500                                     *              150.00

JUL PEST CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              150.00 000693

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00030 7/20/20 1039617  202007 320-57200-54500                                     *              100.00

RODENT CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              100.00 000694

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00003 8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,750.00

AUG MANAGEMENT FEES
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-53000                                     *              100.00

AUG WEBSITE ADMIN
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-35100                                     *              144.42

AUG INFORM TECHNOLOGY
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-31600                                     *              291.67

AUG DISSEMINATION SERVICE
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-51000                                     *                2.83

OFFICE SUPPLIES
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-42000                                     *               61.62

POSTAGE
8/01/20 66       202008 310-51300-42500                                     *               55.80

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SRVCS LLC                               4,406.34 000695

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00013 7/31/20 10763    202007 330-53800-46400                                     *              277.50

JUL IRRIGATION MAINTEN
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                              277.50 000696

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00019 7/13/20 13129559 202007 320-57200-45210                                     *              465.00

JUL POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          465.00 000697

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00014 8/01/20 92       202008 320-57200-45300                                     *              583.33

AUG JANITORIAL SERVICES
8/01/20 92       202008 320-57200-45200                                     *              910.50

AUG POOL MAINTENANCE
8/01/20 92       202008 320-57200-46001                                     *            1,596.50

AUG CONTRACT ADMIN

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/01/20 92       202008 320-57200-34000                                     *            5,000.00
AUG FACILITY MANAGEMENT

RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               8,090.33 000698
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00020 8/06/20 20-34655 202008 320-57200-46110                                     *            1,500.00

ACCESS CARDS 24551-24850
SECURITY ENGINEERING                                            1,500.00 000699

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/20/20 00005 7/31/20 116522   202006 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,182.42

JUN GENERAL COUNSEL
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                            1,182.42 000700

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/20/20 00014 8/11/20 93       202007 320-57200-45100                                     *              631.06

JUL FACILITY MAINTENANCE
8/11/20 93       202007 320-57200-60000                                     *            2,743.50

JUL REPAIR & REPLACEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               3,374.56 000701

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/20/20 00002 7/06/20 I0329118 202007 310-51300-48000                                     *              350.04

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
THE ST AUGUSTINE RECORD                                           350.04 000702

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/28/20 00044 9/05/20 09052020 202008 300-15500-10000                                     *              500.00

SPECIAL EVENT ON 9/5/20
BOUNCER, SLIDES, AND MORE INC.                                    500.00 000703

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00013 9/01/20 10873    202009 330-53800-46200                                     *           12,642.14

SEP LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                           12,642.14 000704

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00018 8/16/20 68710803 202009 320-57200-45800                                     *              422.25

SEP REFUSE
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687                                            422.25 000705

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00061 8/24/20 1        202008 320-57200-49400                                     *            1,000.00

SIDE HUSTLE PERFORMANCE
JORGE LAPLUME DBA SIDE HUSTLE                                   1,000.00 000706

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00062 7/21/20 11851    202007 320-57200-60000                                     *            1,022.00

REPAIRED LEAK/RECHARGED
THIGPEN HEATING AND COOLING INC.                                1,022.00 000707

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00062 7/23/20 11952    202007 320-57200-60000                                     *              147.00

REPAIRED AC UNIT/LABOR
THIGPEN HEATING AND COOLING INC.                                  147.00 000708

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/03/20 00062 8/04/20 12365    202008 320-57200-60000                                     *              267.00
REPAIR/PARTS AC UNIT

THIGPEN HEATING AND COOLING INC.                                  267.00 000709
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/03/20 00062 8/06/20 12466    202008 320-57200-60000                                     *              597.00

INSTALLED SENSI THERMOST
THIGPEN HEATING AND COOLING INC.                                  597.00 000710

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00035 8/20/20 200814   202008 320-57200-60000                                     *              264.00

TROUBLESHOOT POOL LIGHTS
BEACON ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS, INC                                264.00 000711

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00006 9/01/20 11570    202009 300-15500-10000                                     *           21,500.00

FY21 INSURANCE RENEWAL
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    21,500.00 000712

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00030 8/07/20 1040593  202008 320-57200-54500                                     *              350.00

ANNUAL TERMITE CTRL RENEW
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              350.00 000713

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00030 8/07/20 1040595  202008 320-57200-54500                                     *              200.00

ANNUAL TERMITE CTRL RENEW
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              200.00 000714

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00030 8/27/20 1041871  202008 320-57200-54500                                     *              150.00

AUG PEST CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              150.00 000715

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00030 8/27/20 1042117  202008 320-57200-54500                                     *              100.00

RODENT CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              100.00 000716

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00003 9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,750.00

SEP MANAGEMENT FEES
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-53000                                     *              100.00

SEP WEBSITE ADMIN
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-35100                                     *              144.42

SEP INFORM TECHNOLOGY
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-31600                                     *              291.67

SEP DISSEMINATION SERVICE
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .24

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-42000                                     *                4.00

POSTAGE
9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-42500                                     *               34.20

COPIES

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

9/01/20 67       202009 310-51300-41000                                     *                9.38
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SRVCS LLC                               4,333.91 000717
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00017 9/01/20 528054   202009 330-53800-46800                                     *              650.00

SEP LAKE MAINTENANCE
LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                                650.00 000718

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00060 7/24/20 202161A  202007 320-57200-60000                                     *               79.57

BALANCE REPLACE ZIPPEPS
POMPANETTE CANVAS AND UPHOLSTERY                                   79.57 000719

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00019 8/11/20 13129559 202008 320-57200-45210                                     *              885.00

AUG POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          885.00 000720

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00014 9/01/20 94       202009 320-57200-45300                                     *              583.33

SEP JANITORIAL SERVICES
9/01/20 94       202009 320-57200-45200                                     *              910.50

SEP POOL MAINTENANCE
9/01/20 94       202009 320-57200-46001                                     *            1,596.50

SEP CONTRACT ADMIN
9/01/20 94       202009 320-57200-34000                                     *            5,000.00

SEP FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGMENT SERVICES, INC                               8,090.33 000721

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00061 9/07/20 2        202009 320-57200-49400                                     *              250.00

SIDE HUSTLE PERFORMANCE
JORGE LAPLUME DBA SIDE HUSTLE                                     250.00 000722

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00029 6/30/20 2020-328 202009 300-13100-10100                                     *            3,850.00

REQ #145
CLARY & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                        3,850.00 000723

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00029 6/30/20 2020-328 202009 300-13100-10100                                     *            9,600.00

REQ #146
CLARY & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                        9,600.00 000724

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00063 8/15/20 223902   202008 320-57200-60000                                     *              517.00

CLEARED MAIN DRAIN LINE
FENWICK SERVICES                                                  517.00 000725

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/25/20 00030 9/22/20 1044352  202009 320-57200-54500                                     *              150.00

SEP PEST CONTROL
FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              150.00 000726

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   7
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - GENERAL FUND

BANK A BANNON LAKES-GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/25/20 00030 9/22/20 1044582  202009 320-57200-54500                                     *              100.00
RODENT CONTROL

FREEDOM PEST CONTROL                                              100.00 000727
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/25/20 00013 8/31/20 10960    202008 330-53800-46400                                     *              252.50

AU IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.                                              252.50 000728

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/25/20 00019 9/14/20 13129559 202009 320-57200-45210                                     *              742.50

SEP POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          742.50 000729

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/25/20 00019 9/17/20 13129559 202009 320-57200-45210                                     *              780.00

SEP POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          780.00 000730

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                137,671.24

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              137,671.24

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



f--

£. A Invoice - N "i]''i. I\ - Bouncers, Slides, and More Inc. ~: 20 March, 2020 
/B 0 

1915 Bluebonnet Way Invoice No.:'.03202020,02 

•~---- ~•u Fleming Island, FL % 't. 

MO& - 32003 
.-,,;..IE 

Name L l!,ggr§,s Additional Details: l',. l:1 , I.. , E, t V J'~ LJ 
Attn: Robin Nixo□ 

Bannon Lakes 25 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd. 

St Augustine, FL 32092 

BannonManager@RMSNF.c 

Descrigtioo Quantit~ Rate Discount Subtotal Extended 

1 Outdoor Movie 1 $450.00 20% $350.00 $350.00 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Comments: 
Subtotal $350.00 

Sales Tax (0.0%) N/A 

Total $350.00 



"\L' "''"""& 
~ Landcare Group 

Irrigation• Landscape• Maintenance 
35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. To-wn Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Project 

Repair Lake Bank 

Repair hog damage on lake bank behind Rock Spring Loop. 

Sod, Bahia Pallet 450 SF 

Machine, Skid Steer Hours w/ Operator 

Labor, General 

Dump Fee Per Trip 

~~~ REVISION I ~~~~~ 

June 29, 2020 per TJ 
> Decreased quantity of Bahia Pallet 450 SF from 3 to 1.5. Decreased price of 
Bahia Pallet 450 SF from $795.00 to $397.50. (-$397.50) 
Total change to estimate ~$397.50 

/1!:, g) 
I !l 1,1) J _) "( I 

,";J cl :J.'f O'~ 1/6:? 

Attn. Brian Stephens 

Invoice 
Terms Date Invoice# 

Net30 6/29/2020 '10351 

29 

Project# 

MIOl 

Quantity Rate Amount 

LS 265.00 397.50 

1.5 125.00 187.50 

16 35.00 560.00 

I 100.00 100.00 

/CJ 

Total $1,245.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $1,245.00 



RE/PUBLIC 8619 western Way 
SERVICES Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Customer Service (904) 731-2456 
Republ icServices. com/Support 

Important Information 

Account Number 
Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 

Previous Balance 
Payments/Adjustments 
Current Invoice Charges 

3-0687 -0010861 
0687-001066583 

June 16, 2020 
$315.78 

-$315.78 
$314.27 

It's easy to go paperless! Sign up for Paperless Billing at 
RepublicServices.com and enjoy the convenience of 
managing your account anytime, anywhere, on any 
device. 

Total Amount Due I 
$314.27 

Payment Due Date 

July 06, 2020 

PAYMENTS/ADJUSTMENTS 
Description 
Payment - Thank You 06111 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

Reference 
663 

Description Reference 

Bannon Lakes Cdd 435 Bannon Lakes Dr CSA A172389154 
St. Augustine, FL Contract: 9687022 (C51) 
1 Waste Container 6 Cu Yd, 1 Lift Per Week 
Pickup Service {;)J/01-07131 
Administrative Fee 

Total Fuel/Environmental Recovery Fee 

Total Franchise - Local 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

Quantity 

Electronics Recycling with BlueGuard™ 
Co11ve11ie11l recycling sol11lio11s lilal are sale for your business and uom1 
for our planet. To learn morn, visit RepublicServices.com/Electronics 

i:/!1: IIEPIJBL.IC 
~~ SERVICES 

Total Amount Due 

Payment Due Date 

8619 Western Way 
Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Return Service Requested 

L2RCACDTTL 017889 

Please Return This 
Portion With Payment 

Total Enclosed 

Account Number 

Invoice Number 

i i 

Make Checks Payable To: 

Unit Price 

$228.54 

Amount 
-$315.78 

Amount 

$228.54 

$5.95 , 
N 

$65.17 25 
► 

$14.01 B 
$.314.27 ~ 

"' 

$314.27 

~ 
rn 
:g 

z z z z z z z z z 
z z z 
z z 
z 
0 

Ci 
0 

"' 

July 06, 2020 

3-0687-0010861 

0687-001066583 

111• 1111 •''I' 1111 • I 11111I111111 • • 11 I I 1 •'I I I I II• II I' 1111, 11' I I 1, • I 
BANNON LAKES CDD 
LOUIS COWLING 
475WTOWN PL 

1•11•111•11111111• 11 • 11111111111• I• •11•11111•11111•1• ''I' 11111111 
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687 

STE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3648 

PO BOX 9001099 
LOUISVILLE KY 40290-1099 

3 □ 687 □□ 1 □ 861 □□□□□□ 1066583 □□□□ 31427 □□□□ 314273 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

2 5 2020 

Invoice 

Invoice #: 90 
Invoice Date: 6/22/2020 

Due Date: 6/22/2020 
Casa: 

P.O. Number: 

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount 

Facility Maintenance May 1 - May 31, 2020 
Maintenance Supplies 

f;(j jf~& 6 ·i/J .. ;;Zo 

l\~)r(Dll,;t'.1 '60rr/1:£\· •1~or:,,.o2, 
00/, ,:J,;?O, 6"7;?0:),"'ti::?/0 

~ lf,Ai/1. I I- !J1A1u·,. · I,/(., '"O, '& 1 

001, :3;20, ,s·7,2w, (50110 

1,209.71 1,209.71 
846.72 846,72 

Total $2,056.43 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $2,056.43 



RMS BANNON LAXES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MAINTENANCE BILLABLE HOURS 

FOR THE MONTH OF fMY 2020 

~ ~ EmJ:!IO~ee Descrlpllon 

514120 3 C.N. Checked and changed trash receptacles ln common areas, removed debris !n common 
areas, scrubbed basketball courts, repaired tennis court nets, cleaned sp!dervJebs from 
under slttlng areas between office and ctubhouse 

5/5120 3 K.H. Replaced aU trash receptacle liners, removed debris at enlrances, all common areas, 
along roadways and amenl!y conter, dusted amenity cenler for spiderwebs and eggs, 
replaced and emptied dog pots, broll_ght ~Blg Ass Fan" parts lo shop to send back 

5/5120 3 J.S, Rearranged pal!o furniture, removed debris in common areas and parks, checked and 
changed trash receptacles al dog parks1 common areas and pool1 sprayed for bugs 
around facility, restocked dog pols, dusted off patio for spider wabs and wasps, started 
working on repairing water rounlaln 

6/7120 1.6 K.H. Repaired water fountain In social hall, removed bird was{e stains ftom tennis and basketball 
courts, repaired wlndscreen on tennis courts, picked up supp!les 

517120 1,5 J.S. Repaired water fountain, cleaned bird waste from tennis and basketball courts, repaired 
windscreen al tennis courts, dusted spiderwebs on paUo, Installed sign, picked up suppUes 

5112120 4 l<.H. Picked up supplies, repaired weather slrlpplng on social hall doors, sprayed chlotlne and 
scrubbed windowslUs and bo\loms of building, repaired windscreens on tennis courts, 
checked and changed all trash receptacles and dog pots, removed debris at amenity cen\er, 
along roadways and common areas 

5/12120 4 J.S. Sprayed chlorine all around facility on algae spots and spider web& and lhen rinses, 
checked and changed all trash receplacles tn common areas and dog park, inslaRed !lght 
In balhroom, re-Hed Windscreens, picked up supplies, retnoved debris throughout community 

5115120 1 C.N. Repaired pool light that was hanging off the wan 
5119/20 8 l(,H, Picked up supplies, repaired drain p!ug In sink In women's bcllhtoom, placed ant klller on ant 

beds around amenity center, attempted to remount baby changing station, rep-aired 
windscreens at tennis court, replaced and emptied dog pols, checked and changed all 
trash receptacles in common areas and dog park, removed debrts at all entrances, common 
areas, along roadways and amen!ly center 

6/26/20 l<.H. Re•hung baby changing slaUon, du$ted amenity centerbuildfngs for spider webs and e99s1 

repaired ,liindscreen on tennis courls, removed debris at all entrances, all common areas, 
along roadways and amenity center, checked and changed all trash receptacles 

TOTAL 33 

MILES 123 •Mileage Is reimb1,1rsable per section i 12.061 Florida Statutes M:leage Rate 2009•0.445 

BANNON LAKES 



MAINTENANCE 81LLA8LE PURCHASES 

Period E"ndlng 06/05120 

DISTRICI DATE SUPPLIES PRICE §MPLOYEE 
BL 
BANNON LAKES 5112120 Replacement Ughls for Bathroom {2) 22.88 K.H. 

5/18120 D!versey Virex I! Disinfectant 51.19 F.S. 
5/18120 Spray Boltles (2) 13.75 F,S, 
5119/20 114" Slrap TOllgle Bolls 9.51 K.H. 
5/19/20 114" Drywall Anchors (2) 21.71 K.H. 
5/19120 Washers (4) 0.60 1<.H. 
5/19/20 Boll & Nu! Combo 1,36 K.H. 
5/19/20 Drywall Repair Kit 10.10 K.H. 
5119120 Sand Paper 5.72 K.H. 
5119120 Fire Anl Killer 4.34 K.H. 
5119120 1/4" Drywall Toggle Bolls 6pk 0.51 K.H. 
5/19/20 1/4x3n Drywan Toggle Bolls 4pk 10.86 K.H. 
5/19/20 5/au Roundhead 01ywan Anchor Screws 1.36 K.H. 
5121120 Keys (5) 13.74 T.C. 
6126120 Conlraotet Trash Bags 14.69 B.M. 
6/26120 HDX 33-39 Gal Trash 6ags 16.07 T.C, 
5126/20 HDX 33-39 Gal Trash Bags 16.07 T.C. 
5120/20 Speclraokfe Weed k!ller 9.17 T.C. 
5126/20 F~e Anl !Iller (2) @ 3.77 8.67 T.C. 
6/26120 Roller Cover 5.60 T.C. 
5/27120 Floor Mal (2) 25.88 8.8. 
5/27/20 13~r Keepers F<Jend 3.78 B.S. 
6/2120 Gas leaf Blower wkh 2 yr Pro!ecUon Plan 105.77 KH. 
612120 Zip Ties 1000pk 30.85 K.H. 
612120 20Q Brush 8.03 K.H. 
612/20 GormaGlue 5.72 K.H. 
6/2120 Dog Wasle Bags 2000 bags 109.51 K.H. 
612120 Germtsept Gym Wipes 4 rolls 3200wlpes {2) 273,70 i<.H. 
614120 30 Rolls of Tonet Pa.per 36.64 F.S. 

0.00 

TOTAL $846.72 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 

Bannon Lakes COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 

Description 

Management Fees - July 2020 /, .!', / 0 -j5l :S. ,J "I c:o 
Website Administration - July 2020 !: 5 L. 

Information Technology- July 2020 ,t:;1 
Dissemination Agent Services - July 2020 £/ 6 
Office Supplies 57 ,) 
Postage '(N 
Copies !/ ,;-{ 

2 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 65 
Invoice Date: 7/1/20 

Due Date: 7/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

3,750.00 
100,00 
144.42 
291.67 

0.75 
19.80 
32.85 

Amount 

3,750.00 
100,00 
144.42 
291.67 

0.75 
19.80 
32.85 

$4,339.49 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $4,339.49 



Grau and Associates 
951 W. Yamato Road, Suite 280 

Boca Raton, FL 33431-
www.graucpa.com 

Phone: 561-994-9299 C".EIVEDax: 561-994-5823 

Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771 

Invoice No. 20034 
Date 07105/2020 

07 

SERVICE AMOUNT 

Arbitrage Series 2016 FYE 12/31/2019 

I :z 

0 - 30 
1,900.00 

31- 60 
0.00 

Current Amount Due 

61-90 91-120 
0.00 0.00 

Payment due upon receipt. 

Over120 
0.00 

$ __ s=o=o=.o=o 

$~~""so..,o.,.,o.,,o 

Balance 
1,900.00 



~ Landcare Group 
Irrigation• Landscape• Maintenance 

35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Project 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Description 

Monthly maintenance for the month of July 

/~ (ff) 
/, '5 :]-?) , 5"'3 JJ cJ ' 

// 6 1/ 
/ G',, 

Thank you for your business! 

. 

Invoice 
Terms Date Invoice# 

Net30 7/1/2020 10449 

l 

Project# 

MlOl 

Quantity Rate Amount 

1 12,642.14 12,642.14 

Total $12642.14 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $12,642.14 



Phone: 561-994-9299 

Grau and Associates 
951 W. Yamato Road, Suite 280 

Boca Raton, FL 33431-
www.graucpa.com 

Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771 

Invoice No. 19870 
Date 07/03/2020 

SERVICE 

Audit FYE 09/30/2019 

10 

Current Amount Due 

0 -30 
1,300.00 

31-60 
o.oo 

/0-@') 
I I c!)/ 0, 513 , s;; :z 

61 • 90 91 • 120 
0.00 0.00 

Payment due upon receipt. 

Over 120 
0.00 

Fax: 561-994-6823 

$ 

$ 

AMOUNT 

1 300.00 

1.300J)Q 

Balance 
1.300.00 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 

June 30, 2020 
Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
c/o GMS, LLC 

Bill Number 115748 
Billed through 05/31/2020 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

General Counsel 
BLCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
05/01/20 WSH Confer with Lancaster and Oliver regarding re-opening facilities; review and 

revise correspondence to residents; review correspondence from residents. 

05/01/20 JLK Continued research on phase 1 and 2 opening regulations and issues: review 
summer camp and youth sports program parameters and ADA questions. 

05/03/20 JJ Follow up research regarding meeting protocols and notices during phase 1 of 
reopening plan. 

05/04/20 WSH 

05/05/20 WSH 

05/06/20 WSH 

Review agenda and confer with Oliver regarding May meeting. 

Prepare for board meeting; confer with Oliver regarding same. 

Prepare for and participate in board meeting. 

05/15/20 WSH Review and respond to correspondence regarding re-opening fitness facilities. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Johnson, Jonathan T. 0.10 hrs 320 /hr 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 0.20 hrs 295 /hr 

Haber, Wesley S. 3.20 hrs 275 /hr 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Johnson, Jonathan T. 0.10 hrs 320 /hr 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 0.20 hrs 295 /hr 

Haber, Wesley S. 3.20 hrs 275 /hr 

1.10 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

$971.00 

$32.00 
$59.00 

$880.00 

$971.00 

$971.00 

$32.00 
$59.00 

$880.00 



General Counsel Bil! No. 115748 Page 2 

========================================================--=========--=-----=======--==-
TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

$971.00 

$971.00 



' ---~ ·;, 

. 
u 

Invoice #2227 

Kona Ice 7 /24/20 Movie Night 

Kona~lce of St Augustine 

904-829· 7291 

rdend!er@kona-ice.com 

Kana !ce visit 7/24/2020 movie night. $500.00 includes first 200 Kana Classic cups. Bannon Lakes HOA will provide 
tickets for the residents' to redeem at Kona Ice truck on 7/24/2020. Once the 200 limit has been reached, the residents' 
will be responsible for any additional purchases. 

Bill To 

Bre 
Bannon Lakes 
bannonmanager@rmsnf.com 
904-907-4070 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St Augustine, FL 32086 

Item 

Invoice Details 

PDF created July 15, 2020 
$500.00 

Movie night 7/24/2020 8pm-10pm. Includes the first 200 
Kona Classic cup 

Subtotal 

Total Due 

/OJ /J1cu{,f r2/e 

Quantity 

;;I, ;Jw r r,fi)-1 fl ) fl 

Pay online 

To pay your invoice go to https://gosq.me/u/99kj6kLm 

Payment 

Due July 14, 2020 
$500.00 

Price 

$500.00 

Or open your camera on your mobile device, and place the code on the left 
within the camera's view. 

Amount 

$500.00 

$500.00 

$500.00 

03 
/, S,)5), S1). !/fly 

Page 1 of 1 



The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
Aquatic Management Services ® 

3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 32708 
PH: 800-666-5253 

Bill To 

BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

Purchase Order Number 

Item 

Monthly Water Management Service (R} 

Terms 

NET 10 DAYS 

Description 

INVOICE 
Invoice# 515549 

Account# 723475 

Invoice Date 7/1/2020 

Due Date 7/11/2020 

Rep MAS 

Invoice Questions: 
Lakes@lakedoctors.com 

Payment Questions: 
Payments@lakedoctors.com 

Invoice Date Reflects Month of 
Service Provided 

Amount 

475.00 

Water Mgmt Serv ~ Additional Area Added Effective December 2019 175.00 

/r:f-cJ) 
!, 330, S st. l/6l 

Customer Total Balance $650.00 

Please confirm your bank bill payer amount matches your invoice amount if you use a bank bill j 
naver service. Thank vou! 

Total Invoice $650.00 

To help ensure prompt and accurate credit to your account, please include your account number and invoice number on your check and always 
include your remittance stub with your payment. 

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your local office contact information. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

Bill To 

BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

For address and contact updates, please email us at 
Frontdesk(ti')lakedoctors.com. 

The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
3543 State Road 419 

Winter Springs, FL 32708 

D 

Amount Enclosed Invoice# 515549 

Account# 723475 

Date 7/1/2020 

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to 
have your invoices emailed. 

IF PA YING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW 
Visa ~_ American Express Mastercard 

Card#--------------~ 
Card Verification# __________ _ 
Exp. Date# _____________ _ 
Print Name _____________ _ 
Billing Address:~- Check box if same as above 

Signature 



' \ .. 
'"f·:""" ·• 

Landcare Group 
Irrigation• Landscape• Maintenance 

35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
SL Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Project 

Bannon Lakes COD 

Irrigation Maintenance Service for June - see attached list. 

I~ czi> 
(, gJ,o/ 5'3J, 1/(, !j 

Thank you for your business! 

Invoice 
Terms Date Invoice# 

Net 30 6/30/2020 10563 

Project# 

M101 

Quantity Rate Amount 

l 250.20 250.20 

Total $250.20 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $250.20 



Bannon Lakes CDD 

Date Location Description Material Labor Total Cost 

6/3 Front berm 3' - 1/2" drip tubing, (4) 1/2" poly $ 5.50 $ 35.00 $ 40.50 

couplings 

6/11 A/C (2) 6" pop-ups, RB nozzle, MPR nozzle $ 43.00 $ 17,50 $ 60.50 

A/C leak 6" pop-up, MRP nozzle, 1/2" 90°, $ 27.70 $ 35,00 $ 62,70 

1/2" Tee, 1/2" coupling, 1' - 1/2 pipe, 

1' - 1/2" flex 

6/12 Bannon Lakes Blvd. (5) MPR nozzles, poly coupling, (3) $ 51.50 $ 35.00 $ 86.50 

1/2" couplings 

Total Due $ 250.20 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

BIii To: 
Bannon Lakes coo 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Description 

Janitorial Services - July 2020 3 2. o, STl., 'i 5 3 o 
Pool Maintenance Services-July 2020 0 2.0, 5, 2., '1 5 -,.0 

Contract Administration -July 2020 > ~-o, 'S, 1.., t/ 6()0/ 

OS 

Facility Management - Bannon Lakes - July 2020 , .,, 
"·2.0, S ... , '2., J t.too 

/t/0) 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 89 
Invoice Date: 7/1/2020 

Pue Date: 7/1/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

583.33 563.33 
910.50 910.50 

1,596.50 1,596.50 
5,000.00 5,000.00 

$8,090.33 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $8,090.33 



WORK ORDER / INVOICE ,J,. 
(ffTIL~J1'3 ii\ 
~ GDlfOO@O.~tl 

BY POMPANETTE, INC, 

Pompanette Canvas and Upholstery 
404 S. Riberia Street, St. Augustine, Fl 32084 

Tel: 904-429-3968 Fax: 904-824-9755 

STATE '" 

TOTAL MATERIALS 

1·.JZ.· 57 2- · I,, 

RECOMMENDATIONS I HEREBY AUTHORIZE THE ABOVE WORK TO BE DONE AS SO OR
DERED AND OUTUNED ABOVE. IT IS AGREED THAT THE SELLER Will 
RETAIN TITLE TO ANY EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL FURNISHED UNTIL 
COMPLETE PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE, IF SETTLEMENT IS NOT MADE 

1--------------------iAs AGREED, THE SEUER HAS THE RIGHT TO REMOVE EQUIPMENT 
AND MATERIAL WITHOUT BEING HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAM-

1---------------------tAGES RESULTING FROM THE REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT, 

X 
-A-,o-v-,-0-,-0,=,=,o-w=o=,K-H_A_S_B=EE-N-c=o-M=,-,,=1,=o-A-N=o-,--
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MY COPY. 

Thank You 

OTHER 
CHARGES 

TOTAL 
MATERIALS 

TOTAL 
LABOR 

TAX 

TOTAL 

202161 

□WARRANTY 
□CONTRACT 

□ SERV!CE CONTRACT 
□ NORMAL 
□ RES. □ COMM. 

□-----



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd, W, 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Description 

Facility Maintenance June 1 - June 30, 2020 
Maintenance Supplies 

2 4 2020 

t/3~ 1.l (-20 

1(p;11L, ,. m;, ,sr·, 
00 I, oDso. S"7Joo, C,ooo 

''I 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

invoice 

Invoice#: 91 
Invoice Date: 7/17/2020 

Due Date: 7/17/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

860,63 
226,21 

Amount 

860.63 
226,21 

$1,086.84 

Payments/Credits $0,00 

Balance Due $1,086.84 



RMS BANNON LAl<ES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DJS'TRICT 
MAINTENANCE BILLABLE HOURS 
FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2020 

.Q_gJQ. Hours t;:n,ployee Description 

6/2120 

619/20 

6/16/20 

6/23/20 

6/30/20 

TOTAL 

MILES 

6 K.H. 

4.6 K.H. 

4 K.H. 

4.6 K.H. 

K.H. 

23 

126 

BANNON LAl<ES 

Raked mulch under swing set, dusted bolh bu!!d!ng for spiderwebs, p!cl<ed up supplies, 
repaired Windscreens on lennls courts, sanded and painted wall around baby changing 
sta!lon In women's' bathroom, blew leaves and debrl$ off basketbaH end tennis courts, 
sidewalk and pallo, removed debris al all entrances, all common areas, along roadways 
and amenity center, chocked and changed an !rash recap\ades 
Picked up supp!le$, replaced old .AJC fillers In bllitdlng-s, raked mulch into nits under 
swings, blewfaaves and debris off baskelba!l and lennls courls, park, sidewalks an<l 
paUo, replaces all Hash receptacfe liners ancl Oog pots, dusted aU bulldlngs for spider 
webs and eggs, !esled chlorine and raised chlorine level In pool 
Replaced basketball nels, removed geese feces from sidewalk by baskatbaTI court, 
raked mulch Into ruls under swlng sel, blew leaves. and debris off baskelbaTI and lennts 
courts, pavhlon, paUo and sidewalks, dusted maln bulldlng under pavillon lorspklerwebs, 
removed algae off buflding and signs, adjusted hinge In women's balhroom, bleach 
washed basketball backboa(d, ti:ghtened focktng hinge on pool gate, repaired windscreen 
on tennis oou1ts, 1epfaced frash rer.:eplades liners on al!lrash receptacles ond dog pols 
Bleach wash half Inside of dog park fence, dusted main buUdlng for spiderwebs, repaired 
latch on gale of pool, allemplad to wash duckfb!rd feces on basketball and lennts courts, 
applled Insecticide lo an! mounds on pool deck, blew leaves and deblis off basketball and 
tennis courts, park and patio, checked and changed au Hash receptacles, changed and 
restocked dog pols 
Repalred lock on sliding door in soclal toom, repaired loose teg on poo! table, checked 
and changed lra$h receptacles, spot dust (o( spider webs on main bullding, wiped table 
lops al pavillon, blew leaves and debrls off s!dewalk, ba~kelbnl! and tennis courts and 
pavmon, ternoved debris at amenity center, picked up suppl/es, repaired windscreen on 
tennis cou1ts 

"Mileage is refmbursable per .secUon i 12.061 Florida Sla\Vtes Mileage Rale 2009-0.445 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

P•rlod Ending 07/05/20 

01sm1cr DATE SUPPLIES PRICE EMPLOYEE 
BL 
BANNON LA\(ES 6/9120 18"x24" AC Filer (3) 16.85 K.H. 

6/9/20 16~x25rx1" F~ter 2pk 43.63 l<.H. 
6/9/20 i8"x24" AC Filler 10,90 K.H. 
6/9/20 ZEP Degreaser Spray 2.28 K.H. 
6/11/20 Paper Towels 12 rolls 19.52 l(.H, 
6/24120 20' Telescope Pole 40.22 l<.H. 
6/30/20 He Scrubber 7.23 B,$, 
6/30/20 He Cleaner 16.09 B,S, 
6/30/20 WD-40 5.41 K.H. 
6/30/20 Hangers for Wet Floor Sign (2) 2.53 K.H. 
6/30/20 Washers 1.36 K.H. 
6/30/20 Bolts for Pool Gale (2) 0.64 K.H. 
6/30/20 Lag Bolls (2) 1.08 K.H. 
6/30/20 Microfiber Tow els 24pk 10.33 K.H. 
6/30/20 Terry Towels 20pk 11.47 i<.H. 
6/30/20 AC Filter 20.67 l<.H. 
6/30/20 Hand Soap 128oz 28.61 l<.H. 
6/30/20 Slalnless Steel Polis) 5.73 K.H. 
6130/20 Slainless Sle8I Pad 3pl< 2.85 K.H. 
6/30/20 16" Squeegee 12.63 K.H. 
6/30/20 Duster Refills 5pk 5.05 K.H. 
7/1120 Numbers for Occupancy Sign (2) 1,66 K.H. 

0.00 

TOTAL $266,21 



The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
Aquatic Management Services s 

3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 32708 
PH: 800-666-5253 

Bill To 

BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

Purchase Order Number 

Item 
~·-· 

Monthly Water Management Service (R) 

Terms 

NETl0DAYS 

Description 

INVOICE 
Invoice# 521781 

Account# 723475 

Invoice Date 8/1/2020 

Due Date 8/11/2020 

Rep MAS 

Invoice Questions: 
Lakes@lakedoctors.com 

Payment Questions: 
Payments@lakedoctors.com 

Invoice Date Reflects Month of 
Service Provided 

--
Amount 

475.00 
Water Mgmt Serv M Additional Area Added Effective December 2019 175.00 

1·3_3•53 'ff, 41, 1 
/1 

Customer Total Balance $650.00 
Please c~nfirm your ba~k hifr p~Y~r-~mo~~t ~~-t~·h·~~-y~·u·r-i~~~i~-; ~~-~-~-~t ffY~~-~-~~-~-b~-~k-biff-,·1 

nayer service. Thank you! 
Total Invoice $650,00 

To help ensure prompt and accurate credit to your account, please include your account number and invoice number on your check and always 
include your remittance stub with your payment. 

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your local office contact information. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

Bill To 
f---------------------------
BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

For address and contact updates, please email us at 
Frontdesk(a)lakedoctors.com. 

The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
3543 State Road 419 

Winter Springs, FL 32708 

0 

"~-~--·~ 
Amount Enclosed Invoice# 521781 

Account# 723475 

Date 8/1/2020 

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to 
have your invoices emailed. 

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW 
Mastercard Visa __ American Express 

Card# ______________ _ 
Card Verification# __________ _ 
Exp. Date# _____________ _ 
Print Name _____________ ~ 

Billing Address: __ Check box if same as above 

Signature 



\\ ! ! 
't'~ r~ Landcare Group 

Irrigation • Landscape• Maintenance 
35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Monthly maintenance for the month of August 

Project 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Thank you for your business! 

Terms 

Net 30 

Quantity 

1 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

8/1/2020 10696 

a 

Project# 

MlOl 

Rate Amount 

12,642.14 12,642.14 

Total $12642.14 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $12,642.14 



REPUBLIC 8619 Western Way 
SERVICES Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Customer Service (904) 731-2456 
RepublicServices.com/Support 

Important Information 

Account Number 
Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 

Previous Balance 
Payments/Adjustments 
Current Invoice Charges 

3-0687-0010861 
0687-001073565 

July 16, 2020 

$314.27 
-$314.27 
$315.01 

It's easy to go paperless! Sign up for Paperless Billing at 
RepublicServices.com and enjoy the convenience of 
managing your account anytime, anywhere, on any 
device. 

Total Amount Due I Payment Due Date 
$315.01 August 05, 2020 

PAYMENTS/ADJUSTMENTS 

Description 
Payment- Thank You 07/10 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

Reference 
675 

Description Reference 

Bannon Lakes Cdd 435 Bannon Lakes Dr CSA A172389154 
St. Augustine, FL Contract: 9687022 (C51) 
1 Waste Container 6 Cu Yd, 1 Lift Per Week 

Quantity Unit Price 

Amount 
-$314.27 

Amount 

Pickup Service 08/01-08/31 

Administrative Fee 

$228.54 $228.54 

$5.95 r 

Total Fuel/Environmental Recovery Fee 

Total Franchise - Local 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

N 

$65.87 t'l 
)> 

$14.65 g 
-< 

$31s.01 a 

l·3l· 572 · I{ a 
I 'fr 

z z 
jl: 
z z 
z z z 
z z z 
z z z 
0 

Electronics Recycling with BlueGuard™ s 
0 
0 

Co11ve11ie111 rncyclino solutions that are sale !or yo111 business and good 
!or our pla11et. To learn more, visil RepublicServices.com/Electronics 

REPIJ/IIUC 
SERVICES 

8619 Western Way 
Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Return Service Requested 

Please Return This 
Portion With Payment 

Total Enclosed 

L2RCACDTVO 014330 

•11•111111•111111•11111111111111111•11111•1111111111•11•1111111•1 
BANNON LAKES COD 
LOUIS COWLING 
475WTOWN PL 
STE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3648 

306870 □ 1 □861 □□□□□ 01073565 □□□□ 31501□□□□ 315012 

Total Amount Due $315.01 

Payment Due Date August 05, 2020 

Account Number 3-0687 -0010861 

Invoice Number 0687-001073565 

I I 
I 111 Hllilli,) !'.rirl1· :•; I .11,ill'i" 

r .iin,J. I\,,,, ,11,rl ( <1111pl;•[,, l' ·1/i"I'-.'" 

Make Checks Payable To: 

11,1,1,,11,,,1,1,1111,,11,1111,,,,,11,1,,,,1,,1,1,1,,1,1,,1,11111 
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687 
PO BOX 9001099 
LOUISVILLE KY 40290-1099 



llill I": [106210] 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augusline, FL 32092 

■SZttllilMMI 
6/23/2020 

' ' . ' ; 

2MARCUS 

mema 
NET30 7/20/2020 

MONTHLY Monthly Pest Control 

~--····--- - -
B,1),1nc,·, ouHt,mJin.',' \l\\'t 3!1 d~~ ~ frnm Hi,· d,tk u! ~l'.I \ in: Uhl) hs: ~11hJ~d 1,1 a 1,itc fr:: 
of th~ k;~1:r ,if J .5\/ p,'r nMlth i Ii\'.\ per y.::a.n ,,r th~ m;1-;imun1 .illnl\Cd 1,~ lJW. 
Cu,ttl!lii'! :1).'rcrs tn p,1~ at·,·rned 1,'\]'<'n,~, in Ilic C\'i'lll ol i.'n!krli1rn 

I ' ; ' 

INVOICE: 
DATE: 
ORDER: 

\\i1d, 

1036774 

6/23/2020 

1036774 

!.11<_-;111,,11: [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes B!vd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Mercua Lopn 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 

AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

R r,::: C-:-'. r-,:, I 'J J-,_: I:) 

AUG O ,5 2020 

M mtil 
il.i!lftli!l!1i 

" 

150.00 

$150.00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$150,00 

$150.00 

I !i,·n I>:, ,,, l.11,,, •. kd,:, llw ,,;1i ,l.,. \, ,, 1 , "iill'kli, •u ,,1 ,,)I , ! , 1-, , 1 ,1•,L 1,·,l. 
,.11,I ,,,!le',-(-, I'·') !h; u•·\ ••I -.,;111-.\, ,I" '1"1°<,llic'd .1!,.,,, 



FREEDOM,~ 
P~ST CO!l\!IT/ROI!. ~- ~~ 
904-272-BUGS {2847J Jn ,\ 
3600 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 "_J 

Ornnge Park, FL 32065 

llill J.,- [106210) 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

~- · _11ml ;: ·_ · ·. tnrgoi-Po~t.. -. 
6/2312020 I I 

~n:,rl--. _l • -·~-~-• 
NET 30 

~--------------·-·-----··--·-- .. ~-~------

RODENT Roden\ Control 

1J JI~? f!.-<;-~o 
'floT tmk.<> 1 

(}Of, 37-.0, <J;"Joi,otJ, ,S'°C/S'CO 

'rO cg) 

BJ.l.1nL·v~ uul>t.rndin;:-o\\:r .~n \Lt~·, h11m th,; d,1k nt ~,;t\i(,; ma~ bs: subjs'd t,ia l,1l\.' kl· 
o! llh' k_;<\'l of !.5'; pi:r month ( 10' i pu y~•,tt ! t•r lh,; m.iximum ;i!l,rMd hy law. 
cu,1111\ltl ;,~rt~, tn P.l} illS!\li.'d o.'\\\!ll~CS in th<' ('\ ~Jll 11r t:oll~di,in, 

I 1 : 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 

ORDER: 

\\,id, 

1037031 

6/23/2020 

1037031 

! .11~·;1!!• 'Ii" [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SL Augustine, FL 32092 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 

AMT.PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

AUG O 5 2020 

:r11n11.lil 

100.00 

$100.00 

SO.OD 

$0.00 

s100.00 

$100,00 

111,·1, 1,.1 ·" l.11,,1,kdc:>" th· ,:111,!.icl,·•; ,,,IHJ•kti!'!l •·I ;d[ ·,·n1.·,, 1,1,,1,1,·,!, 
.1,d .,~•1,·, 1-, p.1~ th, ,,,.t ••! -,·1, i,,, .,, '[",.:c111~.I ,t1,,,,,: 



FREEDOM,\~ 
O"liiOS'ii" <COINIT!li'IO/l. l,/~c ~ 
904-272-BUGS f2847J ..._, 
3600 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 

Orange Par!<, FL 32065 

[106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 

ORDER: 

\\''I!. 

1039405 

7/20/2020 

1039405 

I'" .111, 111 [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

t:.~~\'.1~1Tt:J:~iJt,~ i~~~;juJfttt,~~~41,,-sJt~rrtfrt;1:~r<i{_:ttMr,~~l~f{~[~ts~.,m1-;tata, ;. '.~,, .:-''-~~-4,••/£ __ s ·• ,--~;J,al~~•,wr11'.~tiJUfrJ:ra 
7/20/2020 03:60 PM 2MARCUS Mercu1 Lopez 

I > .•it,;.,~ :.lf/i,l f1:r:i"J,jfffi~~~ll ~~W]lin 1,tfi~:;·11~ ~:ie1 ~!fdf•J:ll ~ i'tr\Tl"11!C!ftlll 
NET 30 7/20/2020 

MONTHLY Monthly Pest Control 

JS j/4)0 1-? l-.2o 
M:t, CoNTfi..D / 

00 I, 3,20' .S"?;z..oo' 5"''1/ g~o:., 

51'.) 0 

ll,!.,:1,.,.', <'!il,1,rndi,1-· u1,·1 _111 tL1\; i'1111u 111: 1l.1!l' ol 'Ll\l<,' 111,1\ I·.· •,11\,;~, l l,, ;J L1c' I;, 

p( Iii: ic-,,,:1 I>\ ! )· :· r-:r 111,,111h( 1:;·: j ,1 \01 I tli lh. 1,1.1d11\\li'n .i\Jrn• ,;,I],., l,1'.'.'. 
C11,i.,i.:, ! ,i;,_"h',, !di' ,1 ,1,.,·111,d ,:,1'.l\·c", iii th,: ,;1,·nl <1; ,.nlL•,1i,<11 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 

AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

AUG O 5 2020 

11, I, I,; ! l\·'' I, .I ' i! 
rd , ·1,, I· I':, lia • • ·I '', · I'-' 11· ,t ,I 

150.00 

S150.00 

SO.OD 

SO.OD 

$150,00 

$150.00 



FREEDOM-,~ 
ll"ii~ir <i:OINIT~Olb 1,,~-.. ~ ~ 
904-272-BUGS 12847) ) 'i,.\ 
3600 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 ., h 

Orange Parl<, FL 32065 J 

1,,11 ·1., [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SI. Augustine, FL 32092 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 

ORDER: 

\\. ') ! 

1039617 

7/20/2020 

1039617 

! '" ,11'1,111 [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St Augusline, FL 32092 

J.%1\.~lllt1!17fr'll*tTui11J11~~11;~+i:1i~th~~4~¥;~~-l;f!:ni;;J:i.tt1:Yr .~¾;g~,~t1 •~•ttftt,VJTirm•~--~~~--~t■tt~~~~~~t~l~~~-t~~;~,1rllt l!l[wrffi:t:U11~11 
7/20/2020 03:06 PM 2UARCUS Marcue Lopn 

r-li ·:]11t1 lf:l it, i) •J7,TTli~ .... ;; •.• ir -, :: ,fJti,i-~'~lif;,ti 1a~~uI"rlflr:rr'1iit1r:rtrit"fti~ ~ .. ,*,~~wtl!l!IH e '.■Ell'.:!'J •J.YM 
NET 30 7/20/2020 Lic:JE276◄24 

RODENT Rodent Control 

!i.d.,11, i' 11Ul•(c111.J111: 01 ,_·1 1-ll d,,\_, 11,,w tit. d:1', ,ii · 1 ', 1, ,· m.1_1 i _. \ql,j,., t_ l,1 :1 Lk k, 

Ill 1111' !, ·•,I i•f 1.s•: l'"'I' n1011tlii'li/: r-i W,111 "i lh: r,1.,d11;l!l!\ ,1\1,·s'.sd I,:, !.1'.':. 
C 

0

\l,\n1t.·J .1cr,-, .• l,1 I' 1\' :n ,·111, d .'\)' ·l·· , in tli,-t'\l'hi !•/ ,_,,1!.-,1i,,:1 

RECEl'JEI::> 

AUG O 5 2020 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 

AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

I I., I : ! I, ' l"I , 11,, :11 · I. , I -. ',-r1•1'i, 1,,,q d II •, 1 I 

.11-l .,•J l 'I''' 1l1' • .. 1 1·,1, • 1 . iii l ,I 

100.00 

s100.00 

$0.00 

$0,00 

$100,00 

$100.00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 Wes!Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 

Description 

G O 6 2020 

Management Fees -August2020 /, ,!,/(), ,",7?, ,;5110 
Website Administration -August 2020 5Zo 0 
Information Technology - August 2020 tt7 
Dissemination Agent Services - August 2020 '):,/ b 
Office Supplies r;7 0 
Postage 1( ):0 
Copies O 1,/' f cf"' (, 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 66 
Invoice Date: 8/1/20 

Due Date: 8/1 /20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

3,750.00 3,750.00 
100.00 100.00 
144.42 144.42 
291.67 291.67 

2.83 2.83 
61.62 61.62 
55.80 55.80 

$4,406.34 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $4,406.34 



.\\'·· ! .,, .. •· ,,,,!, 
~/ 

Landcare Group 
Irrigation , Landscape• Maintenance 

35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Project 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Description 

Irrigation Maintenance Service for July - see attached list 

/Jo j 
I •f1l) 

/ f 001, ~ t;sJ., /16 

Attn. Brian Stephens 

Invoice 
Terms Date Invoice# 

Net30 7/31/2020 10763 

AUG 1 0 2020 

Project# 

MlOI 

Quantity Rate Amount 

1 277.50 277.50 

Total $277.50 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $277.50 



Bannon Lakes CDD 

Date Location Description Material Labor Total Cost 

7/10 Amenity Center (3) MPR nozzles $ 30.00 $ 17.50 $ 47.50 

7/27 Bannon Lakes Blvd. 1" slip-fix, 1" coupling, (2) 1/2" 90°s, $ 160.00 $ 70.00 $ 230.00 

1" x 1/2" Tee, ICD-100, (4) DBYs 

Total Due $ 277.50 



I Invoice Date 
Invoice# 

7/13/2020 
131295593969 l~,: 

~-------------~------------~ 
1707 Townhurst Dr 
Houston TX 77043 
ar@poolsure.com 
800-858-POOL (7665) 
www.poolsure.com 

BIIITo 

Riverside Management Services 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Florida Minning Blvd West 
bldg 300 suite 305 
Jacksonville FL 32257 

Terms Net20 

Due Date s1212020 

PO# 
Delivery Ticlrnt # Sales o,de,#1331265 

Delivery Date 11s12020 

Delivery Location Bannon Lakes Pool 

Customer# 13BAN025 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Ship To 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine FL 32095 

LATE FEE: This constitutes notice under the truth In lending act that any accounts remaining unpaid after the due date are subject to 1 1/2% per 
month late charge and attorney fees. 

Item ID 
115-300 

160-050 

Remittance Slip 

Customer 
13BAN025 

Invoice# 
131295593969 

Item 
Bleach Minibulk Delivered 

Pool Acid bulk by Gallon 

t-lid= 1-21:.0 
<J C/4 . loo/ f/11 /ciLl!r 

00 1. 3~0, '3"7Jp0, <-/ ::,~ :7.. I O 

18@ 
-r-i=, 

05 

1111111111111111111111111 Ill 
131295593969 

Quantity 
250 

30 

Amount Duo 

Amount Paid 

Units 
gal 

gal 

Make Checks Payable To 
Poolsure 
PO Box 55372 
Houston, TX 77255-5372 

Rate Amount 
1.50 375.00 

3.00 90.00 

Total 465.00 
Amount Due $465.00 

$465.00 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes CDD 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Description 

Janitorial Services - August 2020 3 1.0, 5, 2-, '15'3 o 
Pool Maintenance Services -August 2020c. :u,, 5, 2- , 'i S2 0 
Contract Administration -August 2020 J ,.o, -s-n., 'i c.eBj 
Facility Management - Bannon Lakes - August 2020 '3 10 , 'S T2. , 3 'i 

hivoice 

Invoice#: 92 

Invoice Date: 8/112020 

Due Date: 811/2020 
Case: 

P .0, Number: 

Hours/Qty Rate Amount 

583.33 583.33 
910,50 910.50 

1,596.50 1,596.50 

~o 5,000.00 5,000.00 

Total $8,090,33 

Payments/Credits $0,00 

Balance Due $8,090.33 



Security Engineering And Designs, Inc. 
3139 Waller Street 
Jacksonville, FL 32254 

Voice: 904-371-4931 

Fax: 904-371-4939 

Sold To: 
BANNON LAKES CCD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
STE. 114 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Customer I OBANNON LAKES CCD 

Customer PO Payment Terms 

(300) ACCESS CARDS 
# 24551- 24850 

Description 

Net 10 Days 

j;;c') @ 
/, 3il(), S'? J. i/~llO 

Service Department: 371-4931 
Monrroring Center: 800-318-9486 
Installation: 371-4931 

Please include invoice number on payment 

20-34655 

G O 6 2020 

Srre Address: 

BANNON LAKES CCD 
435 BANNON LAKES BLVD. 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32095 

Sales Rep ID 

Subtota 

Sales Ta 

Total Invoice Amou 
Payment Receive 

TOTAL 

Invoice 
Invoice Numbe 

20-34655 

Invoice Date 
s / 6/20 

Page 
1 

Due Date 
8/16/20 

Amount 

1,500.00 

1,500.00 

1,500.00 

0.00 

1,500.00 



>--
A A Invoice - N .;"'-II - Bouncers, Slides, and More Inc. .Q.i!ll:: 05 Sept., 2020 

11/i \\ 
1915 Bluebonnet Way Invoice No: 09os2020.02 

it 
.. - . \) t:. Fleming Island, FL 
& ·- 32003 

MO .i<E . 
k /T 

. .... ·······-

Name l Addr~ss Additional Details: 
Attn: Bre Meeks 2 5 2020 
Bannon Lakes CG/M 435 Bannon Lakes Blvd. 

St Augustine, FL 32092 

BannonManager@RMSNF.c 

Qe~i;;rjgtion Quantit~ Rate Discount ~ ~~l~og~g 
1 50' Double Lane Obstacle 1 $275.00 20% $220.00 $220.00 

2 151 
X 15 1 Bounce House 1 $130.00 10% $120.00 $120.00 

3 Generator 1 $75.00 35% $40.00 $40.00 

4 Onsite Supervision 2 $60.00 n/a $120.00 $120.00 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Comments: 
Subtotal $500.00 

Sales Tax (0.0%) N/A 

Total $500.00 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

--------------------------------- STATEMENT 

July 31, 2020 

1 

Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
c/o GMS, LLC 

Bill Number 116522 
Billed through 06/30/2020 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

General Counsel 
BLCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
06/04/20 LMG Research and analyze implications of Phase 2 reopening plan for amenities 

operation; develop best practices related to same. 

06/05/20 SSW 

06/12/20 WSH 

06/16/20 WSH 

06/16/20 KFJ 

06/17/20 WSH 

06/17/20 KFJ 

06/25/20 WSH 

06/25/20 JLK 

06/28/20 KSB 

06/30/20 WSH 

06/30/20 KFJ 

Research physical quorum and public comment requirements and guidance 
pursuant to Governor's Executive Order and Task Force Report for Phase 2 
Re-opening. 

Respond to auditor inquiry. 

Review audit and confer with Peregrino regarding same. 

Review amenity proposals and agreements; confer with Haber. 

Prepare amendments to RMS agreements. 

Prepare amended amenity agreements; confer with Haber. 

Confer with Oliver regarding budget hearing date and resolution changing 
same. 

Review Phase 2 EO; prepare and review categories of reopening expansions; 
confer with in house lawyers on various nuances for same; multiple calls with 
district managers and amenity managers; multiple calls with FIA on same; 
review, edit and transmit COVID waivers and license agreements for use of 
same; review, edit and transmit reservation language and screening 
questionnaires; review PPE requirements promulgated by local jurisdictions; 
confer regarding COVID notification process. 

Research and prepare correspondence to property appraiser regarding release 
of tax roll. 

Prepare budget notice and confer with Stephens regarding same. 

Research partial release; prepare budget hearing documents and meeting 
notice; confer with Haber. 

Total fees for this matter 

0.40 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

1.40 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.80 hrs 

$1,173.50 



General Counsel 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

Bill No. 116522 

TOTAL FEES 
INTEREST CHARGE ON PAST DUE BALANCE 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 
INTEREST CHARGE ON PAST DUE BALANCE 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.20 hrs 295 /hr 
2.90 hrs 125 /hr 
0.10 hrs 245 /hr 
0.40 hrs 245 /hr 
0.10 hrs 245 /hr 
2.20 hrs 275 /hr 

0.20 hrs 295 /hr 
2.90 hrs 125 /hr 
0.10 hrs 245 /hr 
0.40 hrs 245 /hr 
0.10 hrs 245 /hr 
2.20 hrs 275 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

$59.00 
$362.50 

$24.50 
$98.00 
$24.50 

$605.00 

$1,173.50 

$8.92 

$1,182.42 

$59.00 
$362.50 

$24.50 
$98.00 
$24.50 

$605.00 

$1,173.50 

$8.92 

$1,182.42 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Flortda Mining Blvd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Description 

Facility Maintenance July 1, 2020 - July 31, 2020 

Maintenance S~pres . .. 

2g~.:.y IJ-ll·JO 

1:;cJrry ffil'.\;N,, _-if, !7'.5L ob 
OD/..3'JO, &"7,J..ro, l/S' 100 

Yh,Pll.:n.,;, r{\p,;IJl, _$ ll'-liJ, 5'0 
(VI .,3/).0, '!;'?Jou, 60oc,o 

14 

Hours/Qty 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 93 
Invoice Date: 8/1112020 

Due Date: 8/'1112020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

1,902.17 1,902.17 
1,472.39 1,472.39 

Total $3,374.56 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,374.56 



RMS BANNON LAKES COMMUNl1Y DEVELOPMENT DlSTRICT 
MAINTENANCE BJLLABLE HOURS 
FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 20:!0 

Mi Hours Employee Descripliot) 

7/7120 8 K.H. Pressure washed sidewalk in between gym 0nd planter on front or fitness center}, half of 
poo\ fumi!LJre (on rlgh\ side) and pavmon ftimtlure, repaired lock. on n1a!n pool anliy gate, 
ropa!red know on shower on pool deck, replaced hinge on door of mi.ilntenance close!, 
deaned trash receptacle !ids, eropHed and restocl<ad dog po\3 

719/20 5 K.H. Repaired wfndsc1aen on tennis coirrts, removed duck feces from paved vRlkways, pressure 
washe,;f sidewalk In fmnl of fitness cenlor/soc;lal front and curb in middle of 111aln en\ry 
phmts1s, raked mulch under S\•.-ing sets, placed cushion covers on cush!ons, dusted 
enlrances or buildings for spiderwebs and eggs, removed debris along ma!n roadway 

7114/20 8 K.H. Installed 2 new dog po!Si repalreQ $howerhand!e, vAped dov,n patio !ables, checked and 
changed an trash receptacles, removed debris at amenity center and along roadways 

7/16}20 7 K.H. Replaced JUSled dog pol, picked up supplies, placed anl killer on all anl beds around and 
on pool, 1epalred windscreens on tennis courts, rernoved faffen landscape light and replaced 
nol'l-\'l<Hldng l!gh!, raised conduit and l!ghl base at front entrance s!gn, replaced empty dog 
pot bags and picked up bags, removed debris along main roadway 

7/21/2.0 8 K.H, Removed and relocated dog pol, bJe\'J leaves and debrls off baskelbaD <1nd tennls courts and 
sidewalks, replaced trash receplac!e llne1s and dog pot bags, p!Oked I.IP supplies, prepped 
and peiinled baseboards ln soclal room. removed debris al onlrances, afong main roadway 
and amenity center 

7123120 5 K.H. Raked mulch Into n.rls under.!;Wings, dus!ed buikHngs for spiderwebs and eggs, 
slratghlened pool rumlture, blew leaves and debris off baskelball ancl tennis courts, pavmon, 
sidewalks and pool deck, cheeked and changed all trash recaplac!es and dog pols, removed 
July 4th decorations, repa!1ed windscreen on lennls courts, tightened hinge on dog part< 
fence-, kiosene.d hinge on women's bathroom door, replaced screv1s on hinges on main shed 
doo1, !ouched up paint on scratches, scruffs and dent In soclat room 

7126/20 6.5 K.H. Pressuie \'lashed sidewalk In between pavmon and field, pavl!lon furnllure and buildlng him, 
sidewalk In front of social room, checked and changed a!! trash receptacles and dog pots, 
removed etlduck was\e a!o11g paved walli.wc1y and i;ldewalk, blew !eaves .and debris off 
basketball and tennis courtl.l, park and walkway 

7/30/20 5,5 K.H. Picked up supplies, re-hung windscreens on tennis courts, blew leaves and deblisoff 
baske-tball and lennls courts, Pilvl~on end sidewalk, dusted bultdlngs for spiderwebs and 
eggs, pressure washed spilt rail fenco in front of rnness center, sidewalk and ln be\ween 
fitness center and socia! room. checked and changed trash reeeplacles and dog pots 

TOTAL 03 

MILES 106 'Mileage is reimbursable per secUon 112.061 l"!orida $\a\utesMiluage Rate 2009--0.445 

BANNON LAKES 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

Period Ending 08/05/20 

DISTRICT DATE SUPPLIES PRICE EMPLOYEE 
BL 
BANNON LAKES 

7/6/20 Ryobl Pressure Washer 424.35 B.S. 
7/6/20 Ryobl Surface Cleaner 86.22 B.S. 
717120 Conslant Contact Monthly 23.00 B.S. 
7/8120 3 Dogpo! Trash Receplacles 623,86 B.S. 
7114/20 Pool Pole for Rescue Hook 40.72 B.S. 
7/18/20 5 Gallon Bucket 4,00 K.H. 
7/16/20 3'x5' Rubber Mat (2) 60.28 K.H. 
7/16/20 60!b Concrete 4.26 K.H. 
7/16/20 3'x2' Door Mat (2) 25.88 K.H. 
7/16/20 Gas Can 27.67 K.H. 
7/16/20 Alrwlck Refilss 2pk (2) 11.45 K.H, 
7/21/20 Painters Tape 7.67 K.H. 
7/21/20 1.6" Paint Brush 3.20 K.H. 
7/21/20 1" Chlp Brush 1.13 K.H. 
7/21/20 s~ Rolling Tray 2.15 K.H, 
7/21/20 Roller Handle wHh Covers 6.41 K.H, 
7/21/20 Airwlck Refd! 6pk 12.04 K.H, 
7/21/20 Wal\Cteaner 5.73 K.H. 
7/21/20 Swiffer Duster Refill 5pk 5.05 !CH. 
7/21/20 Weed a Grass l<lTier 18.37 K.H. 
7/21/20 Terry Towels 20pk 11.47 K.H. 
7/21/20 ToUel Paper 12 rolls 13.77 1<.H. 
7/21/20 36" Nifty Nabber 22.97 K.H. 
7/30/20 42 gallon 'frash Bags 32ct 20.67 K.H, 
7/30/20 2 Cycle Oil 10.32 KH. 

TOTAL $1,472,39 



,2J 

START STOP 

06/30 

NEWSPAPER 
REFERENCE 

07 /06 07 /13 !03291180-07062020 

07/06 07/13 103291180-07062020 

DESCRIPTION 

Balance Forward 

BUDGET FY 2020/2021 

BUDGET FY 2020/2021 

"" PRODUCT 

SA St Augustine Record 

SA St Aug Record Onl!ne 

PREVIOUS AMOUNT OWED: 

NEW CHARGES THIS PERIOD: 

CASH THIS PERIOD: 

DEBIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: 

CREDIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: 

We appreciate your business. 

/ 1 '3(0, 

Questions on tllis iuvoice call: 

(866)470-7133 Option2 

~ BILLED 1!!J TIMES l!!I "" SAU SIZE 

1,QQ X 9.7500 

1.00x9.7500 

$0.00 

$350.04 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

UNITS RUN RATE 

9.75 

9.75 

2 

2 

$8.98 

$8.97 

AMOUNT 

$0.00 

$175.12 

$174.92 

INVOICE AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT AGING OF PAST DUE ACCOUNTS • UNAPPLIEO AMOUNTS ARE INCLUDED IN TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

21 I CURRENT NET AMOUNT ,,1 

$350.04 

"I ,, 

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO 

The St. Augustine Record 

300AYS 60 DAYS 

$0.00 $0.00 

BILLING PER!OO I, I B!LLEOACCOUNT NUMBER 

07/01/2020 - 07/31/2020 I 15652 

The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 
PO Box 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

OVER90 DAYS 'UNAPPLIEDAMOUNT ,,1 TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

$0.00 $0.00 $350.04 
ADVERTISER INFORMATION 

" ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER 1,1 ADVERTISER/CLIENT NAME 

I 15652 T BANNON LAKES COD - GMS 

Payment is due upon receipt. 

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN LOWER PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE 

'-, BILLING PERIOD 'I AOVERTISERICLIENT NAME 

··RJJ'coRD 07/01/2020 - 07/31/2020 BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS 

COMPANY ,,1 TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 'UNAPPLIEO AMOUNT I, I TERMS OF PAYMENT 

51Aagu,;1ia,_,om 

SA 7 $350.04 $0.00 I NET 15 DAYS 
The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 "I CURRENT NET AMOUNT 1n 300AYS I 60 DAYS ' OVER SO DAYS 

PO Box 121261 $350.04 I $0.00 I $0.00 I $0.00 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

'I PAGE# I• I BILLING DATE I• I BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER l;I ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER I 24 STATEMENT NUMBER 

ADVERTISING INVOICE and STATEMENT 

BILLING ACCOUNT NAME.AtilD ADDRESS 

BANNON LAKES COD - GMS 
475 W TOWN PL STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3649 

I 07/31/2020 

•1•1•1•11ll11111•1•11111111•ll11•11•1•1111111•1•11h1•1l•l11•111I 

I 15652 I 15652 I 

REMITTANCE ADDRESS 

The St. Augustine Record 
Dept 1261 
PO Box 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

0000073325 

7 

.J 



Mon, Jul 13, 2020 
8:25:00AM 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 
Send Payments to: 

The St. Augustine Record 
One News Place 

St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Acct: 15652 
Phone: 9049405850 
E-Mail: 

Name: BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS 
Address: 475 W TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

Client: BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS City: SAINT AUGUSTINE State: FL 

Ad Number: 0003291180-01 Caller: SHELBY STEPHENS Paytype: BILL 
Start: 07/06/2020 Issues: 2 Stop: 07/13/2020 

Placement: SA Legals Rep: Melissa Rhinehart 

Zip: 32092 

Copy Line: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPT 



Mon, Jul 13, 2020 
8:25:00AM 

Lines 
Depth 
Columns 

Price 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 

117 
9.75 

1 

$350.04 

Send Payments to: 
The St. Augustine Record 

One News Place 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

nANNON l,,\Kl'.S (101,U,ll;NnY 
'lf,\H,(WMf.Xl'UJ!:fJllWr 

NUllCEOF J'llllUl' 11Ji,1t.RHW TO 
('ONSJl>JmTlll•: ,\UOJ'l'JO.l'-.OF 
·nm flSC.\I, l'E.\.lt 1flilU/:W:I-I 

BUUGlffSf NOTICt~Of' RC'.\IOrn 
l~ROCF,l)URt:S l)lJltlNU l'lllll..T{.' 
HE.<\ L'n I ,~nmu ENCY UUF. TO 

COVID-19; ANllNOTICliOI; 
IU\GUL'\I~ BOAltnOF 

St.:"l'ERVISOflS' MElffJNG. 

Th,.. lk•~,d ot Sup,:ni~,1111 ("•Bm1r1.r_j .:,J 
tht• l:l;mhun Ih~kl•, C•nn,1111r1ily Jl'-'l't•l• 
u111111c111 flbh-it·J (ul)hlrict~iwil! h(1kl ;1 
publk h,,..tri1::,; (JI\ .l~1h '.<'!,I. :!0~1) :it l1IJl' 
p,1n, fr:r lh1c 1•11r11<.<n' l•I lt~m~nt c,1111-
m•:nb :mil 1•h,',n:tbx:1~ •m th 11tbpJ,t111 
t•! 1ht• pmp:,it•d l•Ls:li:_t•l1 l.''l'n.1pi,~cd 
B11d]l;,..C) 11(11,,. (}ii~tict fsw ll11! !im•.l 
)'l'tl': "1:1t',i:,frmi1:.,; <ki,_,lfl'r l, 'll•Jo. ;ind 
l'nthll~ s .. 1,tcmbn ;m, ::!U!.!I ( Jll~l'a1 
Yl'ar :mz0/20"..!t"), (>fl'MI' noll' that 
p11nua.11t t,J R<:~Jlt1liun W!.!\)...fH, th,. 
i)iitrfrt m4,irrnll)· ~lm!dt•tl_ tlw p11blk 
h1•;,ri11~ for All.l:ll.'ll ;,. !.!l)~U ;.l l:UU 
p.m., ho\l'l"'-'1", llll' J;t\1! ha.-, ln•t•r1 t'l'· 
i,,::lm:!ull'II to July 'l!I, ~(l:W ;;,,I l:IJH J'lll, 
A n•.i;ul:ir bu.in.I 111l'L•lin:; 1d lhl' lfalrid 
"ill 11!~1 I:,., lwl1! .it th,t1 dm<: ,,·J1l'fl' th 
l~oan.\ m.11· t,:mfidn mw i:dwr bw.:5.n,.,o 
tltal r:na1· . l'mjwfl)' t>:•niL• bt·f,:,r,;:-it. A. 
mp,· l)f lhl' ;1:,,~ni/,:i. ;u,d l'roJIP-~t~I nu<-l,r;· 
d 11,a,· ill' i1htaint<l ;1\ lht· offic;."I 1ri tfK 
Di~trict ;'.l,l111t1_f;l.'r, ·Ii/; Wl'it 11:,y,TI 
l'Lv.c, Suit,. tM, St. A11:,,.,1i;th1I', l'lorith 
;n1.1:J'.!, wo-1) ~Ho-,;:.c,D (-IJhtrlet 
!.hi.11.:,.ger'~ om«"'}, dtirin~ n1~11tJJ 
bn~i11<0H immrl-. or h·,· 1·h,ili!!.,; the bi,
tri,;t's w,·b~ik ;,I hllJ!;;:_,'/ha1monlr1k~a<il 
<l.1.om/. 

In li~;hl u:' the COVJl)•Jt) publir h1!1tlth 
~l"llCll,"-'ll'°'·• !hi! ])i1t1kt i.~ w11d11db)l: 
tlw plli1H( h~.ub~ ;in1I m~..tini; b;i,• tl'fo· 
ph,,n,' or \·id,-o ,confon•11<"inp: p:,1111m111l-

~~~;;nr~:~1t i1~\~~
1."l:~;11n~\~~1!~~:t n~~· 

fimit\!tl ln fa . .:cM\w Order~ 2(hU, :m
C.!I and :?lH:iO. iw,11111 l.11· {k,1,:·111,:,r lh'· 
Sr,n1i~, -:,11d .'IU'.-i"'1c1~,lo11~ 11r .n1ppfo· 
,11cnl~ tlv.>H.:,I; imd ~,ur.,i!~m l<o .~,wli!111 
120.,w{r.)(h:•:!:~ FlmU,1st,Jt1.-Jt.1. 

Wln'lr i! i,· n,s,n•1,,uy tolmld J/11'l'~11t1·• 1<f 
,'1n1rwJ Jmb!h Ji,.,ni1w nm! m,•,ti11g "Nfi 
li:,-<n;:r 1,orm,,iiJlirr1fi',-,.,i, 1m,'/ir1 taf.n,'.\r., 
ti,' ,fi,~ t,, llr,· ,•u.rn•JJ/ COl'ID J/J 1mhii. 
ludt!1 ,Wl<'Jf/~,f/, 1/n: Di,l(ir! ,fi"I/!) o'JI: 
1\'.•U,'<.'J!">'~ Jh'IMh' }'UlfJrJ}J1l//ml tli 1i' ·"!!<" 
1m1i ,t}i<irnt 11#1/U:rf. '1',1 //,<JI Nlii, U!J/,' 
,m~ 0:,•-.',iu;l" fo li.,/£u In rrn1(/,i, 1~·u1,<,,; 
/l•J/,• /f, 1/,, w,i·,'mt: <1/U r,h',di_t 1/u ff 

!JIM, IM~f,•1vJIN i}',',1,m.1,'i,111 (.>'.<•1m, ,{fl 
1•/ir,m,m Uuk L ~/J/f.11, .','mf!f.,,r_l fl,;/ 
;•Ml:11;: rhr m.,trh t',, IINhit, or_ r>/Jl
li,dwg Jh• /Ji~J1i,'! .Hattn;r,.1·'.. (d{iN, 
l.,-.-!h ir!rnt,'f;1d rr!.,·,,•r. Hut/,·i/•n.,,h .,11 
~-"mw/!1 ,,·,,"1,imvd /;, .,;1l,m1'1 •'I'"~-
1/,·,11~ (II;,/ "'"'lii/r,•J/., t,, {l,,, /J;_1frid 
MH1ol1/irb!],r,l/hi:f; (!JfJ.J) )l-J-(1.,'>,~,\"0 i!i i 
1>!11•1·1•0:11;:,•, .. ,,:J.;:1;1;; m1 fo/p 11.,.,,, Jo/1> 
:17, :.!t):10 ,ii .'i.'(JfJ p,,/J. /u u1/, u11,v ,fffl,· 
11111<(1,•,g l(•Ji·,,,/,'1f,1/,· 1},., l{,1u,,f'., ,-,,H.<1,/. 
,'1)",!h,;; r>! ~11d.1 ,111r;.-/,!,,,;,~ um/ ,~,mm,;,1.< 
,!1,1'/;;;:J/,·, ;;,,,•/11q; 

Tiu- ll\1hilr lor111inf( ,m,1 ,·,1,•,,1in1; lt!i• ,,,wn 
"' !lu· phl:Hu nn,1 11cll ln• 1•,-:-;1,bi<'I". lo 
,.,.,.o,L1m•,· whh ii,,. 0)11,11~1,-..,-,~ .-,! Fl,d
,l1, l,11,·. ·1hr-l)nhn,, 1,.,,,1 I •11i "'_·,,1 m,~·;i·o1i: 
,~lu} J.,, ,,.01 mw.:l tu " ,hk. lls1w, !'<!'.!! 
till,~-.·'" l,r-sr"••!fl,,,l .. n 1·,,,. i,•,~,1,l "I r.1,,
m,•,•tfr,,;. 

,\~ 1,ull,:id,,l ,1'nu•:1•, lh,, p,1hlk l,,,,d1•,.>: 
.,,_,,_[ 111,:,l·li1•/, wHI l·,i' 1>111d1,,~1•,I 1,s ,)11·· 
.Jiu ,ui,1m1111:,;1tlnn~ frd,m;,1J:Y, ,\111-
1,m· !1·•111!,it•._.: 11.,,1,1,,u)<v h, ,u,k,· 10,,I,. 
•,1h1 ,wt:',., i,·, tlw 1drJ,lu·,c,,,-, 11,1,:" 
1:,,,,11':,_,,dr.,;, rn· Hllwt 1•>.ii,u,11,;.,,,,1;,,I',, 
,.1,n\i11 \n·>t1.01\,.o,,· b:1111! ,,oJi!itn! I" ,•,,y,. 
,.lud th;, 1,w.-i,11;,, ,:1n_•>lti ,..,11;,,•1 Un· 
Di-1.1\,-1. M:111,•;,,•.·•· ~ Ofl11v ,I.I!(';,-.•. 1:u1.s
dr.l1t 1.-,~;) Ji,.,1c:-1d,11· \" t_h: ,,·m,;tl111;•. 

•\1"1_\' l"cl"MH\ ll'.I\Hl1inJ; ~l'<l'iul u,_,·,;·111111,
tl11li1a• ,. Ht ti• i• 11;,,1;1111~ !1<;,;;Uh(• ••I',·, ~l i•· 
"!.i!,h· o,r 11h,~i,·.,l l111p;ilcu•,·n1 ~l1u11ld 
t'f<fil,·:,~ t!w l)j-.J·dl'I Mao11;11~·1'• Olllu• ;ii'. 
) •. ai.,I l»rl)·d:~ht {!~) h,,u,,. p1it>1 li• th, 
mt'l'llil.f., II ~vu m,• l1t•:11i>1~ "' h;Wl,l, 
:1111"•in,l, 1•k•w ,:u11t,,.,,. 1"111: !'l,,ri,b It.•· 
1.,-.r St·t~·ir" 1,y diali1!~ 7-H, <11 1,1;110-
~J',f,-N;;J flT'f:> / l-t<.J)l).1/t,,',-:;','711 
(\',·,i•:l'). fur ,JV! ill ~»11(:whll;', \lw [lj.,
ttkl. i\l;•.n,1:~, r·., Ollin· 

l•:1w)1 n<T,1n ·1th,i ,C,,-i,l,., !n :un,,·:11 ;-.11\ 



Mon, Jul 13, 2020 
8:25:00AM 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 
Send Payments to: 

The St. Augustine Record 
One News Place 

St. Augustine, FL 32086 

··:.\~~;;1;,;;·~;a;i;:· 1it ii;{: ·1>;(1;11~f ~:tlil -~~ 
~Jl('li tv ill\,." 1rrnl!l'r l~l!!~iiJt•rnl flt llti: 
puhlk l1l'milli.: 11r m~~uni; i!< a,fri~:d 
th;,l l'l'l'l':~1 wllt nm~I ft fl's>m! ol pm
n<s:di11~_:,; amt tlwt t\J:1xir1.\ini:h, tl1t 1•,•r· 
t,;•n nrnv 1:•~d t•J l'nmn• !bat :, n:1h-..1im 
n:i:ut,1 ·ur t:'w Jl!\.o;:1:t'lling< iJ u;l\dl', in
dmli1w 11:w tl',th11uu1· ~11,! ~vMt•11,;1' 
111:,0.•n ,~1idt "ud1 "•IIJ>l~•. b t•) bl' b1,.,nt. 

Ji1nOll•t'!' 
Di~1rk1 Mmt~i·r 

lXM;..·i~tJllllO .lul~· 6, 1-1, '..!(WJ 



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 
Affidavit of Publication 

BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS 
475 W TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

ACCT: 15652 
AD# 0003291180-01 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHINEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily nev,'spaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a NOTICE OF 
HEARING in the matter of BUDGET FY 2020/2021 was published in said 
newspaper on 07/06/2020, 07/13/2020. 

Affiant forther says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine, in St. Johns County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
!he l'ity of St. Augustine, in said St. Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and 
affiant fu1iher says the he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, finn 
or corporation any discount, rebate, commission, or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to ( or affinned) and subscribed before me by means of 

[ ~ysical presence or 
[ ] online notarization 

JUL 1 3 2020 
this __ day of ____ _ 

1(/;IL_µ 
by ____________ who is persona11y known to 
me or who has produced as identification 

otary Public) 

Notary Public State of Florida 
TIFFANY M LOWE 
My Commission GG 115811 
Expires 06/18/2021 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 
CONSIDER THEADOYITON OF 
THE.FISCAL YEAR2020/2021 

BUDGETS;NOTICEOFREMOTE 
PROCEDURES DURING PUSLTC 
HEALTII EMERGENCY DUE TO 

COVID-19; AND NOTICE OF 
REGULAR BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS' MEETING. 

The Board of Supervisors ("Boal'd") of 
the Bannon Ul.kes Community DJJvel
opment District (~Dislrict")--.\ill bold a 
public hearing on July 29, 2020 at 1:00 
p.m. for the purpose of hearing com
ments and objections on the adoption 
nf \lie pro1msed hud1,rets ("P1•upo.~ed 
Budget") of the District for the fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2020 and 
ending September 30, 2021 ("Fiscal 
Yea.- 2020/2021" ). Please note that 
pursuant to Resolution 2020-04, the 
District originally sc]1eduled the public 
hearing for August 5, 2020 at 1:00 
p.m., however, the date has been re
scheduled to July 29, 2020 at 1:00 pm. 
A regular board meeting of the District 
\~ill also be held ut tlmt time where the 
Board may consider any other busine.~s 
that may properly come before it, A 
copy of the agenda and Proposed Budg
et may be obtained at the offices of the 
District Manager, 475 West Town 
Place, Suil11 114, SL. Augustine, Fludda 
32092, (904) 940-5850 ("District 
l\lnnager's Office~), during normal 
hus!ne.% hours, or by visitiTig thr. Dis
trict's website at ht):Ds://bJlnnonlakescd 
cl.com/. 

In light of the COVlD-19 public health 
emergency, the District is conducting 
the public heariTig and meetiTig by tele
phone or yidco confcrcncini, communi 
cations media leclumlogy pursuant to 
governmeTital orders, including but not 
limited to Executive Orders 20-52, 20-
69 1md :W-150, issued by Gol'crnor De
santis, and anv ei,.tensions or supple
meTits thereof, filld pursuant to Section 
I20.!H-(5)Cb)2., FloridaStatute.s. 

While it is necessmy to hold the above r~f
crcnced public hcm-i:ng and mceflng uti
lit:ir,g cammunfratirm.~ mr.dia technolo
gy due lo tlw current COVJD .. J9 publfo 
health emergency, the DU/Ide/ .(ul(y e11-
cow·agcs public pmtidpatio11 111 a safe 
rmd ,;J]icknl -manner. To that end, an_y• 
one 11•f.•hinr; to Ti.•tcn to a!ld/or partici
pate in the ou>ering can obtain /he 1'1!
uwlv co11/i:rr11cc i1ijor11111tim1 (Zoom Ap
plication Liulr U Call-In Number) by 
vi.siting the Di~trict's JYcbsite or wn
la.'linf the Distrirl Manager's Offke, 
both idmtfficd above. Participants arc 
~lrongly orwouraged /-0 submit q«cs• 
tfons and co11m1,•11ls to thc. District 
M1p111gcr by rollillg (90-1}9•/.IJ-5850 or 1 
ohver@gm1mf;com no latt~· tha11 .TulJJ 
27, 2020 at fi:OO p.m. in advance efthc 
meeting tofadlitate t/u; Board's c1msid
t•rulion o[such qu.f.li/ia11s (md rommenls 
during:tlic mrctmg. 

The public hearing and meetillg are open 
to the puhlic nod will he condncled in 
accordance with the provisioTis ofFlor:i
da law. The public hearing and meeting 
ma\' be continued to a date, time, a11d 
p!aCe to be specified on the record al the 
mcetiTig. 

As indicated above, the public henriTig 
and meetiug will be conducted by me
dia communic.1.tions technology. Anr
onc requiring 11SSistnTice in order to ob
tain access to the telephonic, ~idco 
coTifcrendTig, or other communicatiom; 
media te~hno\ogy being utilized to con
duct this meeting should contact the 
District Manager' s Office at least forty
eight (48) homs prior to the meetfogs. 

Any pcr~on requiring: special accom1no
dallons at tllis meeting because of a dl6-
ability or pl1yskal hupainnellt should 
contact the Distdct Manager's Office at 
least forty-r.i~ht (48) hours prior to the 
mectiTig. If you arc bc11rillg or speech 
impnircd, plca.se contnct the Florida Re
ill)' Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-
955~8771 (TIY) / 1-800-9M-8no 
(Voice), for aid in coTitacting the Dis
trir.l Man11g,;ir·s Office. 

Each l?erson who decides to appeal aTiy 
Licciston made by the Board with re
spect to any matter considcred at the 
public hearinq or meeting is advised 
tlmt pr.rson will 11eed II recol'd of pro
ceedings ilnd that accordingly, the per
son may need to ensure that u verbatim 
record of tl1e prnreediTigs is mnde, in
cluding tl,e testimony and evidence 
upnTI whicl1 such appeal is to be based. 

Jim Oliver 
Distri~l Mum,gi;,r 

0003291180 July G, 13, 2020 



:Beacc,111 Electrical (~0111tractcn:'S7 Inc. 
DuvalStation Rd,Suite107-306 

Jacksonville, Florida 32218 
Phone: 904, 338-5394 
Fax: 904-751-6583 

To: 

Aun: 
Phone: 
Email: 

Riverside Management Services, lnc. 
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite J\206 
Orlando, FL 32827 

Brian Stephens 

bstephens@rivernidemgtsvc.com 

:WORK COMPLETED B-20··20@ Brannon Lakes : 

_INVC)IC:E #2Q08li4 
D?te: B-20-20. 

Labor and materials t:o : 

-Troubkshoot:pool lights. 
·Disconnected lights to clear tripping circuit breaker,• noted lights leaking 
•Recommend pool contractor to replace lights. 

INVOICE AMOUNT $t264.00 

Net Due Upon Receipt 

All work bas been complctecl in a workmanlike m,umer according to standard prnctkes !'1.nd the National Electtic.\l Codes. All work has a 
one~ye.11' warrnnty effec\i\'e as of the date of this ln\'oice. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
475 West Town Place, Ste 114 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bannon Lakes Community 
Development District 

618 

lnvoice#11570 

Please detach ancl return with payment 
x---------------------------------

Customer: Bannon Lakes Community Development District 

,z$:f€cttilcti\ilii~ 

10/01/2020 Renew policy 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 

Policy #100120279 1'0/01/2020-10/01/2021 

Florida Insurance Alliance 
Package - Renew policy 
Due Date: 9/1/2020 

C @ 

1, '31J iJ ,. 1s-r, /c,;;o 

Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th St Oaklawn, IL 60453 

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC 
Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 
Chicago, IL 60689-4002 

(321 )233-9939 

sclimer@egisadvisors.com 

21,500.00 

$ ~1,500,00 



FREEDOM '\~~ 
ti"l!\:i!,'11' CON'!l'Rtt~II, it'~- ~'\: 
90'1-·272,B!JGS (2841) -·jn ,\ 
3600 Peoria Rel, Suite 103 :.,/ 

Ornnge Par!<, FL 32065 

!idl J" [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
t\35 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

INVOICE: 
DATE: 

OllDER: 

\\,,:I. 

---1n40·5wi,, .. .,
,Jfr1io20 
1040G93 

I,, ,'!H'il [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SL Augustine, FL 32092 

L~1~).1.lb<~tJ~d~i.~J'./.i~,ttiliiJi1li~;J~ii!1JfLlt1i:,it~1,~i,J~iliJl:ll\1, _·-• ·1f, <· ;;/ ,/,'>; ',' 
617/2020 0£1:00 AM 2MARCUS Marclll Lopez 

[;~~s;J';f!f(.)11'.:))'.(;,}[c,DM •"lf~"i.,~~\1\\f:_l,5i'i~~lll-!fffi:J:J.t11,fo•ll :: I ;•,r:1:!(oJ,1;1,)-. 'dP ~¼·,,,n,;Jr,~¥-iAc;·;; >:,.-ti-"~~ 'i /1, 1C1i!11n .·1 
NET :30 817/2020 Uo:JE276"424 

TC-SHP ·-:;i)\nnu.il Termite Control Renewal 

B.d,'I\\\'., \Hlt,i;,l\,lm\'. ,,l",'I .'ll ,!.11"> !i"m (!:,· ~1,!t.' u! "'l\in' lll.l\ h· ,ubi,'~t 1" ,! L,1( k; 
.,f lli, I. •'(l nl 1.5' :· r,'1 m,11Hh '· !:S', p.-r :,,,i! I ;,1 \h~ nc,t\U)l\lli) J\1,,,,i,1 [,~ ks 
( '<1-lnn:;;1 ,,;'tn"• !>1 p,,j ,;s-,1\ktl •C\f's'li•,,'., i•l 1h,; \"\~Ill <11 ,u!L:,li<ill 

Iii 

,1-I 

J50.00 

SUBTOTAL $350.00 

TAX S0.00 

AMT. PAID $0.00 

TOTAL $350.00 

/\MOUNT DUE 

ssL,l , 11, ,,.•, 1.• ! ,,'1tTL·1,,•1, d. ll , •, 1., 
l ,I\,,· j,-.1:-.).I 



[106211] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Fitness Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
Saint Augustine, fl 32095 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 
}f,;;1# .. 

ORDER: 1040595 

\\.,1), 

l , .... ,iHi ['106211] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Fitness Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvcl 
Saint Augustine, FL 32095 

~lffi!i•J.:IM~~[1fl:tmiWl<i4it~.::, •~ ~ ~E2:'2.ii • .:.LTu1Ja1~EC],i~!:'}'.J;'J1±iit,ir Ai ,j • ·1 
8/7/2020 10:00 Al..4 2MARCUS Mucus Lop1,z 

~~-~Ti::t1l:Gll!IJ.Jill.illi!l]\1 ,1,;+~~11[1!:Hfffu'll:i;r;~,..,J¾J~Fff1ff~:,:fiy~j1';~*1i•lii;::1'1:~ii..li/~~~1ftd·1< •1i11 ·· I 
NET ~o em20:zo Lio:JE27e◄2◄ 

TC-SRP Ariti:\1~1 Termite Control H.en.ewa! 

R.EC: 

ls.,),'lkn 1lli!,\,,1!1liHf ll\\·! \!1 ,J.,\, h,,,i; tlk ,bts' ,,) •,1·,k\' Ill,!~ h;• ,;ul,:.-,t l;i ll LI~!~,

••1 !h-: I,:;,~: ,,f J 5•: 1Y1 1;1<;11111 ( 1;.•; 1\cf ~-,:-,1r1 ,,1 lhc 1\1.1\imum ,111,,w,,! h; t,,1 
( \1,t\lli,;"! ,,:.'1,,, !HI'·''.• .\\:d\h:,: i:\r:n,,,, I() !ll~ (_\CIH ,11 ,·nit, ll•'ii 

,SEP Of; 

11,.;. 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 
AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

200,00 

$200.00 

SO.OD 

$0,00 

$200.00 

•;.! 



!:iii i,, [106210} 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

DATE: 
ORDER: 1M1871 

\\>'IL 

!'<1f2' '" [106210} 
Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

~'lli]lli!Bi'i!ll~~llS"i?;~,tfi{S1ftlm!i;;:~: ;jl•~:t-i{'~filiJJi\iID(~iJ',:'i~~;c~Vi;:i'~llifi;~~v-iffli'';;E1;1i:'1i\.¥.ff:(~¥~~l[iri~ i"1i1l:11;,: ~I 
8127/2020 03:20 PM 2MARCUS Mercu, Loper. 

f;,,'f'(:i,1 ~i;jf;~J!l[~.tJ:tl -Tr!JJl?:t'.•~~j~ W;i\j~;;'-'"ii1Jitf,j":i{Ji.;i'I M!lit )}/,j,ii •it,r: i I 1::; i ,;;i,J : J{fj.i) 1Tf~';J~ l!IJii~tl '~c:~: ,'fi~.~•:~-'''~'i,.;,~/ . .,J f ~ '! i! ;; t 'i(, J ,if · 
NET JO 8/27/2020 Llo:JE2711-42◄ 

MONTHLY Monthly Pe~! Control 

l\,,J.;n"·· 11(ll<l:1n,!rn: ;,,,·1 .Ill ,j.,~, mun tk \l.1\.' ,1i "'1\i«: m,1\ k· ,d1i,u i,, ,1 LM k,· 
,1t lh~ 1; •·:1 P! I Y; r,·, mnmh t !ii', I'd .~-:<'!l ,,1th~ na.1\l1m:1;\ ,11lns S!l h,· l.n\ 
(\1,tn1:'. 1· .,~·1,., hl P-\\ ,1,:, i\!-'d s'\!~-'l•'-'' ill ti<c \'\s"I'.\ ul ~1,l!ctlh•:t 

1 i, ,, I•; . i.l, -.. 1, ,I;. 
,!i,I I !'" 11' 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 
/\MT, PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

150.00 

$150.00 

SO.DO 

$0.00 

S 150.00 

'j l I-• 



FREEDOM,~~ 
IPl!:$T COINJTROIL I/~-~~ 
904-272-BUGS !28471 •J· \.\ 
.%00 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 -· 

Ornn~Je Park, Fl. 32065 

Bill !,; 

RODENT 

[106210] 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

H,,\,,;ic\'' ,,111,(,\1\tl;n:; ,,;·~r _l.ij d,,~;. ft,i;l) 1h,·1!,1t, ,1i ,,:l',\u· iihi'.- \",.· w\,_1,',t l,> ;1 !,ti·: k\ 
,11 !h-: k-<~r,,; l5'.; p:i-m,111tll ( J;.', r..:r y,,_.11 ,,, the' m.1\in;\l1\l ,,ll,h ,-d h:, L,\,. 
( \isl•_o1):~j ,1~1cc, {U p-:y ;;,d\K,: ,-.,rc,,,cc, in th,,_., cnt <ll c,·,B:lth,il 

\\' ,!) 

.. •fri421frFr 
>lcfl/2'//2020 

1042117 

I; ,, 11 [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
1135 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SI. Aug1,1stine, FL 32092 

, 1.,i 'I•., \,· j' 1/ J]1;, 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 
AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

I's°!'!· .. 

100.00 

$100.00 

~0.00 

SO.DO 

s100.00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
SI. Augustine, FL 

Description 

0 '>. 20ZG 
M 

Management Fees -§~ptember 2020 /. IO, 2,7:J , 
Website Administralioh - September 2020 7 3-D 
Information Technology- September 2020 l,·e;! 
Dissemination Agent Services - September 2020 '2,-/ b 
Office Supplies !:,1 O 
Postage 1/ J~0 
Copies !; Ji,;{' 
Telephone f (;() 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice #: ~fc'C; 
Invoice Date: ~t1l20 

Due Date: 9/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

3,750.00 
100.00 
144.42 
291.67 

0.24 
4.00 

34.20 
9.38 

Amount 

$4,333.91 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $14;333.91 



The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
Aquatic Management Services ., 

3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 32708 
PH: 800-666-5253 

Bill To 

BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

Purchase Order Number 

Item 

Monthly Water Management Service (R) 

Terms 

NET JO DAYS 

Description 

INVOICE 
Invoice# ''528054 

Account# 723475 

Invoice Date 9/1/2020 

Due Date 9/11/2020 _____ ___, 

Rep MAS 

Invoice Questions: 
Lakes@lakedoctors.com 

Payment Questions: 
Payments@lakedoctors.com 

Invoice Date Reflects Month of 
Service Provided 

Amount 

Water Mgmt Serv - Additional Area Added Effective December 2019 

475.00 
175.00 

,1· '/ f .. 0 r!::J 

Customer Total Balance $650.00 
,,_PT~a·;; confirm you~ -b~nk bill p;y~~~;~~~t·.,~;-tch·;~ yo~-;-.. in~~-i~~ am~unt if Y~uc;c,u;;.se"'·•"'C'"b;acnc:k.; .. _bc,,c,ll""..-1T_o_t_a_l_I_n_V_O_l_' c-e-!------c.lfff2=·-·=:!5-¼'.'t--:1•>-fO ___ '(J-.!-:: -I;, -< 

~aver service. Thank you! 1:!JlL .: .-,.,_ .. __ ,_,,_., ff 

To help ensure prompt and accurate credit to your account, please include your account number and invoice number on your check and always 
include your remittance stub with your payment. 

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your local office contact information. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

Bill To 
BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WESTTOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

For address and contact updates, please email us at 
Frontdesk(ti;lakedoctors.com. 

The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
3543 State Road 419 

Winter Springs, FL 32708 

0 

Amount Enclosed Invoice# 528054 

Account# 723475 

Date 9/1/2020 

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to 
have your invoices emailed. 

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW 
Mastercard Visa __ American Express 

Card# ___ ~-----------
Card Verification# __________ _ 
Exp. Date# _____________ _ 

PrintName _____ ~~==---~--
Billing Address: __ Check box if same as above 

Signature 



WORK ORDER / INVOICE 

NAME 

Pompanette Canvas and Upholstery 
404 S. Riberia Street, St. Augustine, Fl 32084 

Tel: 904-429-3968 Fax: 904-824-9755 

STATE '" 

I llHIEBY AUTHORIZE THE OVE WORK TO BE DONE AS $0 OR-
DERED AND OUTLINED AeOVE, 11 IS AGREED THAT THE SEHER WILL 
RETAIN TITLE TO ANY EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL FURNISHED UNHl 

1-----------------------l~~~~~:;;~~~Es~~~:sH!~E:H~:1C:H/r,~~T~~~~~T ~~~~~E~~DE 
AND MA1Ef?IAL WIIHOUT BEING HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAM· 

1----------------------JAGES RESULTING FROM lHE REMOVAL Of EQUIPMENT. 

TAX 

l----------------------jx 7ASa,o"v"'e-,o-',"oE"R"'ED""W°'O-'R"K"H"°AS,-,;;SE°'E"'N-,CvoCCMiopcaLEs;TE,;,O,A;:;N:;;D"I --
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MY COPY. 

TOTAL I& 
Thank You 



1707 Townhurst Dr 
Houston TX 77043 
ar@poolsure.com 
800,858,~001.(7665) 
www.poolsure.com 

B111To 

Riverside Management Services 
Bannon Lakes COO 
9655 Florida Minning Blvd West 
bldg 300 suite 305 
Jacksonville FL 3225 7 

Invoice Date 
Invoice U 

'gffo2020 
1.3'1295594690 

Terms Net 20 1----------_c,;.c:.;cc_1-------········-·-·--" 
Due Date 013112020 

PO II 1-c=~~~~~~~~.:::.:.c.1•······· .. C ..........................•......•.......... 

Delivery Ticket# Sales Order #1331814 

Delivery Date a,1112020 

Delivery Location Bannon Lakes Pool 

13BAN025 Customer II 1- _________ _c__,...c...1- ____ ,. __ ., .. _____ _, 

Ship To 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine FL 32095 

LATE FEE: Tll!s conslilutes notice under the truth in lending ac\ \hat any accounts remaining unpaid after lhe due date are s11bject to 1 1/?.% per 
month late charge and allorney fees. 

Item ID 
115-300 

160-050 

Remittance Slip 

Customer 
13BAN025 

Invoice 11 
131295594690 

Item 
Bleach Minibulk Delivered 

Pool Acid bulk by Gallon 

111111111111 i llrn 11111111 Ill 
131295594690 

Quantity Units 
500 gal 

45 gal 

Amom1t D\!e 

Amount Paid 

Make Checks Payable To 

Poolsure 
PO Box 55372 
Houston, TX 77255-5372 

Rate Amount 
1.50 750.00 

3.00 135.00 

Total 885.00 
Amount Duo ~8!).!i;Q!f' 

$885,00 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 

--- Jacksonville,.F[ 32257 ·· 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Florida Mining 81vd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonvme, FL 32257 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 

Invoice Date: Ji71)2020 
Due Date: 9/1/2020 

Case: 
P.O. Number: 

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount 

Janitorial Services - September 2020 3 2.'7, $, 7.., '15"30 
Pool Maintenance Services - September 2020 3 ?-<>, s·,,., 'i '5' 2.o 
Contract Administration - September 2020 :}2.e,, ~, ,., ,1 i,,·"' 
Facility Management - Bannon Lakes - September 2020 ~ .,,,, I ~ 

,/2.o, '57'2., .J '1 Oo 

583.33 
910.50 

1,596.50 
5,000.00 

Total $8,090.33 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due '$8,090.33 



Side Hustle the Band LLC 
Jorge Laplume 
5381 Fremont St. 
Jacksonville, FL 32210 
United States 

Tax ID: 83-3643056 

Phone: 954-993-6963 
antonsmusic89@gmail.com 

Bill To: 

bannonmanager@rmsnf.com 

Description 

Side Hustle Performance 

0 

Invoice #: 000~., 
Invoice Date: §.!'P 7, 2020 

Due date: ·sep 7, 2020 

Quantity 

1 

Amount due: 
$250.00 

Price 

$250.00 

Subtotal 

Amount 

$250.00 

$250.00 

Total ~250.00 USD 



\\'A, 4 
~F'~ 

~ Landcare Group 
Irrigation • Landscape, Maintenance 

35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Project 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Description 

Monthly maintenance for the month o{§.~gte~ber 

/j ·(b) 
!, {J;D, {'31 1(/~ 

Thank you for your business! 

Terms 

Net30 

Quantity 

I 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

.~1112020 • 10873 '¾ 

0 1 2020 

Project# 

MlOI 

Rate Amount 

12,642,14 12,642.14 

Total $12642,14 

Payments/Credits $0,00 

Balance Due \$12,ii42.14 



IRE/PUB/I.IC 8619 Western Way 
SERVICES Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Customer Service (904) 731-2456 
Republ icServices. com/Support 

Important Information 

Account Number 
Invoice NL1mber 
Invoice Date 

Previous Balance 
Payments/Adjustments 
Current Invoice Charges 

3-0687-0010861 
0687-001080305 
August 16, 2020 

$315.01 
-$315.01 
$422.25 

It's easy to go paperless! Sign up for Paperless Billing at 
RepublicServices.com and enjoy the convenience of 
managing your account anytime, anywhere, on any 
device. 

Total Amount Due I Payment Due Date 

$422.25 September 05, 2020 

PAYMENTS/ADJUSTMENTS 
Description 
Payment - Thank You 08/17 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

Reference 
690 

Description Reference 

Bannon Lakes Cdd 435 Bannon Lakes Dr CSA A172389154 
St. Augustine, FL Contract: 9687022 (C51) 

Quantity 

1 Waste Container 6 Cu Yd, 1 Lift Per Week 
Waste/Recycling Overage 07/23 Driver 
Receipt Number 33746 
Pickup Service 09/01-09/30 

Administrative Fee 

Total Fuel/Environmental Recovery Fee 

Total Franchise - Local 

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES 

18,ef) 
1, 5 i,1J I fJ/) 1 /jj rf 

Electronics Recycling with BlueGuard™ 
Convenienl recycling solulions ll1al are sale tor your business and goocl 
!or our plane!. To learn more, visit RepublicServices.com/Electronics 

1.0000 

l'IEPIJBI.IC Total Amount Due 
SERVICES 

8619 Western Way 
Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 

Return Service Requested 

L2RCACDTXC 014805 

Please Return This 
Portion With Payment 

Total Enclosed 

I' 11111111 •11 •I, 111 I• 11 I I 11111 •'I' I, 111111 I, 11 I, 11'' 111111 In '111 
BANNON LAKES COD 

Payment Due Date 

Account Number 

Invoice Number 

Make Checks Payable To: 

Unit Price 

$79.90 

$228.54 

Amount 
-$315.01 

Amount 

$79.90 

$228.54 ~ 

" $5.95 ii; 
0 
0 $88.09 >i 
0 $19.77 'c 

$422.25 gJ 

$422.25 

rn 

z 
z z z z 
z 
~ z 
z z z 
z z 
z 
0 

'c 
0 

'c 

September 05, 2020 

3-0687-0010861 

0687-001080305 

LOUIS COWLING 
475WTOWN PL 

111111•11•11•11•111•1•11• 111•1 •11111111111• 111• ''II' 11111111111 II 
REPUBLIC SERVICES #687 

STE 114 PO BOX 9001099 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3648 LOUISVILLE KY 40290-1099 

30687001086100000010803050000422250000422257 



Side Hustle the Band LLC 
Jorge Laplume 
5381 Fremont St. 
Jacksonville, FL 32210 
United States 

Tax ID: 83-3643056 

Phone: 954-993-6963 
antonsmusic89@gmail.com 

Bill To: 

bannonmanager@rmsnf.com 

Description 

Side Hustle Performance 

2 8 2020 

1.1 r] 

Invoice#: 0001 
Invoice Date: Aug 24, 2020 

Amount due: 
$1,000.00 

Hours 

4 

Rate 

$250.00 

Subtotal 

Amount 

$1,000.00 

$1,000.00 

Total $1,000.00 USD 

(I rfJ) 
/ 1 J;UJ, S?J, 1191'/ 



Thigpen Heating And Cooling Inc. 

2801 Dawn Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 
Phone: (904) 448-1962 

Billing Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

Request : NEXT CALL 
ONE OF THE OFFICE UNITS ISNT COOLING 
OKTO CHARGE 

ltE!m Description 

MISC-ENVIRON-FEE 

R-41 QA-PER-POUND 

COMM-LABOR 

Misc. Supplies & Enviromental 

R-410A per lb. 

Commercial Labor 

1. Upon arrival found that back office/bathroom trane 7 .5 ton unit 

was unit not cooling properly, found circuit 2 was flat, found 

leak on liquid line at cdu where copper rubbed hole in itself. 

Repaired leak , pulled vaccum , recharged system and checked 

operations. Also secured line to keep from happening again . 

Office to bill customer the total 931$ for work 

Tyj:,e 
CONO 

A!RH 

CONO 

AIRH 

Date 

Model ~'t:\;~~-if 
TT A090H300AA TRA 

TWE090E300AA TRA 

14HPX036-230-21 LEN 

CBX25UH-036-230·LEN 

Amount Ty'pe 

I 

NOTES 

EQuip'1]~_11t 
Sei'ial 
16512L83YA 

17033NJABA 

1917B03797 

1717B34977 

'f'ayoi~nb; ' 
iete:~~-n-~~--:' 

Qty 

1.00 

13.00 

2.50 

WORK ORDER 
Number: 

Date: 
Account No: 

Prepared For: 
Terms: 

Reference: 
Service Partner: 

11851 
7/21/2020 
126153 

Service Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

Unit Pnc·e 

$10.00 

$59.00 

$98.00 

Atl~ ,o••co~;-rage 
3 

3 

3 

3 

(? n I I .J /I.A)"' 
() 

,:/ f 

EXten·d~·•f 

$10.00 

$767.00 

$245.D0 



ACCEPTANCE OF WORK PERFORMED: I acknowledge satisfactory completion of the above described work and that the premises has been 

left in satisfactory condition. I understand that if my check does not clear, I am liable for the check and any charges from the bank. I agree to 

pay 1.75% per month for past due contracts (minimum charge $15). In the event that collection efforts are installed against me, ! shall pay for all 

associated fees al the posted rates as we!! as all cost of collection fees and reasonable attorney fees. 1 agree that the amount set forth in the 

space marked "TOT AL COST" is the total flat price I have agreed to. 

/yz_~b Taxable: 

Non-Taxable: 

Sub Total: 

Accepted By 
Sales Tax: 

Freight: 
Amount Paid: 

Total: 

1,022.00 

0.00 

$1,022.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$1,022.00. 



Thigpen Heating And Cooling Inc. 

2801 Dawn Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 
Phone: (904) 448-1962 

Billing Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

Request: UNIT IS NOT WORKING 

Item 

COMM-LABOR 

Description 

Commercial Labor 

1. Upon arrival found system working properly and cooling room , 

checked all system ops and pressures ( 140/325) . lf system is 

having issues it's definitely intermittent . Lennox system is the 

one I worked on today fyi 

Type 

CON□ 

AIRH 

CON□ 

AIRH 

Date 

--:Mqa;1 
TT A090H300AA TRA 

TWE090E30DAA TRA 

14HPX036➔230-21 LEN 

CBX25UH-036-230-LEN 

Docllment# 

NOTES 

Equipm~n,t 

Serial 
16512l83YA 

17033NJABA 

1917803797 

1717834977 

P,ayin8_11ts 
Refei"ence 

WORK ORDER 
Date: 

Account No: 
ill 7 202QPrepared For: 
!J u ,_ Terms: 

Reference: 
Service Partner: 

11952 
7/23/2020 
126153 

Service Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

qty Unit 

1.50 

,.\ig~ .,"..CbVer;\ie 
3 

3 

3 

3 

$98.00 

ACCEPTANCE OF WORK PERFORMED: I acknowledge satisfactory completion of the above described work and that the premises has been 

left in satisfactory condition. I understand that if my check does not clear, I am liable for the check and any charges from the bank. I agree to 

pay 1.75% per month for past due contracts (minimum charge $15). In the event that collection efforts are installed against me, I shall pay for all 

associated fees at the posted rates as well as all cost of collection fees and reasonable attorney fees. I agree that the amount set forth in the 

space marked "TOT AL COST" is the total flat price I have agreed lo. 

Taxable: 

Non-Taxable: 

Sub Total: 

Accepted By 
Sales Tax: 

Freight: 
Amount Paid: 

Total: 

Extended 

$147.00 

147.00 
0.00 

$147.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$147.00 



Thigpen Heating And Cooling Inc. 

2801 Dawn Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 
Phone: (904) 448-1962 

Request : 10-1 

Billing Address 

Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

UNIT IS NOT WORKING 
CALL 84 
OKTO CHARGE 

Item Descri!)tion 

DRAIN-PAN SWfCH 

MISC-ENVIRON-FEE 

COMM-LABOR 

Ceiling saver switch only 

Misc. Supplies & Enviromental 

Commercial labor 

TYP* -
COND 

A\RH 

COND 

AIRH 

,,._Mci'd~i----~rand 

TT A090H300AA TRA 

TWE090E300AA TRA 

14HPX036-230-21 LEN 

CBX25UH-036-230·LEN 

AUG 2? 2020 

NOTES 

E;_qu.1pm,_rtt 
-··:::1!i·•t1;i 

16512L83YA 

17033NJABA 

1917803797 

1717834977 

paym■_·n~: 

Date Docuj:ne'ht# -k~f;·;;~~;:;:::··•" 

WORK ORDER 
Number: 

Date: 
Account No: 

Prepared For: 
Terms: 

Reference: 

12365 
8/4/2020 
126153 
Bre Meeks 

Service Partner: 

Qty' 

1.00 

1.00 

1.50 

Service Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

Unit PricE!. 

$110.00 

$10.00 

$98.00 

.-:.Ag■- c_o~~~-g~ 
3 

3 

3 

3 

ACCEPTANCE OF WORK PERFORMED : l acknowledge satisfactory completion of the above described work and that the premises has been 

left in satisfactory condition. I understand that if my check does not clear, I am liable for the check and any charges from the bank. I agree to 

pay 1.75% per month for past due contracts (minimum charge $15). !n the event that collection efforts are installed against me, l shall pay for all 

associated fees at the posted rates as well as al\ cost of co!\ection fees and reasonable attorney fees. l agree that the amount set forth in the 

space marked "TOT AL COST" is the total flat price I have agreed to. 

_/~(_~!=_~-:;r-·· 
Accepted By 

Taxable: 

Non-Taxable: 

Sub Total: 

Sales Tax: 

Freight: 
Amount Paid: 

Total: 

Exterided" 

$110.00 

$10.00 

$147.00 

267.00 

0.00 

$267.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$267.00 



Thigpen Heating And Cooling Inc, 

2801 Dawn Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 
Phone: (904) 448-1962 

Billing Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 

Request : 10-1 
$105 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 

NOT COOLING 
CALL B4 
OKTO CHARGE 
Item 

ST AT-SENSI-PROG 

COMM-LABOR 

Install Sensi Program Thermost 

Commercial Labor 

1. Appon arrival found t slat for the clubhouse set to 72° and 

satisfied, checked pressures, amp draw on motors, drain line, 

coils and operation. Customer staled problem happens 

intermittently and could be the t stat. changed out t stat to see if 
that remedies the problem. Also checked the bathroom and 

office unit. Checked the pressures, amp draw and operation on 

both circuits all look good both systems are up and running at 

this time 

Typ~ 
COND 

AIRH 

COND 

AIRH 

Brand 
TT A090H300AA TRA 

TWE090E300AA TRA 

14HPX036-230-21 LEN 

CBX25UH-036-230· LEN 

Aino"tmt Ty_pe Document# 

2 2020 

!'OTES 

Eqyip~e.nt 
Siirial 
16512L83YA 

17033NJABA 

1917803797 

1717834977 

payJUents, 
R~-i~~;~~;"' 

WORK ORDER 
Number: 

Date: 
Account No: 

Prepared For: 
Terms: 

Reference: 
Service Partner: 

12466 
8/6/2020 
126153 
Bre Meeks 

Service Address 
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St Augustine, FL 32095 

Qty Unit Price 

$303,00 

$98.00 

1.00 

3.00 

C ck rf!) 

EXtend0'i:t 

$303.00 

$294,00 

/, 5J.:J, 57 ,J, 6t)t: 

A90' COverage 
3 

3 

3 

3 



ACCEPTANCE OF WORK PERFORMED: I acknowledge satisfactory completion of the above described work and that the premises has been 

left in satisfactory condition. I understand that if my check does not clear, I am liable for the check and any charges from the bank. I agree to 

pay 1.75% per month for past due contracts (minimum charge $15). ln the event that collection efforts are installed against me, I shall pay for all 

associated fees at the posted rates as well as all cost of collection fees and reasonable attorney fees. 

space marked "TOT Al COST' is the total flat price I have agreed to. 

1 )OJ/I )AJ/T) Ali,Jll~ 
Accepted By 

1 agree that the amount set forth in the 

Taxable: 

Non-Taxable: 

Sub Total: 

Sales Tax: 

Freight: 
Amount Paid: 

Total: 

597.00 

0.00 

$597.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$597.00 



:Beacc,111 Electrical (~0111tractcn:'S7 Inc. 
DuvalStation Rd,Suite107-306 

Jacksonville, Florida 32218 
Phone: 904, 338-5394 
Fax: 904-751-6583 

To: 

Aun: 
Phone: 
Email: 

Riverside Management Services, lnc. 
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite J\206 
Orlando, FL 32827 

Brian Stephens 

bstephens@rivernidemgtsvc.com 

:WORK COMPLETED B-20··20@ Brannon Lakes : 

_INVC)IC:E #2Q08li4 
D?te: B-20-20. 

Labor and materials t:o : 

-Troubkshoot:pool lights. 
·Disconnected lights to clear tripping circuit breaker,• noted lights leaking 
•Recommend pool contractor to replace lights. 

INVOICE AMOUNT $t264.00 

Net Due Upon Receipt 

All work bas been complctecl in a workmanlike m,umer according to standard prnctkes !'1.nd the National Electtic.\l Codes. All work has a 
one~ye.11' warrnnty effec\i\'e as of the date of this ln\'oice. 



Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
475 West Town Place, Ste 114 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bannon Lakes Community 
Development District 

618 

lnvoice#11570 

Please detach ancl return with payment 
x---------------------------------

Customer: Bannon Lakes Community Development District 

,z$:f€cttilcti\ilii~ 

10/01/2020 Renew policy 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 

Policy #100120279 1'0/01/2020-10/01/2021 

Florida Insurance Alliance 
Package - Renew policy 
Due Date: 9/1/2020 

C @ 

1, '31J iJ ,. 1s-r, /c,;;o 

Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th St Oaklawn, IL 60453 

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC 
Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 
Chicago, IL 60689-4002 

(321 )233-9939 

sclimer@egisadvisors.com 

21,500.00 

$ ~1,500,00 



FREEDOM '\~~ 
ti"l!\:i!,'11' CON'!l'Rtt~II, it'~- ~'\: 
90'1-·272,B!JGS (2841) -·jn ,\ 
3600 Peoria Rel, Suite 103 :.,/ 

Ornnge Par!<, FL 32065 

!idl J" [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
t\35 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

INVOICE: 
DATE: 

OllDER: 

\\,,:I. 

---1n40·5wi,, .. .,
,Jfr1io20 
1040G93 

I,, ,'!H'il [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SL Augustine, FL 32092 

L~1~).1.lb<~tJ~d~i.~J'./.i~,ttiliiJi1li~;J~ii!1JfLlt1i:,it~1,~i,J~iliJl:ll\1, _·-• ·1f, <· ;;/ ,/,'>; ',' 
617/2020 0£1:00 AM 2MARCUS Marclll Lopez 

[;~~s;J';f!f(.)11'.:))'.(;,}[c,DM •"lf~"i.,~~\1\\f:_l,5i'i~~lll-!fffi:J:J.t11,fo•ll :: I ;•,r:1:!(oJ,1;1,)-. 'dP ~¼·,,,n,;Jr,~¥-iAc;·;; >:,.-ti-"~~ 'i /1, 1C1i!11n .·1 
NET :30 817/2020 Uo:JE276"424 

TC-SHP ·-:;i)\nnu.il Termite Control Renewal 

B.d,'I\\\'., \Hlt,i;,l\,lm\'. ,,l",'I .'ll ,!.11"> !i"m (!:,· ~1,!t.' u! "'l\in' lll.l\ h· ,ubi,'~t 1" ,! L,1( k; 
.,f lli, I. •'(l nl 1.5' :· r,'1 m,11Hh '· !:S', p.-r :,,,i! I ;,1 \h~ nc,t\U)l\lli) J\1,,,,i,1 [,~ ks 
( '<1-lnn:;;1 ,,;'tn"• !>1 p,,j ,;s-,1\ktl •C\f's'li•,,'., i•l 1h,; \"\~Ill <11 ,u!L:,li<ill 

Iii 

,1-I 

J50.00 

SUBTOTAL $350.00 

TAX S0.00 

AMT. PAID $0.00 

TOTAL $350.00 

/\MOUNT DUE 

ssL,l , 11, ,,.•, 1.• ! ,,'1tTL·1,,•1, d. ll , •, 1., 
l ,I\,,· j,-.1:-.).I 



[106211] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Fitness Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
Saint Augustine, fl 32095 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 
}f,;;1# .. 

ORDER: 1040595 

\\.,1), 

l , .... ,iHi ['106211] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Fitness Center 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvcl 
Saint Augustine, FL 32095 

~lffi!i•J.:IM~~[1fl:tmiWl<i4it~.::, •~ ~ ~E2:'2.ii • .:.LTu1Ja1~EC],i~!:'}'.J;'J1±iit,ir Ai ,j • ·1 
8/7/2020 10:00 Al..4 2MARCUS Mucus Lop1,z 

~~-~Ti::t1l:Gll!IJ.Jill.illi!l]\1 ,1,;+~~11[1!:Hfffu'll:i;r;~,..,J¾J~Fff1ff~:,:fiy~j1';~*1i•lii;::1'1:~ii..li/~~~1ftd·1< •1i11 ·· I 
NET ~o em20:zo Lio:JE27e◄2◄ 

TC-SRP Ariti:\1~1 Termite Control H.en.ewa! 

R.EC: 

ls.,),'lkn 1lli!,\,,1!1liHf ll\\·! \!1 ,J.,\, h,,,i; tlk ,bts' ,,) •,1·,k\' Ill,!~ h;• ,;ul,:.-,t l;i ll LI~!~,

••1 !h-: I,:;,~: ,,f J 5•: 1Y1 1;1<;11111 ( 1;.•; 1\cf ~-,:-,1r1 ,,1 lhc 1\1.1\imum ,111,,w,,! h; t,,1 
( \1,t\lli,;"! ,,:.'1,,, !HI'·''.• .\\:d\h:,: i:\r:n,,,, I() !ll~ (_\CIH ,11 ,·nit, ll•'ii 

,SEP Of; 

11,.;. 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 
AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

200,00 

$200.00 

SO.OD 

$0,00 

$200.00 

•;.! 



!:iii i,, [106210} 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

DATE: 
ORDER: 1M1871 

\\>'IL 

!'<1f2' '" [106210} 
Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

~'lli]lli!Bi'i!ll~~llS"i?;~,tfi{S1ftlm!i;;:~: ;jl•~:t-i{'~filiJJi\iID(~iJ',:'i~~;c~Vi;:i'~llifi;~~v-iffli'';;E1;1i:'1i\.¥.ff:(~¥~~l[iri~ i"1i1l:11;,: ~I 
8127/2020 03:20 PM 2MARCUS Mercu, Loper. 

f;,,'f'(:i,1 ~i;jf;~J!l[~.tJ:tl -Tr!JJl?:t'.•~~j~ W;i\j~;;'-'"ii1Jitf,j":i{Ji.;i'I M!lit )}/,j,ii •it,r: i I 1::; i ,;;i,J : J{fj.i) 1Tf~';J~ l!IJii~tl '~c:~: ,'fi~.~•:~-'''~'i,.;,~/ . .,J f ~ '! i! ;; t 'i(, J ,if · 
NET JO 8/27/2020 Llo:JE2711-42◄ 

MONTHLY Monthly Pe~! Control 

l\,,J.;n"·· 11(ll<l:1n,!rn: ;,,,·1 .Ill ,j.,~, mun tk \l.1\.' ,1i "'1\i«: m,1\ k· ,d1i,u i,, ,1 LM k,· 
,1t lh~ 1; •·:1 P! I Y; r,·, mnmh t !ii', I'd .~-:<'!l ,,1th~ na.1\l1m:1;\ ,11lns S!l h,· l.n\ 
(\1,tn1:'. 1· .,~·1,., hl P-\\ ,1,:, i\!-'d s'\!~-'l•'-'' ill ti<c \'\s"I'.\ ul ~1,l!ctlh•:t 

1 i, ,, I•; . i.l, -.. 1, ,I;. 
,!i,I I !'" 11' 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 
/\MT, PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

150.00 

$150.00 

SO.DO 

$0.00 

S 150.00 

'j l I-• 



FREEDOM,~~ 
IPl!:$T COINJTROIL I/~-~~ 
904-272-BUGS !28471 •J· \.\ 
.%00 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 -· 

Ornn~Je Park, Fl. 32065 

Bill !,; 

RODENT 

[106210] 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

H,,\,,;ic\'' ,,111,(,\1\tl;n:; ,,;·~r _l.ij d,,~;. ft,i;l) 1h,·1!,1t, ,1i ,,:l',\u· iihi'.- \",.· w\,_1,',t l,> ;1 !,ti·: k\ 
,11 !h-: k-<~r,,; l5'.; p:i-m,111tll ( J;.', r..:r y,,_.11 ,,, the' m.1\in;\l1\l ,,ll,h ,-d h:, L,\,. 
( \isl•_o1):~j ,1~1cc, {U p-:y ;;,d\K,: ,-.,rc,,,cc, in th,,_., cnt <ll c,·,B:lth,il 

\\' ,!) 

.. •fri421frFr 
>lcfl/2'//2020 

1042117 

I; ,, 11 [106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
1135 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SI. Aug1,1stine, FL 32092 

, 1.,i 'I•., \,· j' 1/ J]1;, 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 
AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

I's°!'!· .. 

100.00 

$100.00 

~0.00 

SO.DO 

s100.00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
SI. Augustine, FL 

Description 

0 '>. 20ZG 
M 

Management Fees -§~ptember 2020 /. IO, 2,7:J , 
Website Administralioh - September 2020 7 3-D 
Information Technology- September 2020 l,·e;! 
Dissemination Agent Services - September 2020 '2,-/ b 
Office Supplies !:,1 O 
Postage 1/ J~0 
Copies !; Ji,;{' 
Telephone f (;() 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice #: ~fc'C; 
Invoice Date: ~t1l20 

Due Date: 9/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

3,750.00 
100.00 
144.42 
291.67 

0.24 
4.00 

34.20 
9.38 

Amount 

$4,333.91 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $14;333.91 



The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
Aquatic Management Services ., 

3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 32708 
PH: 800-666-5253 

Bill To 

BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

Purchase Order Number 

Item 

Monthly Water Management Service (R) 

Terms 

NET JO DAYS 

Description 

INVOICE 
Invoice# ''528054 

Account# 723475 

Invoice Date 9/1/2020 

Due Date 9/11/2020 _____ ___, 

Rep MAS 

Invoice Questions: 
Lakes@lakedoctors.com 

Payment Questions: 
Payments@lakedoctors.com 

Invoice Date Reflects Month of 
Service Provided 

Amount 

Water Mgmt Serv - Additional Area Added Effective December 2019 

475.00 
175.00 

,1· '/ f .. 0 r!::J 

Customer Total Balance $650.00 
,,_PT~a·;; confirm you~ -b~nk bill p;y~~~;~~~t·.,~;-tch·;~ yo~-;-.. in~~-i~~ am~unt if Y~uc;c,u;;.se"'·•"'C'"b;acnc:k.; .. _bc,,c,ll""..-1T_o_t_a_l_I_n_V_O_l_' c-e-!------c.lfff2=·-·=:!5-¼'.'t--:1•>-fO ___ '(J-.!-:: -I;, -< 

~aver service. Thank you! 1:!JlL .: .-,.,_ .. __ ,_,,_., ff 

To help ensure prompt and accurate credit to your account, please include your account number and invoice number on your check and always 
include your remittance stub with your payment. 

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your local office contact information. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

Bill To 
BANNON LAKES CDD 
GMS MANAGEMENT 
475 WESTTOWN PLACE 
SUITE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 

For address and contact updates, please email us at 
Frontdesk(ti;lakedoctors.com. 

The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
3543 State Road 419 

Winter Springs, FL 32708 

0 

Amount Enclosed Invoice# 528054 

Account# 723475 

Date 9/1/2020 

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to 
have your invoices emailed. 

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW 
Mastercard Visa __ American Express 

Card# ___ ~-----------
Card Verification# __________ _ 
Exp. Date# _____________ _ 

PrintName _____ ~~==---~--
Billing Address: __ Check box if same as above 

Signature 



WORK ORDER / INVOICE 

NAME 

Pompanette Canvas and Upholstery 
404 S. Riberia Street, St. Augustine, Fl 32084 

Tel: 904-429-3968 Fax: 904-824-9755 

STATE '" 

I llHIEBY AUTHORIZE THE OVE WORK TO BE DONE AS $0 OR-
DERED AND OUTLINED AeOVE, 11 IS AGREED THAT THE SEHER WILL 
RETAIN TITLE TO ANY EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL FURNISHED UNHl 

1-----------------------l~~~~~:;;~~~Es~~~:sH!~E:H~:1C:H/r,~~T~~~~~T ~~~~~E~~DE 
AND MA1Ef?IAL WIIHOUT BEING HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAM· 

1----------------------JAGES RESULTING FROM lHE REMOVAL Of EQUIPMENT. 

TAX 

l----------------------jx 7ASa,o"v"'e-,o-',"oE"R"'ED""W°'O-'R"K"H"°AS,-,;;SE°'E"'N-,CvoCCMiopcaLEs;TE,;,O,A;:;N:;;D"I --
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MY COPY. 

TOTAL I& 
Thank You 



1707 Townhurst Dr 
Houston TX 77043 
ar@poolsure.com 
800,858,~001.(7665) 
www.poolsure.com 

B111To 

Riverside Management Services 
Bannon Lakes COO 
9655 Florida Minning Blvd West 
bldg 300 suite 305 
Jacksonville FL 3225 7 

Invoice Date 
Invoice U 

'gffo2020 
1.3'1295594690 

Terms Net 20 1----------_c,;.c:.;cc_1-------········-·-·--" 
Due Date 013112020 

PO II 1-c=~~~~~~~~.:::.:.c.1•······· .. C ..........................•......•.......... 

Delivery Ticket# Sales Order #1331814 

Delivery Date a,1112020 

Delivery Location Bannon Lakes Pool 

13BAN025 Customer II 1- _________ _c__,...c...1- ____ ,. __ ., .. _____ _, 

Ship To 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine FL 32095 

LATE FEE: Tll!s conslilutes notice under the truth in lending ac\ \hat any accounts remaining unpaid after lhe due date are s11bject to 1 1/?.% per 
month late charge and allorney fees. 

Item ID 
115-300 

160-050 

Remittance Slip 

Customer 
13BAN025 

Invoice 11 
131295594690 

Item 
Bleach Minibulk Delivered 

Pool Acid bulk by Gallon 

111111111111 i llrn 11111111 Ill 
131295594690 

Quantity Units 
500 gal 

45 gal 

Amom1t D\!e 

Amount Paid 

Make Checks Payable To 

Poolsure 
PO Box 55372 
Houston, TX 77255-5372 

Rate Amount 
1.50 750.00 

3.00 135.00 

Total 885.00 
Amount Duo ~8!).!i;Q!f' 

$885,00 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 

--- Jacksonville,.F[ 32257 ·· 

Bill To: 
Bannon Lakes COD 
9655 Florida Mining 81vd W 
Suite 305 
Jacksonvme, FL 32257 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 

Invoice Date: Ji71)2020 
Due Date: 9/1/2020 

Case: 
P.O. Number: 

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount 

Janitorial Services - September 2020 3 2.'7, $, 7.., '15"30 
Pool Maintenance Services - September 2020 3 ?-<>, s·,,., 'i '5' 2.o 
Contract Administration - September 2020 :}2.e,, ~, ,., ,1 i,,·"' 
Facility Management - Bannon Lakes - September 2020 ~ .,,,, I ~ 

,/2.o, '57'2., .J '1 Oo 

583.33 
910.50 

1,596.50 
5,000.00 

Total $8,090.33 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due '$8,090.33 



Side Hustle the Band LLC 
Jorge Laplume 
5381 Fremont St. 
Jacksonville, FL 32210 
United States 

Tax ID: 83-3643056 

Phone: 954-993-6963 
antonsmusic89@gmail.com 

Bill To: 

bannonmanager@rmsnf.com 

Description 

Side Hustle Performance 

0 

Invoice #: 000~., 
Invoice Date: §.!'P 7, 2020 

Due date: ·sep 7, 2020 

Quantity 

1 

Amount due: 
$250.00 

Price 

$250.00 

Subtotal 

Amount 

$250.00 

$250.00 

Total ~250.00 USD 



REQUISITION NO. 145 
(2016 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$11,850,000 
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the tenns of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of January I, 2016 (the 
"Indenture"), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 
Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 145 

(B) Name of Payee: Clary & Associates, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $3,850.00 

(D) Bannon Lakes CDD Invoice #2020-328 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 2016 
Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. this requisition is for Costs of the 2016 Project payable from the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account that have not previously been paid; 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account; 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

/, 2,(51), /1,I. /0/ 

(ff) 



Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

Dated July 2, 2019 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: ____ lt:,_3~~.""""-~---
Arthur E. Lancaster 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSUL TING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than Costs of Issuance, the undersigned 
Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the Project and is 
consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; 
and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC. 

By: 4-'Y ~-=-:7 /zo/zo 
Title: District Engineer 



ROUTE SURVEY 

3352 
EASTLAND 

2020-328 
06/30/20 

• 

700 PONTE VEDRA LAKES BLVD 
PONTE VEDRA BEACH FL 32082 

ART 

• 

PAGE 

PER CONTRACT 

DESCRIPTION: 05/18/20 NO. 2020-328·-

LOT F,M. 
SUBDIVISION: BANNON LAKES UNIT -
SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS NINE MILE RD 

ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF TOPOGRAPHIC ROUTE SURVEY FOR FORCE MAIN 

ON SOUTH SIDE OF IGP 

\ I'\ 
\ L 

PLEASE 

3,850.00 

MAKING 

1 



REQillSITION NO. 146 
(2016 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$11,850,000 
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District'') hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of January I, 2016 (the 
"Indenture"), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to sucb term in the 
Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 146 

(B) Name of Payee: Clary & Associates, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $9,600.00 

(D) Bannon Lakes COD Invoice #2020-328-2 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 2016 
Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. this requisition is for Costs of the 2016 Project payable from the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account that have not previously been paid; 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account; 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

/, §v-0,/J/, 

tf cl!] 



Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

Dated July 2, 2019 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

41.····,: .· /), 1 .. ,.rU#~ L i if .,..t 
By: ............ /74•':.'> ~i .hC.-1'&.,, •-· 

Arthur E. Lancaster 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than Costs of Issuance, the undersigned 
Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the Project and is 
consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; 
and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 

ENGLAND, TIIIMS & MILLER, INC. 

By: tJrrM 
Title: District Engineer 



3352 
EASTLAND 

\-

• 

2020-328-2 
06/30/20 

700 PONTE VEDRA LAKES BLVD 
PONTE VEDRA BEACH FL 32082 

ART 

06/05/20 

LOT F.M. 
SUBDIVISION: BANNON LAKES UNIT -

• 

PAGE 

TO: 
PER CONTRACT, 24 SOFT DIGS 
TOTAL 

2020-328-2 

SECTION : 1 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS NINE MILE RD 

ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF SOFT DIGS FOR FORCE MAIN ROUTE SOUTH OF 

IGP (SEE MARKUP FROM JASON CREWS@ ETM) 

TOTAL DUE $9,600.00 

(l!v}l 
/ 

;1i::2i~'·-::t+~~··~t~~ 

TO, WHEN 

1 



BILL TO 
Bre Meeks 
435 Bannon Lakes Boulevard 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 USA 

JOB ADDRESS 
Bre Meeks 

435 Bannon Lakes Boulevard 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 USA 

ICK 

12 

Fenwick Services 

11623 Columbia Park Drive E, 

Jacksonville, FL 32258 

P: (904)-724-7022 

wwwJenwickhomes,irvices,com 

Plumbing Lie#: CFC0.r.1-0039 

INVOICE 

223902 

INVOICE DATE 

Aug 15,2020 

Completed Date: 8/15/2020 
Payment Term: Due Upon Receipt 

Due Date: 8/15/2020 

Talk to customer about her issues. Customer showed me women's bathroom found a couple toilets have been safe 
and down and a couple of them won't flush. Determined it's a stoppage issue. Try to find dean out could not find 
dean out that goes to those bathrooms. Went over options. Got approval to pull the toilet and ran snake. Pool third 

toilet from right and ran three-quarter cable all the way outTa!k to customer about her issues. Customer showed me 
women's bathroom found a couple toilets have been siphon down and a couple of them won't flush. Determined it's 
a stoppage issue. Tried to find clean out could not find dean out that goes to those bathrooms. Went over options, 
Got approval to pull the toilet and ran snake. Pulled third toilet from right and ran three-quarter cable all the way 

outPull back a little bit of toilet paper. Tested believe stoppage is cleared. Reset toilet and grouted. Also increased 
flush on some toilet. Put breanna Bannon leaks credit card on file and the management has 14 days to pay invoice or 

we will charge her card. Bill from office 

DF.SCRlf>TfON 

MSCPT Pull Toilet To Clear Main Drain: 
Cleared main drain line with pulling toilet 

c~d) 
/, Si£>✓ fr? 67uo 

Thank you for choosing Fenwick Plumbing Services LLC 

We appreciate your business! 

1.00 

SUB~TOTAL 

TAX 

TOTAL DUE 

BALANCE DUE 

$517.00 $517.00 

$517.00 

$0.00 

$517.00 

I, the undersigned, am owner/authorized representative/tenant of the premises at which the work mentioned above is 

to be done. I hereby authorize you to perform Diagnosis/Solution, and to use such labor and materials as you deem 

Invoice #223902 Page 1 of 2 



advisable. 

Darn 8/15/2020 

CUST(JtvlEf\ ACKNO'JVLE!)G!:lviFNT 

I find the service and materials rendered in connection with the above work mentioned to have been completed in a 
satisfactory manner. I agree that the amount set forth on labeled "TOTAL" to be the total and complete flat 
rate/minimum charge, I agree to pay reasonable attorney fees and court costs in the event of legal action. A monthly 
service charge of 1 1 /2% will be added after 1 O days. I acknowledge that 1 have read and received a legible copy of 

this contract and have read the Notice to Owner and statement required thereon. 

DAli' 8/15/2020 

Invoice #223902 Page 2 of 2 



IF REE DOM -(~~~ 
IJ"(gl!l"!f' «:@N'iJ'~O!l. V ~ .• ~ 
904-272-EIUGS f2847J \ ~\ 
3600 Peoria Rd, Suite 103 ._,} 

Ornnge Park, FL 32065 

Hd• I , [106210] 

MONTHLY 

1,' 

'' 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
<'ECJ 11 ,, 202' ,1rR,1 ~ Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 

435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Monthly Pest Control 

Y311l v Q( ~) .:· >1 :> '/XY, () 
) c-s I ,Ot,)/f.() I 

o:> 1. ,i;J:>, s·· 1,,z,o. ,;·"!:;-oo 

~ ® 

. ,,1,,,.' 

I" \ -_,1:.: rh. 1, 

I. 

INVOICE: 

DATE: 

ORDEH: 

[106210] 

1044352 

9/22/2020 

1044352 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 
AMT, PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

150.00 

S150,00 

S0.00 

S0.00 

$150.00 

$150,00 



FREEDOM ,~:!i~ 
(ll'll'!::l>V •t:@!M1fl/Kllll. v~" ~ 
904-272-BUGS (28471 ¾.\ 
3600 Peoria Rd, Suite 1 03 

Ornnge Park, FL 32065 

I 

RODENT 

[106210] 

Bannon Lakes COD 
Bannon Lakes Resident's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Au9ustine, FL 32092 

Rodent Control 

:)·, i= C ') ~ ?M[· 
--- _f•J •t• ---VL"f 

()()(, J,,2()' S'?;!t'fJ' '-'1S'<X) 

w <?fl 

\.> ,1 \ ,1 · ' 

! ,,._1, f. I ., ·1, 

IN\/OICE: 
DATE: 

ORDER: 

[106210] 

1044582 

9/2212020 

1044582 

Bannon lakes COD 
Bannon lakes Res\denl's Club 
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

SUBTOTAL 

TAX 

AMT. PAID 

TOTAL 

AMOUNT DUE 

100.00 

$100,00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$100.00 

$100.00 



Irrigation •Landscape. Maintenance 

35 Enterprise Drive 
Bunnell, FL 32110 
(386) 586-3321 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
475 W, Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Project 

Bannon Lakes CDD 

Description 

Irrigation Maintenance Service for August- see attached list. 

/3 (3) 
l,~'b-0, s3J, 

Than_k you for your business! 

b ·1 }j 

Quantity 

1 

iy 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

8/3112020 10960 

Project# 

MlOl 

Rate Amount 

252.50 252.50 

Total $252.50 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $252.50 



Bannon Lakes COD 

Date Location Description Material Total Cost 

8/18 Bannon Lakes Blvd. (20) MP2000 nozzles $ 200.00 $ 52.50 $ 252.50 

T Ota( Due $ 252.50 



1707 Townhurst Dr 
Houston TX 77043 
ar@poolsure.com 
800-858-POOL (7665) 

1 
)) 

,/_,·, 
(?) 

Invoice 

Terrns 

Due Date 

PO# 

Date 
Invoice ft 

Net 20 
~---

<="•""·'-~-~ 
10M/2020 

------

9114/2020 
131295595606 

·www.poolsure.com Delivery Ticket# Salos Order #1332292 

V" ~" ""'""~ -,;-;-·'""' Y<l"':::';' "';C '> Delivery Date 9/11/2020 ,.,, ,~ 
I-••~--••• V ,LI 

'"Delivery Location Bannon Lakes Pool 
Bill To 

Riverside Management Services Customer# 13BAN025 

Bannon Lakes COD ;:Jct' :ti;'! Wit' 
9655 Florida Minning Blvd West 
bldg 300 suite 305 Bannon Lakes CDD 
Jacksonville FL 32257 Ship To 

435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
SL Augustine FL 32095 

LATE FEE: Tills constitutes notice under the truth in lending act that any accounts rernaininf] unpaid after the due date are subject to 1 1/?.% per 
month !ate charge and attorney fees. 

Item ID Item 
115-300 Bleach Minibu!k Delivered 

115-300 Bleach Minibu!k Delivered 

7>114,,k 9, I 7,,,~tJ 
r) ' 
/t:;o / Cht:JV, fr,;<\ h 
(JO/ ,?,&2t), ';;"1<c?X:X), "/,r;';l /0 

Remittance Slip 

Customer 
13BAN025 

Invoice# 
131295595606 

Iii Iii 111111 i 111111111111 !II 
131295595606 

19@ 

---

Quantity 
/480 

15 

Amount Due 

Amount Paid 

Units 
gal 

gal 

Make Checks P.iy.ihle To 

Poolsure 
PO Box 55372 
Houston, TX 77255•5372 

Rate 
1,50 

1,50 

Total 
Amount Due 

$742,50 

Amount 
720,00 

22,50 

742.50 
$742,50 



(' 

, 1. s· 1 Ill r~,1; 
A !rJ ;~,,. 

1707 Townhurst Dr 
Houston TX 77043 
ar@poolsure.com 
800-858-POOL (7665) 
www.poo!sure.com 

Bfl/To 

f.-.--.-. 

Invoice 

Terms 

Due Date 

PO// 
Delivery Ticket# 

Delivery Dale 
Delivery Location 

Customer# 

Date 
Invoice ti 

Niel! 20 

10/712020 

·-$., 

Sales Ordor ll1332332 

9/15/2020 

Bannon Lakes Pool 

13BAN025 

9/1712020 
131295595666 

Riverside Management Services 
Bannon Lakes CDD I• .&"~-:'Z .,,r,AI\/1 7 .I 
9655 Florida Minning Blvd West 

Bannon Lakes COD bldg 300 suite 305 
Jacksonville FL 32257 "Ji Ship To 

435 Bannon Lakes Blvd 
tfl SI. Augustine FL 32095 

LATE FEE: This constitutes notice under the truth in lending act that any accounts remalning unpaicl after the due date are subject to 1 1/2% per 
month late charge and attorney fees, 

Item ID 
115-300 

115-300 

Remittance Slip 

Customer 
13BAN025 

Invoice fl 
131295595666 

Item 

Bleach Minibulk De!!vered 

Bleach Minibulk Delivered 

~!sh J ·-·•· 1."p,ro ':l-1il I, ;£'J 
,"') . 
lex) I e A•:.r1t11 c/0. /( 

<:.'<..l I • .3',;Zo, S'~li,;,((')t) C 'L) ~--·,;{ I·(;, 

;gff) 

111111111111 I 1111111 Ill II 1111 
131295595666 

Quantity 
500 

Amount Due 

Amount Paid 

20 

Units 
gal 

gal 

Make Checlts Payable To 

Poolsure 
PO Box 55372 
Houston, TX 77255•5372 

Rate Amount 

1.50 750.00 

1,50 30.00 

Total 780.00 
Amount Duo $780.00 

$780.00 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/20/20          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 ***       BANNON LAKES - CAPITAL RESERVE

BANK B BANNON LAKES-CAPITAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/24/20 00004 7/21/20 4213A    202007 300-58400-60000                                     *            7,982.00
AMENITY EXTERIOR PAINTING

COLOR WAVE PAINTING AND DECOR INC                               7,982.00 000003
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/20 00003 7/21/20 48762    202007 300-58400-60000                                     *            1,024.95

25 FOOT FLAGPOLE
THE FLAGPOLE COMPANY                                            1,024.95 000004

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                  9,006.95

TOTAL FOR REGISTER                9,006.95

BANL -BANNON LAKES- BPEREGRINO



INVOICE 
"Leave it to COLOR WAVE for High Qµolit,J Work" 

Color Wave Painting and Decor Inc. 

3751 Sanctuary Way N. 

Jacksonville Beach, Fl. 32250 

SINCE 1996 

ESTIMATE#: 4213A 

DATE: July 21, 2020 

P: 904-242-0111/F: 904-242-0113 

coloiwaveinc@aol.com 

SCOPE: EXTERIOR PAINTING 

TO: 

PROJECT: 

RIVERSIDE MGMT. SERV. 
9655 FLORIDA MINING BLVD. STE. 305 

JACKSONVILLE, FL. 32257 

904-288-7667 
BANNON LAKES AMENITY 

EXTERIOR REPAINT 

ESTIMATOR AMOUNT DUE PAYMENT METHOD 

JOHN RIOS $7-982.00 AT COMPLETION 

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION 

MAIN BLDG AND FITNESS BLDG EXTERIOR REPAINT: 

#1 COLUMNS, BRACKETS, RAFTERS, SUPPORT BEAMS & FAUX 

BEAMS 

#2 TONGUE & GROOVE CEILINGS 

USE SUPER PAINT SATIN FOR ALL 

(MEMO) 

INCLUDES, LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

BETTER BUSINESS BUREAU 
A+ ACCREDITED BUSINESS 

UNIT PRICE 

SUBTOTAL 

TAXES 

PAYMENT DUE 

LINE TOTAL 

3,995.00 

3,987.00 

$7,982.00 

INCLUDED 

$7,982.00 



Tl!,• 

Ffll!fP,~!!,9!!!.IPIIIIY, 
_>f--¥-•w~._ 

Bill To 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
Brian Stephens 
475 West Town Place Suite 114 
St. Augustine FL 32092 
P: 904.627.9271 

P.O. Number Terms 

Quantity Item Code 

I EH255125 
I Shipping 

Ship To 

Bannon Lakes CDD 
C/O Riverside Management 
Building 300 Suite 305 

Date 

7/21/2020 

9655 Florida Mining Blvd West (Must Call 
Jacksonville FL 32257 P: 904.627.9271 

Invoice 

Invoice# 

48762 

'J.· '300 · 55'1 ·&O 

Rep Ship Via F.O.B. Project 

7/21/2020 

Description Price Each Amount 

251 Architectural Commercial Flagpole 511 .125 1,024.95 1,024.95 
Free Shipping 0.00 0.00 

*** Customer Mailing Check*** 

Material: Material: 100% 6063-T6 Solid Aluminum Tubing 
Standard Finish: Natural Satin. 
Custom Finish: Main hardware painted to match. 
Overall Length: 27ft 
Exposed Height: 25ft 
Sections: 1 
Top Diameter: 311 

Butt Diameter: 511 

Wall Thickness: .125 
Flagpole Weight: 129 lbs 
Max Unflagged Wind Speed: 137 mph 
Max Flagged Wind Speed: I 05 mph 
Standard Flag Size: 4'x6 (Flag Sold Separately) 
Cast Aluminum Revolving Truck Assembly. 
5" Gold Anodized Ball Finial. 
911 Cast Aluminum Cleat W/Screws. 
5/16" Braided Polypropylene Halyard. 
2 Chrome Plated Swivel Bronze Snap hooks. 
Machine Spun Aluminum Flash Collar. 
16 Gauge Galvanized Corrugated Ground Sleeve. 
Complete Installation Instructions. 
Installation Tech Support. 
Warran1y: Lifetime Shaft Warran1y (Restrictions may apply) I 
Year Hardware. 
All Commercial Flagpoles Ship LTL Freight, Common Carrier 
Origin: MADE IN THE USA. 

Total 

Page 1 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Community Development District Construction Funding Request #22
July 20, 2020

Req. PAYEE Series 2016 Contruction

145 Clary & Associates Inc
Topographic Route Survey for force main on Southside of IGP  Inv #2020-328  06/30/20 3,850.00$       

146 Clary & Associates Inc
Utility Soft Dig Inv #2020-328-2  6/30/20 9,600.00$       

Paid by Developer

Total Funding Request 13,450.00$   
  

 Please make check payable to: Bannon Lakes CDD
c/o GMS LLC
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine FL  32092

Signature:

Signature:

Bannon Lakes

Chairman/Vice Chairman

Secretary/Asst. Secretary



Community Development District Construction Funding Request #23
September 21, 2020

Req. PAYEE Series 2016 Contruction

147 England Thims & Miller Inc
Bannon Lakes Force Main Inv #0195078  7/31/20 9,298.68$   

Total Funding Request 9,298.68$     

Please make check payable to: Bannon Lakes CDD
c/o GMS LLC
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine FL  32092

Signature:

Signature:

Bannon Lakes

Chairman/Vice Chairman

Secretary/Asst. Secretary

Paid by Developer



REQUISITION NO. 147 
(2016 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$11,850,000 
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of January 1, 2016 (the 
"Indenture"), ( all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 
Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 147 

(B) Name of Payee: ETM 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $9,298.68 

(D) Bannon Lakes CDD Invoice #0195078 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 2016 
Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. this requisition is for Costs of the 2016 Project payable from the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account that have not previously been paid; 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account ; 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 



Attached hereto are originals of the invoice( s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

Dated July 2, 2019 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOP, ~ DISTRICT 

By: f-i1;h~ 
Arthur E. Lancaster 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than Costs of Issuance, the undersigned 
Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the Proj ect and is 
consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; 
and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC. 

By: 4r. ~ - ¥8/zozo 
Title: District Engineer 



Art Lancaster 
Bannon Lakes, COD 
700 Ponte Vedra Lakes Boulevard 
Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32082 

Project 

Task Lump Sum 

Task 

1. Pre-Design Concept Plans 
2. Forcemain Construction Plans 
3. DEP Sanitary Sewer Collection Sys Ind 
4. St. Johns County Development Review 
5. FOOT Utility Permit 
6. NPDES Notice of Intent 

Total Fee 

Task XP 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Permits 

Expenses 

Total Expenses 

July 31, 2020 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

19208.00000 
0195078 

1onal Golf Parkway 1-95 

Contract Percent 
Amount Complete 

Earned Previously 
To Date Billed 

Current 
BIiied 

5,000.00 
36,000.00 

3,500.00 
25,000.00 
15,000.00 

1,500.00 
86,000 .00 

Total Fee 

100.00 
100.00 

0.00 
0.00 

10.00 
0.00 

5,000 .00 
36!000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

1,500.00 
0.00 

42,500.00 

Total this Task 

Invoice Total this Period 

5,000.00 0.00 
27,000.00 9,000.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

1,500.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

33,500.00 9,000.00 

9,000.00 

$9,000.00 

298.68 

$298.68 

0 rn ® rn aw rn1~ 
I~ SEP 1 4 lU20 ~) Approval 

Entity 

$9,298.68 

Account -- ~":"\f -=r ...,_ 
Entered -!C- ~~ +.,,.;;;..;;;..

Draw --' ..... ,:;...;:~ ----

L By _ __ _ __ _ _ 

Note ______ _ 

En9land• Thim) Ii miDar,lnc. 
ENGNEBIS •PWINEIS •SlJIIYFIORS•GIS•LlllllSCAPEMIC!llECTS 

147750ldSI.A1911U!ORoad•---312!1•1e!ll04-8<U990•m
CM0002184 WOJml1! 



REQUISITION NO. 145 
(2016 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$11,850,000 
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of January 1, 2016 (the 
"Indenture"), ( all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 
Indenture}: 

(A} Requisition Number: 145 

(B) Name of Payee: Clary & Associates, Inc. 

(C} Amount Payable: Total: $3,850.00 

(D) Bannon Lakes CDD Invoice #2020-328 

(E} Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 2016 
Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. this requisition is for Costs of the 2016 Project payable from the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account that have not previously been paid; 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account; 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 



Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

Dated July 2, 20 I 9 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: batd; 
Arthur E. Lancaster 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSUL TING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than Costs of Issuance, the undersigned 
Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the Project and is 
consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; 
and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 

ENGLAND, TRIMS & MILLER, INC . 

By: 4-r.b4---7 /~/~ 
Title: District Engineer 



ROUTE SURVEY 

810 Cr,_.\Jn 

ICE 
DAT 

3352 
EASTLAND 

ar 

2020-328 
06/30/20 

s 
' . 

700 PONTE VEDRA LAKES BLVD 
PONTE VEDRA BEACH FL 32082 

QRDE REO BY ART 

DESCRIPTION: 05/18/20 

LOT F.M. 

· tes, Inc. 
• 

DELIVER f 
PER CONTRACT 

PAGE 

WO NO. 2020-328 

SUBDIVISION: BANNON LAKES UNIT -
SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS NINE MILE RD 

ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF TOPOGRAPHIC ROUTE SURVEY FOR FORCE MAIN 

ON SOUTH SIDE OF IGP 

3,850.00 

TOTAL DUE $3,850.00 

·~ --------

E .• ur-
PLEASE R .J MAKING r 'l'MEr .. T 

1 

coo~ 



REQUISITION NO. 146 
(2016 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$11,850,000 
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Bannon Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District'') hereby submits the following requisition for disbmsement under and 
pmsuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indentme from the District to The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of January l, 2016 (the 
"Indentme"), ( all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the 
Indentme): 

(A) Requisition Number: 146 

(B) Name of Payee: Clary & Associates, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $9,600.00 

(D) Bannon Lakes CDD Invoice #2020-328-2 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbmsement to be made: 2016 
Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. this requisition is for Costs of the 2016 Project payable from the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account that have not previously been paid; 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2016 Acquisition 
and Construction Account; 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 



Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

Dated July 2, 2019 

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By , b .~ 
Arthur E. Lancaster 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than Costs of Issuance, the undersigned 
Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the Project and is 
consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; 
and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 

ENGLAND, TIIlMS & MILLER, INC . 

By: o/f M-~,..-7f /zo 
Title : District Engineer 



I r 

INV t1.,;E NO 2020-328-2 
DATE 06/30/20 

3352 
EASTLAND 
700 PONTE VEDRA LAKES BLVD 
PONTE VEDRA BEACH FL 32082 

ORDERED B ART 

OE C'RI T 101\J 06/05/20 

LOT F.M. 
SUBDIVISION: BANNON LAKES UNIT -

• 

PAGE 

··· R TO: 
PER CONTRACT, 24 SOFT DIGS 
TOTAL 

0 NO 2020- 328- 2 

SECTION 
ADDRESS 

1 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
NINE MILE RD 
ST. JOHNS 

IN NAME OF SOFT DIGS FOR FORCE MAIN ROUTE SOUTH OF 
IGP (SEE MARKUP FROM JASON CREWS@ ETM} 

UTIL SOFT DIG (SUE LEVEL A) 9,600.00 

TOTAL DUE $9,600.00 

1 

110,~ © ~ u w ~ ij/1 
IU JUL O 9 LULU I~ 
!lY - ·~' 

i:- E. 
• E r-;E::F[ MBI WHEN 1\KIN Pt, ~ J 1 


	Agenda
	III. Affidavit
	IV. 07-29-20 Minutes
	V. A. Candidates
	V. D. 2021-01
	VI. FY20/21 O&M Funding Agreement
	VII. Lake Dr’s Renewal
	VIII. Memo of Understanding
	IX. Audit Engagement Letter
	X. Landscape Agreement
	XI. Amenity Policies
	XIII. D. Ops Memo
	XIII. E. Amenity Report
	XVI. A. Financials
	XVI. B. Assessment Receipts
	XVI. C. Check Register
	XVI. D Funding Requests



